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Ref: Ref. No. RA&SP/NEPRA/16/227 
Date: November 01, 2016 

THE REGISTRAR, 
NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER :REGULATORY 1111-10RITY, 

NEPRA Tower, Attaturk Avenue (East), 
Sector G-5/1, 
Islamabad, Pakistan 

SUBJECT: 	APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF CHANGE IN INDIRECT SHAREHOLDING AND 	OL IN K- 

ELECTRIC LIMITED UNDER RULE 14 OF LICENSING (GENERATION) R 	2000 •..ND RULE 

13 OF LICENSING (DISTRIBUTION) RULES, 1999.  

Dear Sir, 

1. K-Electric Limited is a public limited company incorporated under the laws of Pakistan 
and has its registered office at Plot # 39/B, Sunset Boulevard, Phase IV, Defence 
Housing Authority, Karachi ("KE"). The shares of KE are listed on Pakistan Stock 
Exchange. KES Power Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Cayman 
Islands ("KES Power") currently owns_66.4% (comprising of 18,335,542,678 ordinary 
shares) in the total issued and paid up capital of KE. 

2. As you may be aware, KES Power has agreed to sell up to 66.4% shareholding in KE to 
Shanghai Electric Power Company or a wholly owned subsidiary thereof ("Proposed 
Purchaser") subject to the terms and conditions agreed between the parties 
("Transaction"). 

3. In terms of Rule 14(1) (c) of the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority 
Licensing (Generation) Rules, 2000 ("Generation Rules"), and Rule 13 (1) (c) of the 
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority Licensing (Distribution) Rules, 1999 
("Distribution Rules"), KE in its capacity as a 'licensee' is restricted to recognize any 
transfer of its shares or other voting securities after the date of issue of the 
generation/distribution license where the result of such transfer is for any person to 
hold in its own right or beneficially own or control voting strength in the licensee 
equal to or exceeding 10% (ten percent) without prior authorization from NEPRA. 

4. As the consummation of the Transaction will result in the Proposed Purchaser holding 
at least up to 66.4% of total voting shares in KE, the restrictions specified in Rule 
14(1)(c) of the Generation Rules and Rule 13(1)(c) of the Distribution Rules will be 
triggered. 
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5. In light of the above and pursuant to Rule 14(1)(c) and Rule 13(1)(c), KE hereby 
respectfully requests NEPRA to kindly authorize/approve and permit KE to recognize 
the transfer of at least up to 66.4% of the total voting shares to the Proposed 
Purchaser. 

6. In support of this application, please find enclosed: 

a. Shareholding composition chart of KE (appended as "Exhibit A" hereto); 

b. Constitutional documents of KE (appended as "Exhibit B" hereto); 

c. Profile of the Proposed Purchaser and its group companies and management 
credentials to control the operations of KE (appended as "Exhibit C" hereto); 

d. Constitutional documents of the Proposed Purchaser (appended as "Exhibit D" 
hereto); 

We remain at your disposal should you have any queries or require any further information. 

We look forward to receipt of the requested authorization/approval from NEPRA and its 
facilitation, as always, in closure of this landmark Transaction. 

Respectfully submitted for and on behalf of: 

K-ELECTRIC LIMITED 

SYED MOONIS ABDULLAH ALVI 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
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KES Power Limited (KESP) 66.40 % 
Government of Pakistan (GOP) 24.36 % 
International Finance Corporation (IFC) 00.69 % 
Other shareholders 08.55 % 
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Waqar Hasan 
Siddique 

Chairman 

Mr. Siddique is a Board Member of Abraaj Holdings, Chairman of the 
Management 	Risk 	and 	Compliance 	Committee, 	serves 	on 	various 
management committees of The Abraaj Group (Abraaj), and is responsible 
for global risk management, compliance, internal audit and governance 
across Abraaj. Mr. Siddique is a Member of the Board of Governors of the 
Institute of Business Administration in Karachi, IMD's Executive Education 
Advisory Council, and is a Trustee of the Aman Foundation. He also 
represents Abraaj on the Boards of a number of its partner companies, 
including as the Chairman of Jordan Aircraft Maintenance Company 
(JorAMCo) and Stanford Marine Group (SMG). 

Mr. Siddique assumed the position of Chairman, K-Electric (formerly known 
as KESC) in May 2009 after Abraaj assumed management control of the 
company. During his close to four-year tenure as Chairman till February 
2013, Mr. Siddique's insight and guidance helped management achieve 
substantial progress and improvement, ultimately leading to an operational 
and financial turnaround of the Company. He was re-appointed as the 	111 
Chairman of K-Electric on 16 October 2015. Mr. Siddique holds an MBA 
degree and has developed a specialization in Operations, Risk Management 
and Governance over the last 34 years. 

Muhammad Tayyab 
Tareen 

Chief Executive Officer 

1 
Mr. Tareen was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer by the Board of Directors on 
November 27, 2014. He has been on the KE Board since 2009 and has also served as 
the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Strategy Officer, before moving back to the 
parent company The Abraaj Group in 2013, where he had set up the Pakistan 
Investment Fund and was also appointed as its CEO. Mr. Tareen is a qualified 
Chartered Accountant from England and Wales. 
Other Engagements: Managing Director, The Abraaj Group. Chairman, MSF Pakistan. 

, 
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Khalil Rafi 
Independent Gil eLtor 

1  

Mr. Rafi is an Independent Director, elected at the AGM of the company held on 
October 8, 2012, and also Chairman of the Board Audit Committee. Mr. Rafi was a 
Senior Partner at A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of 
Pricewaterhouse-Coopers LLP, for 20 years. He was also the president of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and of Management Association of Pakistan. Mr. 
Rafi is a Chartered Accountant, 	being a Fellow at the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in England and Wales. 



Mr. Khan joined The Abraaj Group as a Director in 2015. Prior to this, he was an 
Investment Officer in the International Finance Corporation. Mr. Khan has also worked 
as an Investment Consultant in the Board of Investment, Government of Pakistan, and 
as a manager in Ernst & Young's Transaction Advisory Services group based in 
Chicago. He has previously served on the Boards of Agritech Limited and Shakarganj 
Food Products Limited. Mr. Khaqan holds a BA in Economics from Northwestern 
University, US, and is a CFA charter holder. 
Other Engagement.  Director, The Abraaj Group. 

Mr. Sicre has been a Non-Executive Director since May 2013. Mr. Sicre has over 20 
years of experience in engaging the private sector on global issues, regional 
development agendas and community building. He is an MD in Abraaj's Global 
Markets team and works with leaders from all fields, including governments, the 
private sector, media and culture. Mr. Sicre holds an MBA from IMD, a Bachelor of Arts 
and Sciences from Villanova University, and is a Fellow of Stanford University. 
Other Engagements: Chairman, Mustaqbali Foundation. Board Member: Dubai Cares, Education for Employment 
and Junior Achievement's MENA Board, UN Global Compact Business for Peace Steering Committee, WPO. 

Ch. Khaqan Saadullah 
Khan 

Non-Executive Director 

Frederic Sicre 
Non-Executive Director 

,r-  

Mr. Sheikh has been a Non-Executive Director of the company since its privatisation in 
November 2005. He joined the National Industries Group (Holding), Kuwait, in 2001 
and is currently Chief Financial Officer. He is also a Non-Executive Board Member in 
Proclad Group Limited, UAE. He graduated with a degree in mathematics and statistics 
from the University of Punjab and is a Chartered Certified Accountant UK (FCCA). 
Other Engagements: Chief Financial Officer, National Industries Group, Kuwait. Board Member: Proclad Group 
Limited, UAE. 

Mubasher H. Sheikh 
Non-Executive Director 

S., 
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Mr. Hussain has been a Non-Executive Director of K-Electric and CEO, Pakistan 
Investment Fund, since November 2014. He was the CEO of KE from Feb 2013 to Nov 
2014, and was an Executive Director of the company and Chief Distribution Officer 
between November 2009 and February 2013. Prior to joining The Abraaj Group he 
was with Mashreq Bank, where he managed the Retail Risk Management function. 
While with Citigroup from 1991 to 2005, Mr. Hussain worked with their franchise in 
Pakistan, Saudi Arabia and Russia as Head of Retail Risk Management. 
Other Engagements: Managing Director The Abraaj Group. Board Member: Proclad Group Limited, UAE. 

Nayyer Hussain 
Non-Executive Director 

Omar Khan Lodhi 
Non-Executive Director 

Shan A. Ashary 
Non-Executive Director... 

• 

Mr. Lodhi has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since August 2010. Mr. 
Lodhi heads Asia for The Abraaj Group. With over 20 years of investing experience, 
he joined Abraaj in 2005 and has since lead the firm's investments into several 
underlying businesses spanning a wide variety of sectors. Prior to joining Abraaj, Mr. 
Lodhi spent several years with UBS. He is based out of Singapore and is a graduate of 
the London School of Economics and the Harvard Business School. 
Other Engagement: Partner and Regional Head, The Abraaj Group. Functional Reporting 

-41111  

Mr. Ashary has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since its privatisation 
on November 29, 2005. He is a senior executive with over thirty years of proven 
success in managing international investments, operations of a large diversified 
group, finance, treasury, public accounting, and strategic and corporate planning. He 
currently serves on the boards of several companies in the US and the Middle East. He 
is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accounts of England and Wales. 
Other Engagements: Investment Adviser, Al-Jomaih Holding Co. (Saudi Arabia). 
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Aziz Moolji 
Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Moolji has been a Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company since 
September 2014. He has more than fifteen years' experience in investment banking. At 
Abraaj he is responsible for deal origination, structuring and execution, and portfolio 
management. Previously he was a VP with Merrill Lynch & Co. and a senior associate 
at Goldman Sachs & Co. in New York. Mr. Moolji holds an MBA from The Wharton 
School and dual BSc degrees in Electrical Engineering and Management Science from 
the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. 

Other Engagements: Board Observer, Network International LLC. Board Member, Marine Hospitality Holdings Ltd. 

.9r. 

Noor Ahmed 
Non-Executive Director 

(GOP nominee) 

Mr. Ahmed has been a Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company since 
September 2013 and represents the Government of Pakistan (GoP). Mr. Ahmed 
currently holds the position of Additional Finance Secretary, Finance Division, Ministry 
of Finance, GoP. He holds an MA in Development Studies from the Institute of Social 
Studies in The Hague, Netherlands (specialisation in Public Policy), and an MA in 
History from the University of Punjab, Lahore. 

Other Engagements: Director PHPL, GHPL, IESCO, FESCO, PARCO. 

..r. 

Zafar Abbas 
Non-Executive Director 

(GOP nominee) 

Mr. Abbas is a Non-Executive Director of the Company and represents the 
Government 	of 	Pakistan. 	He 	currently holds 	the 	position 	of Joint 	Secretary 
(Transmission), Ministry of Water & Power, Government of Pakistan. 

Other Engagements: Director: GENCO-Il, Guddu, GENCO-V, Nandipur, GEPCO, NPPMCL. 

.,. 	, 

ig. 

4  

Muhammad Zuhair 
Motiwala 

Non-Executive Director 

(GOP nominee) 

Mr. Motiwala is a Non-Executive Director of the Company and represents the 
Government of Pakistan. An industrialist by profession, he was elected as President 
Karachi Chamber of Commerce & Industry from 2000-2001. Mr. Motiwala led 
Pakistan's trade delegations for promoting investment in the province of Sindh to 
China, UAE, Russia, Turkey, Malaysia, Singapore, Korea and various other countries. 
He is the Honorary Consul General of the Republic of Burundi. 

Other Engagements: Director: Port Qasim Authority, Inter State Gas Systems Limited, Pak Oman Investment 
Company Limited, Education City, Dawood University of Engineering & Technology 
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SECURITE-3 AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN 

6ERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION ON CHANGE OF NAME 

[Under section 40 of the companies Ordinance, 1984 (XL Vii of1984)] 

Copany Registration N.to: 0000002 

I hereby certify that pursuant to the provisions of section 39 of the 

Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XL VII of 1984), the name of KARACHI 

ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY LIMITED has been changed to 

K-ELECTRIC LIMITED and that the said company has been duly 

incorporated as a company limited by shares  under the provisions of the 

said Ordinance. 

This change is subject to the condition that for period of one year from 

the date of issue of this certificate, the company shall continue to mention its 

former name along with its new name on the outside of every office or place 

in which its business is carried on and in every document or notice referred to 

in clauses (a) and (c) of section 143. 

Given under my hand at Karachi this 16th day of January Two 

ThollSa 1 	 Steen. 

(Sidney C. Pereira) 
Joint Registrar/Incharge 

Company Registration Office, 
Karachi 
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN 
COMPANY REGISTRATION OFFICE 

• e. 
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPOR:tTION ON CIIANGE OF NAME 

[Under section 40 of the Companies Ordinance. 1984 (XL I'll of 1984)1 

Company Registmtion No. K-000‘9002 ‘7( 2 

I hereby cern'' ,  hint pursuant to the provisions of section 39 of the 

Companies Ordinance, 1984 XL Vi! of 1934), the name of 	KARACHI 

ELECTRIC' SUPPLY CORPORATION 1.hilITED  hits been changed to 

KARACHI ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY LIMITED  and that the said company 

has been thtly incorporated as a company limited by Shares as a Public company 

under the provisions of the said Ordinance. 

This change is subject to the condition that for period of one year from the 

date of issue of this cerakate, dm company shall continue to mention its boner 

mune olongwith its new Bailie on the outside of every office or place in which its 

business iv carried on and in every document or notice referred to in clauses (a) 

and (c) of section 141 

Given under my hood st Kt u.134{hi:s 9' day of January Two Thousand 

and Eight. 

.0 4., • '44-.• 

Fee Rs. I 000/- 

A If 'ED IIVSSAIM . 
REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES, 

KARACHI 
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• SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION ON CHANGE OF NAME 

[tinder section 40 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLV11 of 1984)] 

Company Registration No: 0000002 

I hereby certify that pursuant to the provisions of section 39 of the 

Companies Ordinance, 1984 (AWL of :;984), the name of KARACHI 

ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY LIMITED  . has been changed to  

K-ELECTRIC LIMITED  and that the said company has been duly 

incorporated as a company limited by' shares  under the provisions of the 

said Ordinance. 

	

. 	. 
This change is sidiject.to the condition: that for period of one year from 

the date of issue of this certificate, the company shall continue to mention its 

former name along with its new name on the outside of every office or place 

in which its business is carried on and in every document or notice referred to 
• 

in clauses (a) and • 0 of seCtieit143.- 

Given under my hand at Karachi this 16th day of January Two 

'Thousa 	• teen. 

x-Y
ir 	Sitirley C Pereira) 

Li  Y  Joint Registrarfincharge 
ompany Registration Office, 

	

k\ 	 Karachi • 
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THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE 1984 
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES 

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION 
OF 

K-ELECTRIC LIMITED 
\\ / 

I. The name of the company is K-Electric Limited. 

II. The registered offices of the Company will be situated in Karachi, Sindh, Pakistan. 

III. 	The objects for which the Company is established are : 

1. To carry on at Karachi and elsewhere in Pakistan, the business of an electric light company 

in all its branches and in particular to construct, lay down, establish and fix all necessary 

cables, wires, lines, accumulators, lamps and works and to generate, accumulate, transmit, 
distribute and supply electricity and to light cities, towns, streets docks, markets, theaters, 
buildings and places both public and private. 

2. To carry on the business of Electrical Engineers, Electricians, Engineers, and Contractors, 

Shopkeepers, Agents and Manufacturers of Electrical apparatus, and of generating, 

producing and supplying light, heat, sound and power by electricity, galvanism, magnetism 

or otherwise, suppliers of electricity whether for the purposes of light, heat, motive power, 

telephonic, telegraphic industrial or other purposes and generally to provide, work, maintain 

and carry out all necessary cables, wires, accumulators, lamps exchanges telephones and 
apparatus. 

3. For the purposes of the above section, to buy, sell, hire or deal in cables, wires, 

accumulators, lamps, exchanges, telephones, fittings and furniture and apparatus of every 

kind with special reference to apparatus connected with the producing, storing, supplying, 

using, regulating or measuring the supply or facilitating the use of electricity or electrical 
currents or force. 

4. To buy, sell, hire, manufacture, deal in, turn to account, plant, machinery, implements, 

convenience, provision's, articles and products capable of being used in connection with the 

operations of or required by workmen and others employed by the Company or Incidentally 
or conveniently connected with any such business as aforesaid. 

5. To construct, purchase, lease or otherwise acquire any tramways, railways, aerial 
ropeways or any other means of transport by land, air or water. 

6. To equip and to maintain and work by electricity, steam, petrol or other mechanical power 

or by animal power, all tramways, railways, aerial ropeways or other means of trans-port by 
air, land or water in which the Company may at any time be interested. 

7. To carry on the business of tramways, railways, omnibus and van proprietors and carrierC) 
of passengers and goods by air, land or water and of manufacturers of and de 61;fn 
tramways, carriages, trucks, locomotives, la 	isir 

# 	o,,, ators, dynamosenther 
chattels and effect and conveniences re 	44 fkattatiehInV; aintaining eq i ping and 

c, 
working tramways, railways, aerial ropewa .0 an-X eai1 	transport by air, land or 
water. 

8. 	To purchase, take in, exchange or lease 

hereditaments and estates and any propert 
therewith and to acquire any grants, concessio 
privileges, and any other interests in land. 

se acquire any lands, 
eon or used or connected 

s, rights easements, licenses, 
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9. To acquire, erect, construct, lay down, enlarge, alter and maintain any buildings, works, 
and machinery necessary or convenient for the Company's' business. 

10. To sell, lease, improve, manage, develop, mortgage, exchange turn to account or 

otherwise deal with, dispose of absolutely, conditionally, or for any, limited interest, and 

grant any leave or license in respect of all or any of the rights or privileges of the Company, 

and to distribute in specie as dividend or bonus any money, shares, stocks, debentures or 

debenture stock that may be accepted as consideration for any such sale, lease, exchange 
or other disposition. 

11. To promote, amalgamate with or buy up any other Company for the purpose of acquiring all 
or any of the property and liabilities of this Company, or for any other purpose which may 
seem directly or indirectly calculated to benefit this other purpose which may seem directly 

or indirectly calculated to benefit this Company having and to take or otherwise acquire and 

hold shares in any other company objects altogether or in part similar to those of this 

Company, or carrying on any business capable of being conducted so as directly or 
indirectly to benefit this Company. 

12. To enter into partnership or into any arrangement for sharing profits, union of interest, co- 

operation, joint venture, reciprocal concession, or otherwise with any person or company 
carrying on or engaged in or about to carry on or engage in any business or transaction 
capable of being conducted so as to directly or indirectly benefit this Company, and to lend 
money to guarantee the contracts of, or otherwise assist any such person or company, and 

to take, or otherwise acquire shares and securities of any such company and to sell, hold, 

re-issue, with or without guarantee, or otherwise deal with the same. 

13. To carry on any other business which may seem to the Company capable of being 

conveniently carried on in connection with the above or calculated to directly or indirectly 

enhance the value of or render profitable any of the Company's property or rights. 

14. To enter into any arrangement with any Government or authority, supreme, municipal, local 
or otherwise that may seem conducive to the Company's objects or any of them; to obtain 
from any such Government or authority any rights, privileges, and concessions which the 
Company may think desirable to obtain and carry out, exercise and comply with any such 
arrangements, rights, privileges and concessions, and to apply for and obtain licenses, 

provisional orders, special Acts or other statutory or parliamentary authority for supplying 

electricity for any public or private purpose. 

promote any Bill or Bills in any parliament or any application or applications to any 

authority for any order, provisional order or license and to enter into any contract to 

nd pay the expenses of or in connection with the same or arising there out, and to 
ite or guarantee the capital required for carrying out any undertaking authorized by 

h Act, order or license. 

rchase or otherwise acquire any patents, brevets d'inventions, licenses, concessions 
ad the like conferring any exclusive or non-exclusive or limited right to use any invention 

which may seem capable of being used for any of the purposes of the Company or, the 

7 acquisition of which may seem calculated directly or indirectly to benefit the Company, and 

rr 	to use, exercise, develop or grant licenses in respect of, or otherwise turn to account, the 
property and right so acquired. 

17. To pay for any property or rights acquired by the Company either in cash or shares with or 
without preferred or deferred right, in respect of dividend or repayment of capital, or 

M: O:1„. 
otherwise, or by any securities which the Company has power to issue or partly in one 

1114°  a.;',.,,r ':Am.,Q0  mode and partly in another and generally on such terms as the Directors may approve. 

18. To issue all or any part of the original or other share capital whether preference or ordinary 
shares of the Company at par or at premium or at discount and as fully or partly paid up. 

• • 

• 



19. To borrow and raise money in such manner as the Company shall think fit and in particular 
by the issue of debentures, mortgage debentures, or debenture stock payable to bearer or 
otherwise and either permanent or redeemable or repayment and collaterally to secure any 
securities of the Company by means of a trust deed or otherwise. 

20. To invest and deal with the moneys of the Company not immediately required upon such 

securities and in such manner as may from time to time be determined. 

21. To make, draw, endorse, accept and negotiate Bills of Exchange, promissory notes or any 
other negotiable instruments. 

22. To receive money on deposit, at interest or otherwise and to lend money, and in particular 
to customers and others having dealings with the Company and to guarantee the 
performance of any contracts. 

23. To remunerate any person or company for services rendered in placing or assisting to 

place or in guaranteeing any of the shares in the Company's capital or any debentures or 
other Securities of the Company. 

4. 24. To indenture, contract or otherwise engage handicraftsmen and other workmen, skilled and 
unskilled and to import labour. 

25. To grant pensions, allowances, gratuities and bonuses to the persons employed by or 
trading with the Company and to aid in the establishment and support of and to subscribe 
to any association or institutions, calculated to benefit persons employed by the Company 
or having dealings with the Company. 

26. To pay out of the funds of the Company all expenses which the Company may lawfully or 

by agreement with Government pay, incident to the formation, registration and advertising 

of or raising money for the Company by debentures or otherwise and the issue of its 

capital, including brokerage and commission for obtaining applications for or taking, placing 

or underwriting, shares, debentures or debenture stock and to apply at the cost of the 

Company to the Government of Pakistan or any other Government Authority, for any 
extension of the Company's powers. 

27. To guarantee the performance of any contract. 

28. 'Co procure the Company to be registered or recognized in any country or place outside 
Pakistan and to keep Branch Registers. 

29. To do all or any of the above acts in any part of the world as principals, agents, contractors, 
trustees or otherwise, and byor through trustees, agents or otherwise, and either alone or 
in conjunction with others. 

• 
30. To do all such other things as are incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above 

objects. 

31. And it is hereby declared that the word "company° in this clause shall be deemed to include 
any authority, partnership or other body of person whether incorporated or not 

incorporated, and the word "person" shall be deemed to include any partnership, 

ssociation or other body of persons, and any company if the context so admits; and the 
ntion is that the objects set forth in each of the several paragraphs of this clquse have 

t• widest possible construction, and shall be in no wise limited or restricted ,reference to 
ference from the terms of any other paragraph of this clause or name(Qt.t6e Company 

• ept as otherwise expressed therein. 
■ `;`. ' 

The Liability of the Members is Limited. 

11612111111"4tfertrieS-L. 
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V. 	The share capital of the Company is Rs.125,000,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred Twenty 
Five Billion Only) divided into the following kinds of shares: 

Share Capital of Rs.115,000,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred Fifteen Billion Only) 

divided into 32,857,142,857 ordinary shares of Rs.3.50 each. 

eve7P'''''' tP 
1160,..otcl 

Joint krgistrur of Companies 

ii. 	Shares Capital of Rs.10,000,000,000 (Rupees Ten Billion Only) divided into 

2,857,142,857 Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.3.50 each. 

WE, the several persons whose names and addresses are subscribed, are desirous of, 

being formed a Company in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association, and we 

respectively agree to take the number of shares in the Capital of the Company set opposite 

our respective names. 

Dated this Sixth day of September 1913. 

Name of Subscriber 	Address and 	 Number of 	Witness to 
Description of 	 Ordinary 	 Signature 

Subscriber 	 Shares taken 
by each 

Subscriber 

T.L.F. Beaumount 	 Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

Ghulamali G. Chagla 	Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

Nadirshaw E. Dinshaw 	Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

W.U. Nicholas 	 Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

B. Frank Jones 	 Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

Chellaram Dulloomal 	Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

Abdool Rahim Saleh 	Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 
Mahomed 

ttit: 

• 

• 
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THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984 
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES 

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

OF 

K-ELECTRIC LIMITED 

PRELIMINARY 

The Regulations contained in Table 'A' referred to in Section 26 (2) in the First Schedule 

to the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (hereinafter called " the Ordinance" shall not apply to 

the Company except as may be reproduced herein. 

2. The Regulations, for the management of the Company and for the observance of the 

Members thereof and their representatives, shall (subject to any exercise of the statutory 
powers of the Company in reference to the repeal or alteration of or addition to its 

regulations by Special Resolution as prescribed under the Ordinance) be such as are 

contained in these Articles. 

DEFINITIONS 

3. The chapter heading shall not affect the construction hereof, and in these Articles, 

unless there is something in subject or context inconsistent therewith : 

"Debenture" includes debenture stock, Bonds, Term Finance Certificates (TFC) and any 

other security other than the shares of the Company, whether constituting a charge on 

the assets of the Company or not. 

"Dividend" means the distribution of profits of the Company to its members. 

"Member" means a member of the Company within the meaning of clause (21) of sub-

section (1) of Section2. 

"Month" means a calendar month according to the English calendar. 

"Office" means the Registered Office of the Company. 

"Participatory Redeemable Capital" or PRC means such Redeemable Capital as is 

entitled to participate in the profit and loss of the Company. 

"Person" shall include a body corporate. 

" includes an attorney duly constituted under a power of attorney. 

able Capital" includes finance obtained on the basis of Participation Term 	11:5i4q 

es (PTC), Musharika Certificates, Term Finance Certificates (TFC), or any ogler.  G.)..1,  

obligation not based on interest as defined in Section 2(30..4),79tthe 
/7—  

tion" means section of the Ordinance. 

"Special Resolution" has the meaning assigned thereto by clause (36) of subsection (1) of 4,, uoro,,
0 
 

Section 2 of the Ordinance. 
(46  

"The Articles "means these Articles of Association, as originally framed or as altered 
from time to time by Special Resolution. 



6 

"The Authority" means the Corporate Law Authority constituted under Section 11. 

"The Board" shall mean the Directors from time to time of the Company acting at a 
meeting or through a committee of Directors or pursuant to written consent. 

/ "The Company" means K-Electric Limited. 

"The Chairman" means the Chairman of the Board appointed from time to time pursuant 
to the Articles. 

"The Chief Executive" means the Chief Executive of the Company appointed from time 
to time pursuant to the Articles and the Ordinance. 

"The Directors" means the Directors of the Company appointed from time to time 

pursuant to these Articles including alternate Directors. 

"The Memorandum" means the Memorandum of Association of the Company as originally 
framed or as altered from time to time in accordance with the provisions of the 
Ordinance. 

"The Ordinance" means the Companies Ordinance 1984, as amended and now in force in 
Pakistan, and any amendment or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force. 

"The Register" means the Register of Members to be kept pursuant to Section 147 of the 
Ordinance. 

"The Seal" means the Common Seal of the Company. 

"The Secretary" means the Secretary for the time being of the Company. 

"In writing" and "Written" includes printing, lithography and other modes of 
representing or reproducing words in a visible form. 

"Words" importing the singular include the plural number and vice versa. 

Words importing the masculine gender only include the feminine gender and words or 
expression contained in the Articles shall bear the same meaning as in the Ordinance. 

ords importing persons include bodies corporate. 

BUSINESS 

business of the Company shall include the several objects expressed in the 
orandum of Association or those which are within its scope and meaning and alt 

ntal matters taken or to be taken in hand as the Directors in their discretion shall 
Ail* fit, and all matters which may appear to the Directors to be expedient for attaining 

&) 	these objects. The business shall be carried on by or under the management of Directors,' 
subject only to such control of General Meetings as is provided for by these Articles and 	, 

• 

the Ordinance. 

PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES 

., 	

Company is a Public Company with Limited Liability. 

too' 
4",-.6- CAPITAL  

6. 	The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs.125,000,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred 
Twenty Five Billion Only) divided into the following kinds of shares:- 
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i. Share Capital of Rs.I15,000,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred Fifteen Billion Only) divided 
into 32,857,142,857 ordinary shares of Rs.3.50 each. 

ii. Share Capital of Rs.10,000,000,000 (Rupees Ten Billion Only) divided into 2,857,142,857 
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.3.50 each. 

SHARES 

7(i) Subject to the conditions, here in contained the shares shall be under the control of the 
Directors who may allot or otherwise dispose of the same to such persons, on such terms 
and conditions, and either for cash or for a consideration other than cash, as the 
Directors think fit. 

(ii) The Company shall have the power to issue Redeemable Capital, by whatever name 
called liable to be redeemed, or liable at the option of the Company to be redeemed in 
any manner permissible under the provision of the Ordinance or conditions of any 
agreement for issue of such certificate or instrument: - 

- 	The Redeemable Preference Shares shall be entitled to a preferential dividend at the 
rate fixed at the General Meeting of the Company. 

- 	The preferential dividend shall be cumulative. 

The preference shareholder(s) shall only be entitled to preferential dividend and 

shall not be entitled to any other dividend (whether cash, bonus shares, right shares 

etc.) to which ordinary shareholders may become entitled from time to time. 

The Redeemable Preference Shares shall be redeemed on redemption date or shall 

be converted into ordinary shares as deemed expedient by the Board of Directors. 
The Board of Directors shalt also finalize other modalities ft mechanism with regard 
to issue of Redeemable Preference Shares, payment of preferential dividend, 
redemption, conversion etc. 

- 	Redeemable Preference shareholders shall not be entitled to attend or vote at the 
meetings of shareholders of the Company. 

(iii) The Company may, upon terms and conditions contained in an agreement in writing, 

issue to one or more Scheduled Banks, Financial Institutions or such other persons as are 
specified for the purpose by the Federal Government by notification in the Official 
Gazette, either severally, jointly or through their syndicate, any instrument in the nature 

of Redeemable Capital in any or several forms in consideration of any funds, moneys, 
accommodations received or to be received by the Company whether in cash or specie or 

against any promise, guarantee, undertaking or indemnity issued to or in favour of or for 
the benefit of the Company, subject to the legal provisions, on the issue and Section 120 
of the Ordinance. 

(iv) TN Board shall, as regards any allotment of shares, duly comply with such provisions of 
Sec. ns 68 to 73 as may be applicable. 

SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH 
Q, 

8. StO ct to the provisions of the Ordinance and the Articles, the Board may allot and issue 
s res in the capital of the Company as payment or part payment for any property sold or 
transferred, goods or machinery supplied, or for services rendered to the Company in the.,1,4',1:2 
conduct of the business or affairs, and any shares which may be so allotted may be..is0ed 
as fully paid up shares, and if so issued, shalt be deemed to be fully paid up sii0e:1‘') 	ril.  

c \  
FRACTIONAL SHARES  

9. If and whenever as a result of an issue of new shares any consolidation or sub-division °V.' 
shares any Member becomes entitled to hold shares in fractions, the Board shall not be 4.-4̀.  

J 
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required to offer or issue such fractional shares and shall be entitled to sell whole shares 
at a reasonable price and pay and distribute to and amongst the Members entitled to 
such fractional shares in due proportion the net proceeds of the sale thereof. For the 

purpose of giving effect to any such sale, the Board may authorize any person to transfer 
the shares sold to the purchaser thereof, and the purchaser shall be registered as the 
holder of the shares comprised in such transfer but he shall not be entitled to see the 
application of the purchase money nor shalt his title to the shares be affected by any 
irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the sale. 

ISSUE OF FURTHER SHARES 

10. Subject to Section 86, where at any time the Board decides to increase the issued capital 
of the Company by issuing any further shares, then subject to any direction to the 
contrary that may be given by the Company in General Meeting, such shares shall be 
offered to the Members in proportion to the existing shares held by each Member, and 
such offer shall be made by notice specifying the number of shares to which the Member 
is entitled and limiting a time within which the offer, if not accepted, will be deemed to 

be declined and after the expiration of such time, or on receipt of information from the 
Member to whom notice is given that he declines to accept the shares offered, the Board 

may dispose of the same in such manner as it may consider most beneficial to the 

Company. 

The Company shall not give whether directly or indirectly, and whether by means of a 

loan, guarantee, provisions of security or otherwise, any financial assistance for the 

purpose of or in connection with a purchase made or to be made by any person of any 
shares in the Company, nor shall the Company make a loan for any purpose whatsoever 
on the security of its shares, but nothing in the Articles shall prohibit any transaction 

which may be permitted by the Ordinance. 

REGISTER OF MEMBERS 

11. The Company shalt cause to be kept a Register of Members and Index of Members in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 147 of the Ordinance. 

EVIDENCE OF MEMBERSHIP 

12. Any application for subscription signed by or on behalf of an applicant or subscriber for 
shares in the Company, followed by an allotment of any shares therein, shall be an 

ptance of shares within the meaning of the Articles, and every person who thus or 
ise accepts any shares and whose name is entered on the Register shall for the 

of the Articles be a Member. 

TRUST NOT RECOGNISED 

151 4,tr here in otherwise provided, the Company shall be entitled to treat the person 

4angli_nYtige name appears on the Register as the holder of any shares as  the absolute owner 

therjeiit, and accordingly shall not (except as ordered by a Court of competent 

''',',4‘iiksdiction or as by law required) be bound to recognize any trust or equity or benami, 

equitable, contingent or other claim to or interest in such shares, on the part of any 
other person whether or not it shall have expressed or implied notice thereof. 

CERTIFICATES 

Every Member shall, on payment of such sum as the Directors may prescribe, be entitled 
00.s o

to one certificate for all the shares registered in his name or upon paying such fee as the 
Board may from time to time determine, to several certificates each for one or more 
shares. Every certificate of shares shall specify the number and denote the number of 
shares in respect of which it is issued, and the amount paid thereon, such certificates 
shall be issued under Seal, and shall bear the signature of one Director and shall be 
countersigned by the Secretary or by a Second Director, or by some other person 
appointed for that purpose by the Board. The Directors may by resolution determine, 
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either generally or in any particular case, that the signature of any Director (s) may be 
affixed by some mechanical means in the mode and manner specified in such resolution, 
provided that, in respect of a share or shares held jointly by several persons, the 
CoMpany shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate, and delivery of a 
certificate for a share to one of several joint-holders shall be sufficient delivery to all. 

ISSUE OF NEW CERTIFICATE IN PLACE OF 
DEFACED, LOST OR DESTROYED CERTIFICATE 

15. If any Certificate is worn-out, defaced or rendered useless, then upon production thereof 
to the Board, it may order the same to be cancelled and may issue a new Certificate in 
lieu thereof, and if any Certificate is lost or destroyed, then on proof thereof, to the 
satisfaction of the Board and on such indemnity as the Board deems adequate being 
given, a new Certificate in lieu thereof shall be given to the party entitled to such lost or 
destroyed Certificate. The new Certificate may be issued on such terms and fee as may 
be prescribed by the Board including payment of expenses incurred by the Company in 
investigating title. 

TRANSFER OF SHARES 

16. The instrument of transfer of any shares in the Company shall be executed both by the 
transferor and transferee, and the transferor shall be deemed to remain holder of the 
share until the name of the transferee is entered in the Register of Members in respect 
thereof. The Company shall keep a book to be called the "Register of Transfer" and 
therein shall be fairly and distinctly entered the particulars of every transfer or 
transmission of any share. 

FORM OF TRANSFER 

17. The instrument of transfer of any share shall be in writing in the usual common form or in 
the form appearing in the next paragraph or as near thereto as circumstances will admit. 

K-Electric Limited 

"I, 	 son/daughter/wife 	of 	 and 	of 
	 being a 	 ■ national, called the "Transferor" in consideration of 

the sum of Rs. 	  (Rupees 	 paid to me 
by 	 son/daughter/wife 	 of 
	  of 	 a 	national 	of  	and 

Muslim/Non-Muslim (hereinafter called "The Transferee") do hereby transfer to the 
Transferee   share(s) numbered 	in the undertaking called 
K-Electric Limited to hold the same unto the said Transferee, his.  (or her) 'executors, 
administrators and assigns subject to the several conditions on which I held the • same 
immediately before the execution hereof, and I, the Transferee, do hereby agree to take the said 
	 subject to the conditions aforesaid. As witness our hands the day of. 

.01/4.p o  
Ka1.,;.aCh.: 

Vow 	
: ..  

tness 
Oro  

dated 

Full Address: 

Signature: 	 
Transferor: 

Signature: 	  
Transferee 	 u,  
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Witness 

Signature ; 	 Full Name 
Father's / Husband name 

Full Address : 	 Nationality: 

Occupation and Full Address 

of Transferee 

The Board may from time to time alter or vary the transfer form. 

CONDITIONS FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER 

18. The Directors shall not refuse to register any transfer of fully paid shares unless the 

instrument of transfer is defective or invalid or is not accompanied by the Certificate of 
the shares to which it relates. 

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES 

19(i) Any Member may make and deposit with the company a nomination in writing specifying 

one or more eligible persons who or each of whom, in the event of the death of the 

Member, may be entered in the Register as the holder of such number of shares specified 
in the nomination for such nominee or each such nominee of which the Member remains 

the registered holder at the date of his death. A person shalt be eligible for nomination 

for the purposes of this Article only if he is a spouse, parent, brother, sister or child of 

the Member nominating him and the applicable relationship shall be specified in the 
nomination in respect of each nominee. A Member may at any time by notice in writing 
cancel, or by making and depositing with the company another nomination before his 

death vary, any nomination already made by him pursuant to this Article. In the event of 

the death of a Member any person nominated by him in accordance with this Article may, 
on written application accompanied by the relative share certificate and evidence 

establishing the death of the Member, request the Company to register himself in place 
of this deceased Member as the holder of the number of shares for which the nomination 

in his favour had been made and deposited with the company, and if it shall appear to 
the Directors that it is proper so to do, the Directors may register the nominee as the 

holder of those shares in place of the deceased Member. 

(ii) 	In case of death of a Member who was a joint holder of shares, the survivor or survivors 

shalt be the only persons recognized by the Company as having any title to his interest in 
shares. If the deceased Member was a sole holder of shares, the nominee or vosti;,,, 11  i

n 	es of the deceased where a nomination under Article 19(i) is effective, shall be 
AOC aC" the 	person recognized by the Company as having any title to his interest in the 

n case of such deceased Member who had not made a nomination under Article 
legal personal representative of such deceased Member where he was a sole 

all be the only person recognized by the Company as having any title to his 
in the shares. 

Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or insolvency of a 
Member may, upon such evidence being produced as may from time to time property be 
required by the Directors and subject as hereinafter provided, elect either to be 
registered himself as the holder of the shares or instead of being registered himself, to 
make such transfer of the share as the deceased or insolvent person could have made, 

but, the Directors shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or suspend 
..„,1"„,..YegiRtration as they would have had in the case of a transfer of the share by that Member 

his death or insolvency as the case may be. 

■," 
FF 

• 

• 



• (iv) If the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered himself, he shah deliver or 
send to the Company a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so elects. If he 
shall elect to have another person registered he shall testify his election by executing to 
that person a transfer of the share. Alt the limitations, restrictions and provisions of 
these Articles relating to the right to transfer and the registration of transfers of shares 
shall be applicable to any such notice or transfer as aforesaid as if the death or 
insolvency of the Member had not occurred and the notice or transfer were a transfer 
signed by that Member. 

(v) A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insolvency of the holder 
shall be entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to which he would be 
entitled if he was the registered holder of the share, except that he shall not before 
being registered as a Member in respect of the share, be entitled in respect of it to 
exercise any rights conferred by Membership in relation to meetings of the Company. 

(vi) The Company shah incur no liability or responsibility whatsoever in consequence of its 
registering or giving effect to any transfer of shares made or purporting to be made by 
any apparent legal owner thereof (as shown or appearing in the Register) to the person 
having or claiming any equitable right, title or interest to or in the same shares, 
notwithstanding that the Company may have had notice of such equitable right, title or 
interest or notice prohibiting registration of such transfer, and the Company shall not be 
bound or required to regard or attend or give effect to any notice which may be given to 

• 
it of any equitable right, title or interest, or be under any liability whatsoever for 
refusing or neglecting so to do, but the Company shall nevertheless be at liberty to 
regard and attend to any such notice and give effect thereto, if the Board shall so think 
fit. 

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL 

• 

20(i) The Company may from time to time by Special Resolution increase the authorized share 
capital by such sum to be divided into shares of such amount as the resolution shall 
prescribe. 

(ii) Except and so far as otherwise provided by the conditions of issue or by the Articles, any 
capital raised by the creation of new shares shall be considered part of the authorized 
capital and shall be subject to the provision herein contained with reference to transfer 
and transmission, voting and otherwise. 

(iii) The Company may by Special Resolution reduce its share capital in any manner and with 
and subject to any incident, authorization and consent required by law. 

(iv) The Company may in a General Meeting by Ordinary Resolution alter the conditions of its 
Memorandum as follows: 

(a) Consolidate and divide all'and any of its share capital into shares of larger amount 
than its existing shares. 

waZiStiatio,, 

shares which at the date of General Meeting have not been taken or agr,Vct 
taken by any person and diminish the amount of its share capital-pit, tq.  

it of the shares so cancelled. 	 fk 

POWER TO BORROW  
POWER OF THE BOARD  

or■'"%o „o. 
21. The Board may from time to time borrow any moneys for the purpose of the Compares,  

`E
,̀.10`' 

Cc  
from the Members or from any other persons, firms, companies, corporations,-- 

(b) Sub-divide shares or any of them into shares of smaller amounts than originally 
fixed by the Memorandum, subject nevertheless to the provisions of the Ordinance 

hat behalf. 
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government agencies, institutions or banks, or the Directors may themselves lend moneys 
or provide finance to the company. 

GIVING OF SECURITIES 

22, The Board may borrow moneys and secure payment thereof in such manner and upon 
such terms and conditions in all respects as it may think fit, and in particular by the issue 

of bonds, debentures, or by mortgage or charge or other security on the whole or any 

part of the property, assets and rights of the Company, (both present and future), 

including its uncalled capital for the time being. 

CONDITIONS OF BONDS, ETC 

23. Any bonds, debentures or other securities issued or to be issued by the Company shall be 

under the control of the Board which may issue them upon such terms and conditions and 

in such manner and for such consideration as shall be considered by the Board to be for 

the benefit of the company. 

ISSUE AT DISCOUNT 

24. Any bonds debentures or other securities may be issued at a discount premium or 

otherwise and with any special privileges as to redemption, surrender, drawings, 

convertibility into shares, attending and voting at General Meetings of the Company, 

appointment of Directors, and otherwise, provided that debentures with the right to be 

converted into shares shalt not be issued without the consent of the Company in General 

Meeting. 

INDEMINTY TO DIRECTORS 

25. If Directors or any of them or any other person shall become personally liable for the 

payment of any sum primarily due from the company, the Board may execute or cause to 
be executed any mortgage, charge or security over or affecting the whole or any part of 

the assets of the Company by way of indemnity to secure the Directors or person so 

becoming liable aforesaid from any loss in respect of such liability. 

GENERAL MEETINGS  
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

oSitailOn phi

AcS. %1 
41> Ka(  

\NI ti 
of '0 

foe 

ange 

neral Meeting, to be called Annual General Meeting, shall be held, in accordance 
he provisions of Section 158, within eighteen months from the date of incorporation 

Company and thereafter once at least in every calendar year within a period of 

ionths following the close of its financial year and not more than fifteen months 
the holding of its last preceding Annual General Meeting as may be determined by 

Board. 

EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING 

27„--1 All General Meetings of the Company other than an Annual General Meeting shalt be 
called Extraordinary General Meetings. 

,1•4 kos WHEN EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS TO BE CALLED OR 
Vri REQUISITIONED 

4)-46C  

28. The Board may call an Extraordinary General Meeting whenever it shall deem fit. An 

Extraordinary General Meeting may also be called on the requisition of the Members in 

accordance with the provision of Section 159. 
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NOTICE OF MEETINGS 

29. Twenty-one day's notice at the least (exclusive of the day on which the notice is served 
or deemed to be served, but inclusive of the day for which notice is given) specifying the 

place, the day and the hour of General Meeting and in case of special business, all 

material facts concerning such business, shall be given in a manner provided by the 
Ordinance for the General Meetings to such persons as are, under the Ordinance or the 
Articles, entitled to receive such notice from the Company. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS  

30. All business shall be deemed special that is transacted at an Extraordinary General 

Meeting, and also all that is transacted at an Annual General Meeting with the exception 
of declaring a dividend, the consideration of the accounts, balance sheet and the reports 

of Directors and Auditors, the election of Directors, the appointment of and the fixing of 

the remuneration of the Auditors. Where it is proposed to pass a Special Resolution at a 

General Meeting, notice of the Meeting shall specify the intention to propose the 
Resolution as a Special Resolution. 

OMISSION TO GIVE NOTICE 

31. In a case in which notice of any Meeting is given to the shareholders individually, the 
accidental omission to given notice to any of the shareholders or the accidental non-
receipt thereof shall not invalidate the proceedings at any such Meeting. 

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETING QUORUM 

32. Ten Members, present in person and representing not less than [twenty five (25%)] of the 
total voting power of the company either on their own account or as proxies shall be a 
quorum for a General Meeting. No business shall be transacted at any General Meeting 

unless the requisite quorum is present at the time when the Meeting proceeds to 
business. 

CHAIRMAN OF GENERAL MEETING 

33. The Chairman shall be entitled to take the chair at every General Meeting. If there is no 

Chairman or if at any Meeting he shall not be present within fifteen minutes after the 

time appointed for holding such Meeting or is unwilling to act, the Directors present may 
elect a Director as Chairman and if no Director present is willing to act as Chairman, the 
Members present shall choose one of the Members to be the Chairman. 

ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING FOR LACK OF QUORUM 

34. If within half an hour after the time appointed for the holding of a General Meeting a 
quorum is not present, the Meeting if convened on the requisition of the Members shall 
be dissolved, and in every other case shall stand adjourned to the same day in the week 
following at the same time and place or to such other day, time and place as the Board 

may by notice to share holders appoint. If at the adjourned meeting, a quorum is not 
t the Members present personally being not less than two shall be the quorum and 

sact the business for which the meeting was called. 

ADJOURNMENT BY CHAIRMAN 

man with the consent of a General Meeting may adjourn any Meeting from tilTe? 
and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at anyadj46,thicr 

ting other than business left unfinished at the Meeting from which tpelt3i6brnment 
took place. 

,Sce,  00s,  
patO 

ev6c. 
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VOTING ON RESOLUTIONS BY SHOW OF HANDS AND WHEN POLL DEMANDED 

36. At any General Meeting a Resolution put to the vote of the Meeting shall be decided on a 
show of hands, unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the results of the show of 

hands) demanded by at least five Members present in person or by Proxy or by the 
chairman of the Meeting, or by any Member or Members present in person or by Proxy 
and having not less than one - tenth of the total voting power in respect of the resolution 

or by any Member or Members present in person or by Proxy and holding shares in the 

company conferring a right to vote on the resolution being shares on which an aggregate 

sum has been paid up which is not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the 
shares conferring that right, and unless a poll is so demanded, a declaration by the 

Chairman that a resolution has been carried or carried unanimously or by particular 

majority or lost, and an entry to that effect in the books of the proceedings of the 
company shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without further proof of the number or 
proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against such Resolution. 

CASTING VOTE 

36a. In the case of equality of votes whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the Chairman of 

the meeting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the poll is demanded, 
shall be entitled to a second or casting vote. 

POLL 

37. If a poll is demanded as aforesaid it shall be taken in such manner and at such time and 

place as the Chairman of the Meeting directs, and either at once or after an interval or 

adjournment of not more than fourteen days from the day on which the poll is demanded 
and the result of the poll shall be the resolution passed at the Meeting at which the poll 
was held. The demand for a poll may be withdrawn at any time by the person or persons 
who made the demand. 

POLL ON ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND ADJOURNMENT 

38. Any poll demanded on the election of a Chairman of Meeting or any question of 

adjournment shall be taken at the Meeting and without adjournment. 

EFFECT OF POLL 

39. The demand for a poll shall not prevent the continuation of a Meeting for the transaction 
of any business, other than the question on which the poll was demanded. 

MINUTES 

Mini es shall be made in books provided for the purpose of all resolutions and 
prdi -dings at General Meetings, and any such Minutes if signed by any person purporting 

e been the Chairman of the Meeting or next following Meeting shalt be conclusive 

nce of the facts therein stated without further proof. 

MINUTES 	BOOKS 

41. The Books containing Minutes of Proceedings of General Meetings of the Company shall 
be kept at the Registered Office of the Company and during business Hours (subject to 
reasonable restrictions as the Board may from time to time impose but so that not less 

than two hours each day is allowed for inspection) be open to the inspection of any 
Member without charge. 

.0,00:0041 

_„,9too or"0 4P  

42. Except as provided in Article 56 hereof, upon a show of hands every person entitled to 
vote and present in person or by Proxy shall have one vote, and upon a poll every 

( 

VOTES OF MEMBERS 
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Member entitled to vote and present in person or by Proxy shall have one vote for every 
share held by him. 

RIGHT TO VOTE OF JOINT HOLDERS 

43. In case of joint-holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or 
by Proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint-holders; and 
for this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in 
the Register. 

REPRESENTATIVES OF CORPORATE MEMBERS 

44. A company or other body corporate which is a Member of the Company may, by 
resolution of its Directors, or Proxy signed by authorized officers, authorize any of its 
officials or any other persons to act as its representative at any meeting of the Company 
and the person so authorized shall he entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of 
the company which he represents as if he was an individual shareholder of the company. 

VOTING BY MEMBER OF UNSOUND MIND 

111  45. A Member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court 
having jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote, whether on show of hand or on a poll, by his 
committee or other legal guardian, and any such committee or legal guardian may, on a 
poll, vote by Proxy. 

POLL BY PROXY 

46. On a poll, votes may be given either personally or by Proxy. 

PROXY  

47. Every Proxy shall be appointed in writing under the hand of the appointer or by an agent 
duly authorized under a Power of Attorney or if such appointer is a company or 
corporation under the Common Seal of the company or corporation or the hand of its 
Attorney who may be the appointer. A Proxy must be a Member. A Proxy shall have right 
as respects speaking and voting at a meeting as are available to a Member personally 
present at the Meeting. A Member shall not be entitled to appoint more than one Proxy 
to attend any one Meeting. If any Member appoints more than one Proxy for any one 
Meeting and more than one instruments of Proxy are deposited with the Company, all 
such instruments shall be rendered invalid. • 	IRREVOCABLE PROXY 

48. A Proxy declared expressly on its face to be irrevocable shall not be revoked or be 
deemed revoked by the Member giving such Proxy without the consent pf. the Proxy-
holder, whether by attendance at any General Meeting held during the period of such 
Proxy or by any other action on his part whatsoever or otherwise during the term of such 

*P `t Karachi 
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	y if such Proxy is furnished to and filed with the records of the Company, and the 
ny shall be bound to recognize and give effect to such Proxy in accordance with 

terry hereof. 

PROXY TO BE DEPOSITED AT THE OFFICE 

e3„ CIAELI 	
•erson shall act as Proxy unless the instrument of his appointment and the Jon 	%% 

ttorney, if any, under which it is signed, shall be deposited at the Off!' 
eight hours before the time for holding the Meeting at which he proposedko vote. 

FORM OF PROXY 

50. An instrument appointing a Proxy may be in the following form or a form as near the 4c104 
as may be; 



first Directors shall be appointed by the subscribers to the Memorandum and shall 
retired from office at the first Annual General Meeting of the Company 

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 

the first appointment of Directors, the number of elected Directors fixed by the 
alyAk NTN,0 ,̀  Oard under Article 54 shall be elected to office by the Members in General Meeting in 

the-following manner, namely:- 

16 

	of 	 in the district of 	being a Member 
of the K-Electric Limited hereby appoint 

	

of   as my Proxy to vote for me and on my behalf at the 
(annual, extraordinary, as the case may be ) General Meeting of the company to be held on the - 
	day of 	and at any adjournment thereof". 

VALIDITY OF PROXY 

51. A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of Proxy shall be valid 
notwithstanding the previous death of principal or revocation of the Proxy or of any 
power of attorney under which such Proxy was signed, provided that no intimation in 
writing of the death or revocation shall be received at the office of the Company before 
the Meeting or the adjourned Meeting at which Proxy is used. 

VALIDITY OF VOTE 

52. No objection shall be made to the validity of any vote except at the Meeting or at the 
poll at which such vote shall he tendered, and every vote whether given personally or by 
Proxy not disallowed at such Meeting or poll shall be deemed valid for all purposes of 
such meeting or poll. 

CHAIRMAN TO DECIDE 

53. If any question is raised, the Chairman of the Meeting shall decide on the validity of 
every vote tendered at such Meeting in accordance with these Articles. 

DIRECTORS 

54. The number of Directors shall not be less than seven (7) nor more than thirteen (13) 
elected Directors. The Board shall fix the number of elected Directors of the Company 
not later than thirty-five (35) days before the convening of the General Meeting at which 
Directors are to be elected and the number so fixed shall not be changed except with the 
prior approval of the General Meeting of the Company. 

FIRST DIRECTORS 

a Member shall have such number of votes as is equal to the product of voting 
shares held by him and the number of Directors to be elected; 

Member may give all his votes to a single candidate, or divide them between 
ti,,,„:.,,.6,..cr..%,.■\"',`,Avo-niore than one of the candidates in such manner as he may choose; 

the candidate who gets the highest number of votes shall be declared elected as 
Director and then the candidate who gets the next highest number of votes shall be 
so declared, and so on until the total number of Directors to be elected have been 
so elected; 



I 

17 

(ii) Where the number of candidates is equal to or less than number of Directors to be 
elected it will not be necessary to hold an election as laid down in clause (i) of this 
Article and all the candidates shall be deemed to have been elected under this Article. 

TERM OF OFFICE 

57. A Director elected under Article 56 shall hold office for a period of three years unless he 
earlier resigns, becomes disqualified from becoming Director or otherwise ceases to hold 
office. An election of Directors in the manner prescribed by the preceding Article shall 
be held once in every three years. 

REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS 

58. The Company may by resolution in General Meeting remove a Director appointed under 
Article 55 or 60 or elected or deemed to have been elected under Article 56. 

Provided that a resolution for removing a Director shall not be deemed to have been 
passed unless the number of votes cast in favour of such a resolution is not less than: 

(i) The minimum number of votes that were cast for the election of a Director at the 
immediately preceding election of Directors, if the resolution relates to removal of 
Director elected in the manner provided in Article 56; or 

(ii) The total number of votes for the time being computed in the manner laid down in 
Article 56 divided by the number of Directors for the time being if the resolution relates 
to removal of a Director appointed under Article 55 or 60. 

DISQUALIFICATION AS A DIRECTOR 

58a. A person shall be disqualified for appointment as Director of the Company on any one or 
more of the grounds enumerated in Section 187 of the Ordinance. 

CONTINUING DIRECTORS TO ACT 

59. The continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their body, but if the 
minimum falls below the number fixed by Article 54 thereof, the Directors shall not, 
except for the purpose of filling a vacancy in their number or convening a General 
Meeting, act so tong as the number remains below the minimum. 

CASUAL VACANCY 

ctors may at any time appoint any person to be a Director to fill a casual vacancy 
d. Any Director so appointed shall hold office for the remainder of the term of 

in whose place he is appointed. 

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 

to the Ordinance, until otherwise determined by the Company in General 
mg every Director (including an alternate Director but excluding the Chief Executive 

and a full time Working Director) shall be entitled to be paid as remuneration for his 

Director), shall be entitled to be reimbursed his reasonable expenses incurred 	(r.  

services for Meetings of Board and Committees of Directors as may be prescribed by the 
Board and per meeting attended by him. Each Director (including each alternate 	;01  
consequence of his attendance at meetings of the Directors or of Commi*OlSi: 
Directors. 	 rT_ \tY') 

EXTRA REMUNERATION MAY BE PAID TO DIRECTOR 
07)  

62. Any Director who serves on any Committee or who devotes special attention to tatirvc 
business of the Company or who otherwise performs services which, in the opiniori of the 
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Board, are outside the scope of the statutory duties of a Director may be paid such extra 
remuneration as may be fixed by the Board. 

SHARE QUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

63. Save and except that a Director must be a Member (unless he represents the 
Government, an institution (including a multi-national company) or an authority which is 
a member of the Company, or is a whole time working Director, or a Chief Executive /or 

a person representing a creditor on the Board, such Director shall not require any share 
qualification, so long as only subscribers shares are in issue. Thereafter, the qualification 
of a Director shall be his holding shares in his own name of such value as may be 
prescribed by the Ordinance. In the case of Directors representing interest holding shares 
of requisite value, no such share qualification shall be required, provided intimation in 
writing as to such representation is lodged with the company forthwith upon appointment 
/ election of a Director. 

,sktgistrai,04 0  

ON raerli 
e 	 cv410 is not a Member. 

ty' 
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PrO/ided that this clause (viii) shall not apply in the case of: 

VACATION OF OFFICE OF DIRECTOR  

64. The office of a Director shall ipso facto be vacated if: 

(A) he becomes ineligible to be appointed as a Director on any one or more of the grounds 

enumerated as follows, that is to say, he: 

(i) is a minor, 

(ii) is or becomes of unsound mind 

(iii) has applied to be adjudicated as an insolvent and his application is pending; 

(iv) is an un-discharged insolvent; 

(v) has been convicted by court of law for an offence involving moral turpitude; 

(vi) has been debarred from holding such office under any provision of the Ordinance; 

(vii) has betrayed lack of fiduciary behaviour and a declaration to this effect has been 
made by the Court under Section 217 at any time during the preceding five years; 

(a) a person representing the Government or an institution or authority which is 
a Member; 

(b) a whole-time Director who is an employee of the company; 

(c) a Chief Executive; or 

(d) A person representing a creditor. 

(B) he absents himself from three consecutive meetings of the Directors or from all the 
meetings of the Directors for a continuous period of three months, whichever is the 
longer, without leave of absence from the Directors; 

(C) he or any firm of which he is a partner or any private company of which he is a Director: 

(I) 
	

without the sanction of the Company in General Meeting accepts or holds any 
office of profit under the Company other than of Chief Executive or a legal or 
technical adviser or a banker, or 
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(ii) accepts a loan or guarantee from the company in contravention of Section 195 (if 
applicable in terms of that Section); 

(D) he resigns his office by notice in writing to the company; 

(E) he, being a Director who is an employee of the Company, ceases to be an employee of 
the Company for whatsoever reason. 

(F) he does not hold or ceases to hold the share qualification, if any necessary for his 
appointment. 

POWERS OF DIRECTORS 

65. The control of the Company shall be vested in the Board and the business of the Company 
shall be managed by the Board, which may pay all expenses incurred in forming and 
registering the Company, and may exercise all such powers of the Company as are not by 
the Ordinance or by these Articles required to be exercised by the Company in General 

Meeting subject nevertheless to the regulations of these Articles to the provisions of the 
Ordinance and such regulations,(not inconsistent with the aforesaid regulations or 
provisions) as may be prescribed by the Company in General Meeting, but no regulation 
made by the Company in General Meeting shall invalidate any prior act of the Board 
which would have been valid if the regulation had not been made. 

POWER TO OBTAIN FINANCES AND ISSUING SECURITIES 

66. The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow and mortgage or charge 
its undertaking, property and assets, (both present and future), and to issue Debentures 
and other securities, whether outright or as collateral security for any debt, liability or 
obligation of the Company, or of any third party. 

DIRECTORS TO COMPLY WITH THE ORDINANCE 

67. The Directors shall duly comply with the provisions of the Ordinance or any statutory 

modification thereof for the time being in force, and in particular with the provisions in 
regard to the registration of the particulars of mortgage and charges affecting the 
property of the Company or created by it, to the keeping of a Register of the Directors, 
and to the sending to the registrar of an Annual list of Members and a summary of 
particulars relating thereto and notice of any consolidation or increase of share capital, 
or sub-division of shares and copies of Special Resolutions and a copy of the Register of 
Directors and notification of any changes therein. 

RETIRING DIRECTOR SHALL BE ELIGIBLE FOR RE-ELECTION 
1,6  ugis (rat 

e Kai&thi ,„, ring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The retiring Directors shall continue,. 
* 	.P---"\• to \-orm their functions until their successors are elected in the manner prescribecrby -* 

.,. 
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ALTERNATE DIRECTOR 
POWER TO APPOINT ALTERNATE DIRECTOR 

.01-  em 

68. Any Director not permanently resident in Pakistan or any Director so resident 'rut "Icz,c,' 
intending to be absent from Pakistan for a period of not less than three months rh-ay 
appoint any person acceptable to the Board to be an Alternate Director of the company 
to act for him. Every such appointment shall be in writing under the hand of the Director 
making the appointment. An Alternate Director so appointed shall not be entitled to 
appoint any other Director, but shall otherwise be subject to provisions of the Articles 
with regards to Directors, except that he need not be a Member nor shall he require any 
share qualification. An Alternate Director shall be entitled to receive notices of all 
meetings of the Board, and to attend and vote as a Director at any such meeting at which 
the Director appointing him is not personally present, and generally to perform all the 
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functions of his appointer as Director in the absence of such appointer. An Alternate 
Director shalt ipso facto cease to be an Alternate Director if his appointer for any reason 
ceases to be a Director or if and when his appointer comes or returns to Pakistan, or if 
the appointee is removed from office by notice in writing under the hand of the 
appointer. 

The appointment of an alternate Director will constitute leave of absence from the Board 
for the Director for whom such alternate is appointed during such Director's absence. 

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING OF DIRECTORS  

69. The Directors may meet together for the dispatch of business, adjourn, end otherwise 
regulate meetings of the Board as they think fit. A Resolution moved at any meetings of 
Directors shall be passed by a majority vote. The Chief Executive or the Secretary may at 
any time and shall on the written requisition of two Directors at any time, summon a 
meeting of the Board, unless otherwise decided by the Board, at least seven clear days 
notice must be given to all Directors to summon a meeting of the Board, and such notice 
shall set forth the purpose or purposes for which such meeting is summoned. With the 
consent of all the Directors entitled to receive notice of meeting, or to attend or vote at, 
any such meeting of the Board may be convened by shorter notice than specified in this 
Article. 

Any Director may waive notice of the time, place and purpose of any meeting of directors 
either before, at or after such meeting. 

69-A. The meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees of Directors in emergent 
situations may be held through tele / video conferencing pursuant to such conditions and 
guidelines specified by SECP from time to time. 

69-B. The Directors shall meet together at least once in every quarter of every financial year. 

QUORUM OF DIRECTOR'S MEETING AND POWERS 

A meeting of the Board for the time being at which a quorum is present shall be 
competent to exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and discretion by or under 
the Article vested in or exercisable by the Board generally. Six Directors or 1/3rd of their 
number whichever is greater, for the time being personally present shall constitute a 
quorum, subject to the provisions of the Ordinance. For the purpose of calculating one-
third any fraction shall he ignored. 

4\ 	 CHAIRMAN 
The Chairman shall, whenever present, act as Chairman at each meeting of the Board, 
but if at any meeting the chairman is present and not wilting to act or is absent beyond 
ten minutes after the time fixed for holding the same, the Directors present shall within 
fifteen minutes of the time fixed for the meeting choose one of their Members to be 
chairman of such meeting. 

• 

WHEN ACTS OF DIRECTORS OR COMMITTEE  
VALID NOTWITHSTANDING DEFECTIVE APPOINTMENT 

All acts by any meeting of the Board or of a committee of Directors, or by any person 
acting as Director or Alternate Director shall, notwithstanding that it be afterwards 
discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of any such Directors or 
persons acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as 
if every such Director or person had been duly appointed and was qualified to act. 
Provided that as soon as any such defect has come to notice, the Director or other person 
concerned shall not exercise the right of this office till the defect has been rectified. 

RESOLUTION BY CIRCULATION  
73. Except for the matters as are required by Section 196 of the Ordinance to be decided at 

a meeting of the Board, a resolution in writing signed by majority of the Directors shall 
be effective as if such resolution had been passed at a meeting of the Directors. 
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COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS  

74. The Board may from time to time delegate all, or any of their powers not required to be 
exercised at a meeting of the Board, to a committee or committees consisting of two or 
more Directors as the Board thinks fit. Any committee so formed shall conform to any 
regulations that may be imposed upon it by the Board and shall be governed, in the 
exercise of the powers so delegated, by the provisions herein contained for regulating 
meetings and proceedings applicable to the Directors. 

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN  

75. Upon the first appointment, and thereafter upon each election of Directors, the Directors 
shall (i) appoint as the Chairman of the Board of Directors and (ii) determine the period 
for which he is to hold office. 

APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

76(i) The Board shall within fifteen days of the incorporation of the Company appoint an 
individual (including a Director) as the Chief Executive of the Company designated as the 

Chief Executive. The first Chief Executive shall hold office until the first Annual General 
Meeting of the Company (unless he earlier resigns or otherwise ceases to hold office) or 
until the expiry of a shorter period if the Board had fixed a shorter period for this 

appointment. If the Chief Executive ceases to hold office before the first Annual General 
meeting, the Board shall fill the vacancy within fourteen days, but the person appointed 

to fill the vacancy shall hold office only till the first Annual General Meeting. 

(ii) Within fourteen (14) days from the date of an election of Directors under Article 56 or 
within fourteen (14) days from the date on which office of the Chief Executive falls 
vacant for whatsoever reason, the Board shall appoint any person (including an elected 
Director) to be the Chief Executive of the Company, but such appointment shall not be 
for a period exceeding three (3) years from the date of appointment. 

(iii) Upon the expiry of an appointment under clauses (i) and (ii) above a Chief Executive shall 
be eligible for re-appointment. 

(iv) The Chief Executive shall, if he is not already a Director of the Company, be deemed to 
be its Director and be entitled to all the rights and privileges, and subject to all liabilities 
of the office of Director of the Company. 

(v) The Directors of the Company by a resolution passed by not less than three- fourth of the 
total number of Directors for the time being, or the Company by Special Resolution, may 

remove a Chief Executive before the expiration of his term of office notwithstanding any 
thing contained in these Articles or in any agreement between the Company and the 

ief Executive. 

ms and conditions of appointment of the Chief Executive shall be deterrnined`6y 
and which shall also determine his remuneration. 

(Ss  

POWERS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

The Chief Executive shall have overall authority over and responsibility f9(%.,,,t0,):tj4,-iv-P 
management of the affairs of the Company and the conduct, and the custiic04te 
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maintenance of its properties, assets, records and accounts in accordance with the 

policies and guidelines established by the Board. 

In addition, the Board may entrust to and confer upon Chief Executive any of the powers 
exercisable by the Board other than the powers which are required to be compulsorily 

exercised under the Ordinance by the Board at its meeting upon such terms and 
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conditions and with such restrictions as it may think fit, and may from time to time 
revoke, withdraw, alter, vary all or any of such powers. 

THE SEAL  
CUSTODY OF SEAL 

78. The Board shall provide a Common Seat for the purposes of the Company and for the safe 
custody of the Seal, and the Seal shall never be used except by the authority of the 
Board or a Committee of Directors previously given, and one Director at least shall sign 
(in the same manner as provided for in Article 14) on every instrument to which the Seal 
is affixed; provided nevertheless, that any instruments bearing the Seal of the Company 
and issued for valuable consideration shall be binding on the Company notwithstanding 
any irregularity touching any authority to issue the same. The Board shall also have 
power to destroy the Seal and substitute a new Seal thereof, if necessary. 

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES DECLARATION  
OF DIVIDENDS AND RESTRICTION OF AMOUNT THEREOF 

79. The Company in General Meeting may declare Dividends, but no Dividends shall exceed 
the amount recommended by the Board. 

INTERIM DIVIDEND  

80. The Board may from time to time pay to the Members such interim Dividends as appear 
to be justified by the profit of the Company. 

DIVIDEND OUT OF PROFITS ONLY 

81. No Dividends shall be paid otherwise than out of profits of the year, or any other 
undistributed profits of prior years. 

DECLARATION OF DIVIDENDS IN SPECIE 

81a. Any declaration of a Dividend may state that such Dividend shall be paid wholly or in part 
by the distribution of specific assets and in particular of paid up shares, Debentures or 
debenture stock of the Company or paid up shares, debenture stock of any other 

npany, or in any one or more of such ways. 

DISTRIBUTION OF DIVIDENDS 

to the rights of any persons entitled to shares with special rights as to Dividends, 
ofits distributed as Dividends shall be distributed among the shareholders and all 

dends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid on the shares. If any 
share is issued on the terms that it shall rank for Dividend as from a particular date, such 
share shall rank for Dividend accordingly. 

DIVIDENDS HOW PAID 

82a. Every Dividend after it is declared shall be paid by crossed cheques or Dividend warrants 
to be delivered or sent by post to, and at the sole risk of the Members entitled thereto, 

. 

	

	
at the registered addresses of the Members or their agents as provided in Section 250 of 

00,5 the Ordinance and the Company shall not be liable for any loss sustained by a Member by 
0 0,4 	eason of any forged endorsement of any cheque or warrant or the fraudulent recovery 

".1:;-  by any other person. r
4"-  

POWER OF BOARD TO CREATE RESERVE 

83. The Board may before recommending any Dividend, set aside out of the profits of the 
Company such sum as it thinks proper as a reserve or reserves, which shall, at the 
discretion of the Board, be applicable for meeting contingencies, or for equalizing 
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Dividends, or for any other purpose to which the profits of the Company may be property 
applied, and pending such application may, in the like discretion, either be employed in 
the business of the Company or be invested in such investments, (other than shares of 
the Company), as the Board may from time to time think fit. • 

RECEIPTS FOR DIVIDENDS BY JOINT HOLDERS 

84. If several persons are registered as joint holders of any share, any one of them may give 
effectual receipts for any Dividends payable on the share. 

NO INTEREST ON DIVIDENDS  

85. No Dividends shall bear interest against the Company. The Dividends shall be paid within 
the period laid down in the Ordinance. 

PAYMENT BY POST  

• 
86(a) Any Dividend may be paid by Cheque or warrant sent through the post at the registered 

address of the Member or person entitled thereto, or in the case of joint holders to any 
one of such joint holders at his registered address, or to such person and at such address 
as the Member or person entitled or such joint holders, as the case may be, may direct. 
Every such cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the order of the person to whom 
it is sent, or to the order of such other person as the Member or person entitled or such 
joint holders, as the case may he, may direct. 

(b) Unclaimed Dividends may he invested or otherwise used by Board for the benefit of the 
Company until claimed. 

CARRYING FORWARD OF PROFITS 

87. The Directors may carry forward any profit which they may think prudent not to 
distribute without setting them aside as a reserve. 

CAPITALISATION 
CAPITALISATION OF RESERVES 

88. Any General Meeting may, upon recommendation of the Board, by ordinary resolution 
resolve that any undistributed profits of the Company (including profits carried and 
standing to the credit of any reserve or reserves or other special accounts or representing 
premiums received on the issue of shares and standing to the Credit of the share 

• 
premium account and capital reserve arising from realized or unrealized appreciation of 
the assets or goodwill of the Company or from any acquisition/sale of interests in other 
undertakings) be capitalized. Such capital undistributed profits and reserve shall be 
distributed amongst such of the shareholders as would be entitled to receive the same if 
distributed by way of Dividend, and in the same proportions, on the footing that they 
become entitled thereto as capital. All or any part of such capitalized fund may be 
applied on behalf of such shareholders for payment in full or in part either at-par or at 
such premium as the resolution may provide, for any un-issued shares or Debentures of 

kvi  Revs trat the Company which shall be distributed accordingly, and such distribution or paymeli - i  
Kara chi*a 

LI be accepted by such shareholders in full satisfaction of their interest in_,tkte 
alized sum. 

(VIS:=) —  

ACCOUNTS   / 

BOOKS OF ACCOUNT TO BE KEPT 

.1i7,fe Co viceeP 
e Board shall cause to he kept proper books of account as required under t `r ̀' 

v 

Ordinance.  441.  
Oa. 
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WHERE BOOKS TO BE KEPT 

90. The books of account shall be kept at the office or at such other place as the Board shall 
think fit and shall be opened to inspection by Directors during business hours. 

INSPECTION BY MEMBERS 

91, The Board shah from time to time determine whether and to what extent and at what 
time and places and under what conditions or regulations the accounts and books or 
papers of the Company or any of them shah be opened to inspection of the Members, and 
no Member (not being a Director) shall have any right of inspecting any account and 
books or papers of the Company except as conferred by law or authorized by the Board or 
by Special Resolution. 

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND BALANCE SHEET 

92. Within eighteen months of the incorporation of the Company, and subsequently once at 
least in every calendar year, the Directors shall cause to be prepared and lay before the 
Company in General Meeting a balance sheet and profit and loss account, both made up 
in accordance with Ordinance and to a date not more than four months before the date 
of the Meeting for the period, in the case of first balance sheet and profit and loss 
account, since incorporation of the Company, and in case of any subsequent balance 

sheet and profit and loss account, since the preceding account. Every such balance sheet 
shall be accompanied by an Auditor's report and the Directors' report in accordance with 

the provisions of the Ordinance in that behalf. 

COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE 

93. The Directors shall in all respects comply with Sections 230 to 236 in regard to accounts 
of the Company. 

COPIES OF DIRECTORS' REPORT AND  
BALANCE SHEET TO BE SENT TO MEMBERS 

NOTICES 
HOW 	NOTICE TO BE SERVED ON MEMBERS 

• 96. A notice may be given by the Company to any Member or Director either personally or by 
sending it by post to him at his registered address or, (if he has no registered address in 
Pakistan), to the address, if any, within or outside Pakistan supplied by him to the 

ordompany for the giving of notice to him. A notice may be given by telex or facsimile 
49^ tptliismission. 

lvite 
ot... 

94. A copy of the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account together with a copy of the 
Auditor's Report and Directors' Report shall be sent to all Members along with the notice 
convening the Annual General Meeting before which same are required to be laid at least 
twenty-one days preceding the meeting. 

Auditors shall be appointed and their duties regulated in accordance with Sections 252 
to 255. 

AUDIT 
APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS AND THEIR DUTIES 

SERVICE BY POST 

97. Where a notice is sent by post, service of the notice shall be deemed to be effected by 
properly addressing, prepaying and posting a letter containing the notice, and unless the 
contrary is proved, to have been effected at the time at which the letter would be 
delivered in the ordinary course of post. 
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NOTICE TO MEMBERS ABROAD BY ADVERTISING IN NEWSPAPERS 

98. If a Member or Director has no registered address in Pakistan and has not supplied to the 

Company an address within or outside Pakistan for the giving of notices to him, a notice 

addressed to him or to the shareholders generally and advertised in a newspaper 

circulating in the Province in which the Office is situated shall be deemed to be duly 

given to him on the day on which the advertisement appears. 

NOTICE TO JOINT HOLDER 

99. A notice shall he deemed to be given by the Company to the joint holder of a share by 

giving the notice to the joint-holder named first in the Register in respect of the share. 

NOTICE TO PERSONS ENTITLED BY TRANSMISSION 

100. A notice may be given by the Company to the persons entitled to a share in consequence 

of the death or insolvency of a Member by sending it through the post in a prepaid letter 

addressed to them by name, or by the title or representatives of the deceased, or 

assignee of the insolvent, or by any like description, at the address if any in Pakistan 

supplied for the purpose by the persons claiming to be so entitled, or (until) such an 

address has been so supplied by giving the notice in any manner in which the same might 

have been given if the death or insolvency had not occurred. 

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING 

101. Notice of every General Meeting shalt be given in same manner herein before authorized 

to (a) every Member of the Company except those Member who, having no registered 

address within Pakistan, have not supplied to the Company an address within or outside 

Pakistan for the giving' of notices to them and also to (b) every person entitled to a share 

in consequence of the death or insolvency of Member, who but for his death or insolvency 

would be entitled to receive notice of the meeting, and (c) to the auditors of the 

Company for the time being. 

NO SHAREHOLDERS TO ENTER THE  
PREMISES OF THE COMPANY WITHOUT PERMISSION 

102. No Member or other person (not being a Director) shall be entitled to enter the property 

of the Company, or to inspect or examine the Company's premises or properties of the 

Company, without permission of the Board or the Chairman, or Chief Executive, and to 

require disclosure of any information respecting any details of the Company's trading, or 

any matter which is or may be in the nature of a trade secret, mystery of trade or secret 

to/of the conduct of the business of the Company and which in the opinion of the Board .r-44, 

or the Chief Executive will be inexpedient in the interest of the MembeffSt9; 

ommunicate. 

,v‘ 

ry Director, Chief Executive, Chairman, Manager, Auditor, Trustee, Member or 
ommittee, Officer, Servant, Agent, Accountant, or other person employed in the"-  

business of the Company shall, if so required by the Board before entering upon his 

duties, sign a declaration in the form approved by the Board pledging himself to observe 

strict secrecy representing all transactions of the Company with the customers and the 
state of accounts with individuals and in matters relating thereto, and shall by 

declaration pledge himself not to reveal any of the matters which may come to his 

knowledge in the discharge of his duties except when required so to do by the Board, or 

by any Annual General Meeting, or by a court of law, and except so far as may be 

necessary in order to comply with any provisions in these presents contained. 

• 

• 
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WINDING UP 
DISTRIBUTIONS OF ASSETS ON WINDING UP 

104(i) If the Company shall be wound up, (whether voluntarily or otherwise) the liquidators 
may, with the sanction of a Special Resolution and any other sanction required by the 
Ordinance, divide amongst the Members in specie at kind, the whole or any part of the 
assets of the Company, whether they consist of property of same kind or not. 

(ii) For purpose aforesaid, the liquidator may set such value as he deems fair upon any 
property to be divided as aforesaid and may determine how such division shall be carried 
out as between the Members or different classes of Members. 

(iii) The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in 
trustees upon such trust for the benefit of the contributories as the liquidator, with the 
like sanction, thinks fit but so that no Member shall be compelled to accept any shares or 
other securities whereon there is any liability. 

INDEMNITY 

105. Every Director, Chief Executive, Chairman, Manager or Officer of the Company or any 
person (whether an officer of the Company or not) employed by the Company as Auditor 
or Adviser, shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company against any liability 
incurred by him as such Director, Chief Executive, Chairman, Manager, Officer, Auditor, 
or Adviser in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is 
given in connection with any application under Section 488 of the Ordinance in which 
relief is granted to him by Court. 

INDIVIDUAL RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS 

106. No Director, Chief Executive, Chairman, or other officer of the Company will be liable for 
the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other Director or Officer or for joining any 
receipt or other act for conformity, or for any loss or expense happening to Company 
through the insufficiency or deficiency of title to any property acquired by order of the 
Directors, Chief Executive, Chairman, or other officer for or on behalf of the Company, 
or for the insufficiency or deficiency of any security in or upon which any of the moneys 
of the Company shall be invested, or for any loss or damage arising from the bankruptcy, 
insolvency or tortuous act of any person with whom any money, securities or effect shall 
be deposited, or for any loss occasioned by any error of judgment or oversight on his 
part, or.Or any other loss, damage or misfortune whatever which shall happen in the 
execptfail of duties of his office or in relation thereto, unless the same happens through 
hia'qvci willful act, default or dishonesty. 

4  .k>1 • 

,(2 
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WE, the several persons whose names and addresses are subscribed, are desirous of 
being formed a Company in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association, and we 
respectively agree to take the number of shares in the Capital of the Company set 
opposite our respective names. 

Dated this Sixth Day of September, 1913 

Name of Subscriber 	 Address and 	 Number of 	Witness to 
Description of 	 Ordinary 	 Signature 

Subscriber 	 Shares taken 
by each 

Subscriber 

T.L.F. Beaumount 	 Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

Ghularriali G. Chagla 	Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

Nadirshaw E. Dinshaw 	Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

W.U. Nicholas 	 Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

B. Frank Jones 	 Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

110Chellaram Duttoornal 	Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 

Abdoot Rahim Saleh 	Merchant, Karachi 	1 (one) 
Mahomed 

t 

Certified t e Copy 

Joint Registrar of Companies 
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• 
Karachi Electric Supply Company Ltd 
formerly: Karachi Electric Supply Corporation Ltd. 

2'D  Floor, Handicraft Bldg., Abdulfah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi-74400 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS 
PASSED AT THE EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF 

THE MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY HELD ON 22 JANUARY 1999 

"RESOLVED that the authorized capital of th6 company be and is, 
hereby, increased from Rs.2,500,000,000 (Rupees Two Billion Five 
Hundred Million) to Rs.10,000,000,000 (Rupees Ten Billion)." 

"FURTHER RESOLVED that Clause V of the Memorandum of Association 
of the company he and is, hereby, substituted with the following: - 

"The share capital of the company is Rs.10,000,000,000 (Rupees Ten 
Billion) divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each." 

"FURTHER RESOLVED that Article No.6 of the KESC Articles of 
Association be and is, hereby, substituted with the following: - 

"The authorized capital of the Company is Rs.10,000,000,000 (Rupees 
Ten Billion) divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each." 

"RESOLVED that the conversion of Government of Pakistan interest 
bearing loans of Rs.3.045123 Billion into equity and the issue of further 
capital to that extent without making a rights issue be and is, hereby, 
approved iibject to the approval of the Federal Government / 
Corporate Law Authority as required u/s 86 of the Companies Ordinance 
1984." 

"FURTHER RESOLVED that the Directors of the Company he and are, 
ereby, authorized to take all necessary steps in this regard, approve 

terms (other than as specified herein) of and effect issuance of 
,512,300 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up at par in full & 
I settlement of G.O.P. loans of Rs.3,045,123,000 (Rupees Three 
ion Forty-Five Million One Hundred Twenty Three Thousand only) 

bject to completion of all legal requirements envisaged under 
Companies Ordinance 1984 and KESC Memorandum & Articles of 
Association. The above shares will rank pari passu in every respect with 
the e4(is0n/g_capital of the company." 

• 

• 

• 

LL 
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Karachi Electric Supply Company Ltd. 
formerly: Karachi Electric Supply Corporation Ltd. 

2"°  Floor, Handicraft Bldg., Abduilah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi-74400 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS 
PASSED AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 

MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY HELD ON 27 FEBRUARY 2001 

"RESOLVED that the authorized capital of the company be and is, 
• hereby, increased from Rs.10,000,000,000 (Rupees Ten Billion) to 

Rs. 50,000,000,000 (Rupees Fifty Billion)" 

"FURTHER Resolved that Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of 
the Company be and is, hereby, substituted with the following: - 

"The share capital, of the company is Rs.50,000,000,000 (Rupees 
Fifty Billion) divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- 
each." 

"FURTHER Resolved that Article No.6 of the KESC Articles of Association 
he and is, hereby, substituted with the following: - 

"The authorized capital of the Company is Rs.50,000,000,000 
(Rupees Fifty Billion) divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares.,„)-V, 
of Rs.10/- each." ec`',0 

    

• 
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Karachi Electric Supply Company Ltd. 
formerly: Karachi Electric Supply Corporation Ltd. 

2ND  Floor, Handicraft Bldg., Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi•74400 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTIONS 
PASSED BY KESC SHAREHOLDERS AT THE ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING OF KESC HELD ON 29 DECEMBER 2001 

"RESOLVED that the conversion of GOP Subordinated Loan and KESC 
Debt Servicing Liabilities amounting to Rs.17,834.56 million into equity 
and the Issue of further capital to that extent without making a Right 
Issue be and is, hereby, approved subject to the approval of the Federal 
Government / Securities Et Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as 
required u/s 86 of the Companies Ordinance 1984" 

"FURTHER Resolved that the Directors of the Company be and are, 
hereby, authorized to take all necessary steps in this regard, approve 
the terms (other than as specified herein) of and effect issuance of 
1,783,456,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up at par in full 
Et final settlement of GOP Subordinated Loan and KESC Debt Servicing 
Liabilities of Rs.17,834,560,000 (Rupees Seventeen Billion Eight Hundred 
Thirty-Four Million Five Hundred Sixty Thousand only) subject to 
completion of all legal requirements envisaged under Companies 
Ordinance 1984 and KESC Memorandum Et Articles of Association. The 
above shares will rank pari passu in every respect with the existing 
capital of the Company." 

2 
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Karachi Electric Supply Company Ltd 
formerly: Karachi Electric Supply Corporation Ltd. 

el)  Floor, Handicraft Bldg., Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karach1-74400 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTIONS 
PASSED BY KESC SHAREHOLDERS AT THE EXTRA-ORDINARY 

GENERAL MEETING OF KESC HELD ON 27 MAY 2002 

(1) "RESOLVED that the authorized capital of the Company be and is, 
hereby, increased from Rs.50,000,000,000 (Rupees Fifty Billion) to 
Rs.100,000,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred Billion)." 

(2) "FURTHER Resolved that Clause V of the Memorandum of 
Association of the Company be and is, hereby, substituted with 
the following: - 

"The share capital of the Company is Rs.100,000,000,000 (Rupees 
One Hundred Billion) divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 
of Rs.10/- each." 

(3) "FURTHER Resolved that Article No.6 of the KESC Articles of 
Association be and is, hereby, substituted with the following: - 

"The authorized capital of the Company is 
Rs.100,000,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred Billion) divided 

• 

	 into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each." 

B. 	(1) 	"RESOLVED that Banks Loans amounting to Rs.22.107 billion 
obtained by KESC and guaranteed by GOP, be converted into GOP 
Loans subject to completion of all legal and statutory 
requirements." 

	

(2) 
	

"RESOLVED that the conversion of GOP Loans amounting to 
Rs.65.340,773 billion (including GOP Guaranteed Banks Loans of 
Rs.22.107 billion as at (1) above and loans of Rs.7.893 billion 
which are in the process of disbursement to meet KESC operating 
cash shortfall) into equity and the issue of further capital to that 
extent without making a Right Issue be and is, hereby, approved 
subject to the approval of the F 
Exchange Commission of Paki 
Companies Ordinance 1984.' 

vemment / Securities ft, 	
r3-1/ 

equired 
\ 
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( 3 ) 
	

"FURTHER Resolved that the Directors of the Company be and 
are, hereby, authorized to take all necessary steps in this regard, 
approve the terms (other than as specified herein) of and effect 
issuance of 6,534,077,300 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each fully 
paid up at par in full Et final settlement of GOP Loans of 
Rs.65,340,773,000 (Rupees Sixty Five Billion Three Hundred Forty 
Million Seven Hundred Seventy Three Thousand only) subject to 
completion of all legal requirements envisaged under Companies 
Ordinance 1984 and KESC Memorandum ft Articles of Association. 
The above shares witl rank pari passu in every respect with the 
existing capital of the Company." 

C. 	(1) 	"RESOLVED that subsequent to completion of the conversion of 
GOP and GOP Guaranteed Loans of Rs.65.340,773 billion into 
equity in accordance with requirements of applicable law, the 
capital of the Company be reduced (subject to the requirements 
of the Companies Ordinance, 1984) by canceling the issued and 
paid up capital of the Company which has been lost or is un-
represented by available assets to the extent of Rs.6.50 on each 
of the issued shares of the Company at such time and reducing 
the nominal value thereof to Rs.3.50 each." 

(2) 	"FURTHR RESOLVED that the Directors of the Company, acting 
singly or jointly, be and are hereby, authorized to do all acts, 
deeds and things and to take all necessary steps to effect the 
reduction of capital approved in paragraph (1) above including, 
without limitation, the filing of a petition to seek the 
confirmation of the Court to the said capital reduction in 
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance 

84 and all acts, deeds and things ancillary or incidental 
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FILING 
I See — regulation — 8 (2) 

No. K-376/Com/2002 /, `-) 	 Dated: 18.10.2002 
/ 

ln the matter of 	Karachi Electric Supply Corporation Limited  
Haroon Row', Karctchi 

The receipt of the undermentioned document (s) filed / registered / 
recorded, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 
1984) is hereby acknowledged:- 

1. Form-26 dated 28.05.2002 and as approved by the Hon'ble high  
Court of Sindh. 

2. Certified true copy of the order of the Honourable High Court of 
Sindh at Karachi dated 11.10.2002 in I.Misc No. 48 of 2002 
regardino the reduction in issued and paid up capital to the extend 

Rs.6.50!- on each of the issued shares of the company and 
reducing the nominal value thereof to 12s3.50/- each. 

  

  

(LIAQAT ALI DOLLA ) 
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Karachi Electric Supply Company Ltd. 
formerly: Karachi Electric Supply Corporation Ltd. 

2N°  Floor, Handicraft Bldg., Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi-74400 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 
OF THE RESOLUTIONS PASSED BY KESC 

SHAREHOLDERS AT THE AGM HELD ON 28 DECEMBER 2002 

1. RESOLVED that Clause 111(1) viz. Object Clause of KESC Memorandum of 
Association be and is"hereby amended subject to approval of SECP, to read 
as under:- 

To carry on at Karachi and elsewhere in Pakistan the business of an 
electric light company in all its branches and in particular to construct, 
lay down, establish and fix all necessary cables, wires, lines, 
accumulators, tamps and works and to generate, accumulate, transmit, 
distribute and supply electricity and to light cities, towns, streets docks, 
markets, theaters, buildings and places both public and private." 

2. Resolved that Clause V of the KESC Memorandum of Association be and is 
hereby substituted with the following:- 

"The share capital of the Company is Rs.100,000,000,000 (Rupees One 
Hundred Billion) divided into 28,571,428,571 ordinary shares of Rs.3.50 
each." 

3. Further Resolved that Article 6 of KESC Articles of Association be and is, 
hereby, substituted with the following:- 

The authorized capital of the Company is Rs. 100,000,000,000 (Rupees 
One Hundrqd Billion) divided into 28,571,428,571 ordinary shares of Rs. 
3.50 eactrciq- 

41,0 
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Karachi Electric Supply Company Ltd. 
∎ formerly: Karachi Electric Supply Corporation Ltd. 

2 ND  Floor, Handicraft Bldg., Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi•74400 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 
OF THE RESOLUTIONS PASSED BY KESC SHAREHOLDERS 
AT 94TH  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY 

HELD ON 02 DECEMBER 2004 

• 
Resolved that the conversion of KESC's debt amounting to 
Rs.15.283,738,365 billion into GOP's equity in KESC and the issue of 
further capital to that extent without making a Right Issue be and is 
hereby, approved subject to the approval of the Federal Government / 
Securities a Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as required u/s 86 
of the Companies Ordinance 1984. 

Further Resolved that the Directors of the Company be and are, hereby, 
authorized to take all necessary steps in this regard, approve the terms 
(other than as specified herein) of and effect issuance of 4,366,782,390 
ordinary shares of Rs.3.50 each in full Et final settlement of KESC's debt 
payable to GOP amounting to Rs.15.283,738,365 billion, subject to 
completion of all legal requirements envisaged under Companies 
Ordinance 1984 and KESC Memorandum Et Articles of Association. The 
above shares will rank pari passu in every respect with the existing 
capital of the Company. 
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Karachi Electric Supply Company Ltd. 
formerly; Karachi Electric Supply Corporation Ltd, 

2u°  Floor, Handicraft Bldg., Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi-74400 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 

OF THE RESOLUTIONS PASSED BY KESC SHAREHOLDERS 

AT EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING HELD ON 02 MARCH 2006 

"RESOLVED THAT Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the 
Company be and is, hereby, substituted with the following: - 

Clause V: The share capital of the Company is Rs.100,000,000,000 (Rupees 

One Hundred Billion Only) divided into the following kinds of shares: - 

i 	Share Capital of Rs.90,000,000,000 (Rupees Ninety Billion Only) divided 

into 25,714,285,714 ordinary shares of Rs.3.50 each. 

ii. Share Capital of Rs.10,000,000,000 (Rupees Ten Billion only) divided 

into 2,857,142,857 Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.3.50 each." 

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Article No.6 of KESC Articles of Association be 

and is, hereby, substituted with the following: - 

Article 6: The authorized share capital of the Company is 
Rs.100,000,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred Billion Only) divided into the 

following kinds of shares: - 

i. Share Capital of Rs.90,000,000,000 (Rupees Ninety Billion only) divided 
into 25,714,285,714 ordinary shares of Rs.3.50 each. 

ii. Share Capital of Rs.10,000,000,000 (Rupees Ten Billion only) divided 

into 2,857,142,857 Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.3.50 each." 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Article 7(ii) of KESC Articles of Association be and 

is, hereby, modified by way of incorporating / adding new paragraphs in 

the end as narrated below: - 

- The Redeemable Preference shares shall be entitled to a preferential 

dividend at a rate fixed at the General Meeting of the Company. 

,01,1 Ilegist,";-:„, 

*c.°  kara  /..?,?' 
tchi -.-- 

c-) 	,  < .. 

- The preferential dividend shall be cumulative. 

The preference shareholder(s) shall only be entitled to preferential 

dividend and shall not be entitled to any other dividend (whether cash, 
bonus shares, right shares etc.) to which ordinary shareholders may 

become entitled from time to time. 
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- The Redeemable Preference Shares shall be redeemed on redemption 

date or shall be converted into ordinary shares as deemed expedient by 

the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall also finalize other 

modalities E mechanism with regard to Issue of Redeemable Preference 

Shares, payment of preferential dividend, redemption, conversion etc. 

- Redeemable Preference shareholders shall not be entitled to attend or 
vote at the meetings of shareholders of the company." 

IV. "FURTHER RESOLVED THAT after completing all necessary legal a statutory 
requirements and obtaining prior approval of Securities B Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan (SECP), Redeemable Preference Shares having a 

cumulative value of Rs.6000 million divided into 1,714,285,713 Redeemable 

Preference Shares of Rs.3.50 each, be offered as Right Shares to the 

ordinary shareholders of the Company ® 13.02% of their shareholding 

bearing cumulative preferential dividend ® 3% per annum." 

V. "FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Directors of the Company be and they are 
hereby, authorized to take alt necessary actions for offering / issuance of 

the above Redeemable Preference Shares and also to finalize modalities Et 

mechanism including disposal of fractional a unsubscribed Redeemable 

Preference Shares. 

• 
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Karachi Electric Supply Company Ltd. 
formerly: Karachi Electric Supply Corporation Ltd. 

2N0  Floor, Handicraft Bldg., Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi-74400 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 
OF SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED AT 

THE EGM OF THE COMPANY ON 30 APRIL 2007 

a. Resolved that the issue of further capital to the extent of USD 50 
Million to be converted to equivalent PKR at applicable exchange 
rate on the date of subscription with a cap of USD 1 = PKR 90 viz. 
additional share capital in PKR upto a maximum of 4500 million, 
to International Finance Corporation (IFC) ft Asian Development 
Bank (ADB) (USD 25 million each) without making a Right Issue be 
and is, hereby, approved subject to the approval of the Federal 
Government / Securities ft Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP) as required u/s 86(1) of the Companies Ordinance 1984. 

b. Further Resolved .that the Directors of the Company be and are, 
hereby, authorized to take all necessary steps in this regard, 
approve the terms (other than as specified herein) of and effect 
issuance of 963,597,430 ordinary shares @ Rs.4.67 each including 
premium of Rs.1.17 per share to IFC (481,798,715) ft ADB 
(481,798,715), subject to completion of all legal requirements 
envisaged under Companies Ordinance 1984 and KESC 
Memorandum ft Articles of Association. The above shares will rank 
pari passu in every respect with the existing capital of the 
Company. 

c. That a separate Resolution will be passed as and when the option 

	

oarq Revs& 	to subscribe for KESC shares is exercised by IFC ft ADB latest by 
* ° 	kir- '''' 

1 	. 
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Uzma AmJad All 
ED (Legal) & Company Secretary 

KESC Limited 
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Karachi Electric Supply Company Ltd. 
formerly: Karachi Electric Supply Corporation Ltd.. 

2u0  Floor, Handicraft Bldg., Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi-74400 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 
OF SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED AT THE AGM 

HELD ON 30 OCTOBER 2007 

• 	
RESOLVED THAT the name of Company be and is hereby changed as 
"Karachi Electric Supply Company Limited" after obtaining requisite 
statutory approvals pursuant to the Companies Ordinance 1984. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT name of the Company in Clause-I of 
Memorandum of Association, Article 3 of Articles of Association and 
wherever appearing in Memorandum Et Articles of Association of the 
Company be changed to read as Karachi Electric Supply Company 
Limited. 

Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary be and are hereby 
authorized to take steps necessary for change of name. 
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Raracbi Cfettric gouppip Compri 
(formerly: Harichl Electric Supply CorporalIca Limited) 

"7". Fle,:c, c1.4,•• 	Strleint 11;,.11 	 '''.!!•7phon.,-  • I) 1".• 	J!. 

	

Fo.1,1 	 Fa: $11,..1,. 	• i1 	;:47 
KMIChi 	• 	 Wel) site: ,...-‘4w.keSC.com.pk  

Special Resolutions Passed at the AGM 
held on 29.11.2008 

RESOLVED THAT Article 69-A, as set out below, be and is hereby 

added to the Articles of Association of the Company after 

Article-69: - 

69-A. The meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees 

of Directors in emergent situations may be held through 

tele / video conferencing pursuant to such conditions and 

guidelines specified by SECP from time to time. 



That the date of subscription of these shares by IFC and ADB shall be no later 
than July 2012. 	 •  

CERTIFIEDTRLIE COPY 
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Raratbi Matt* &uppip Companp Cimiteb  

6Th  Floor, State Life Building 	 Telephone: • 92 (21) 920 5136 
Abdullah Haroon Road 	 Facsimile: + 92 (21) 920 5147 

Karachi 	 Web site: www.kesc.com.rll 

Certified True Copy of 
Special Resolutions passed at KESC AGM 

held on 26 October 2009, at Navy Welfare Centre, 
Liaquat Barracks, Karachi 

Resolved that the issue of further capital to the extent of USD 50 Million to be 

converted to equivalent PKR at applicable exchange rate on the date of 

subscription with a cap of USD 1 = PKR 90 viz. additional share capital in PKR 

upto a maximum of 4500 million, to International Finance Corporation (IFC) & 

Asian Development 'Bank (ADB) (USD 25 million each) without making a Right 

Issue be and is, hereby, approved subject to the approval of the Federal 

Government / Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as required 

u/s 86(1) of the Companies Ordinance 1984. 

Further Resolved that the Directors of the Company be and are, hereby, 

authorized to take all necessary steps in this regard, to approve the terms (other 

than as specified herein) of and effect issuance:of upto 1,300,000,000 ordinary 

shares at a price of not less than Rs.3.50 per share to IFC (up to 650,000,000 

shares) & ADB (up to 650,000,000 shares), subject to completion of all legal 

requirements envisaged under Companies Ordinance 7984 and KESC 

Memorandum & Articles of Association. The above shares will rank pari passu in 

every respect with the existing capital of the Company. 
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Rata* Cedric ifPupplp Company itimiteb 

6' Floor. State Lire Building It 11 	Telephone: • 92 (21) 546 7072 
Abdullah Haroon Road 
	

Facsimile: • 92 (21) 920 5147 
Karachi 
	

Web site: worw.kesc.com.pk  

Certified True Copy of 
Special Resolutions passed at KESC EGM 

Held on 20 January 2010, at Navy Welfare Centre, 
Liaquat Barracks, Karachi 

(1) 
	

Issue of additional share capital of upto USD 50 million to IFC & ADB (UDS 25 m each) 
without making a right issue. 

a. Resolved that the issue of further capital to the extent of USD 50 Million to be converted 
to equivalent PKR at applicable exchange tate on the date of subscription viz. additional 
share capital in PKR up to an estimated PKR 4500 million, to International Finance 
Corporation (IFC) Et Asian Development Bank (ADB) (USD 25 million each) without making a 
Right Issue be and is, hereby, approved subject to the approval of the Federal 
Government/ Securities ft Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as required u/s 86(1) 
of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

b. Further Resolved that the Directors of the Company be and are, hereby, authorized to 
take all necessarysteps in this regard, to approve the terms (other than as specified 
herein) of and effect issuance of upto 1,300,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of not less 
than Rs. 3.50 per share to IFC (up to 650,000,000 shares) Et ADB (up to 650,000,000 
shares), subject to completion of all legal requirements envisaged under Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 and KESC Memorandum Et Articles of Association. The above shares will 
rank pari passu in every respect with the existing capital of the Company. 

c. That the date of subscription of these shares by IFC and ADB shall be no later than 31 
December 2012. 

(ii) 	 Amendment in Articles of Association of the Company. 

FURTHER RESOLVED by way of a Special Resolution that the Articles of Association of the 
Company be amended as follows: 

The word "three" appearing in Article 26 of the Articles of Association of the Company be 
substituted and replaced with the word "four". 

Article 69-B, as set out below, be added to the Articles of Association of the Company 
immediately after Article 69-A: 

"69-8. The DttKors shall meet together at least once in every quarter of every financial 
year." 

• 

UnIA MIJAD AL,  
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c. The word "four" appearing in AC.icle 70 of the Articles of Association of the Company be 
substituted and replaced with the word "six". 

d. The word "three" appearing in Article 92 of the Articles of Association of the Company be 
substituted and replaced with the word "four". 

i) 
	

Appointment of four (4) executive directors and sanction of the Company in general 
meeting to hold the offices of profit with the Company. 

RESOLVED that the following persons, being Directors of the Company, are hereby 
accorded the sanction of the Company in General Meeting to hold the offices of profit 
with the Company as set out below: 

• 
Name 

(a) Mr. Zulfiqar Haider All 
(b) Syed Arshad Masood Zahidi 
(c) Syed Nayyer Hussain 
(d) Mr. Muhammad Tayyab Tareen 

Office of Profit 
Head of Special Projects 
Chief Strategic Officer - Gen & Trans. 
Chief Strategic Officer - Distribution 
Group Head HR Management / Group CFO 

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Directors of the Company be and are, hereby, authorized to 
take all necessary steps, subject to all requirements under the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company are authorized to 
take all necessary steps and seek all necessary regulatory and other approvals necessary 
or conducive for the purpose of the above Resolutions listed at No.2, 3 Et 4. 

I I A A II A 0 A I. 
• I 4 	• 

filivc'03 
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Karachi Electric Supply Company Ltd. 

Floor, K.E.S.0 House, 39.8, Sunset Boulevard, Phase-II, 
Defence Housing Authority, Karachi. 
Tel: 35647017 Fax: 35647155 Email Address: moonis.alvi@kesc.cormok 

Certified True Copy of 
Special Resolutions passed at KESC AGM 

Held on 21 October 2010, at Navy Welfare Centre, 
Liaquat Barracks, Karachi 

To approve increase in the Authorized Capital of the Company 

a. RESOLVED that the authorized capital of the Company be and is, hereby, increased from 
Rs.100,000,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred Billion Only) to Rs.125,000,000,000 (Rupees 
One Hundred Twenty Five Billion Only). 

b. FURTHER Resolved that Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company be 
and is, hereby, substituted with the following: - 

"The share capital of the Company is Rs.115,000,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred 
Fifteen 	Billion Only) divided into 32,857,142,857 ordinary shares of Rs.3.50 
each." 

"The share capital of the Company is Rs.10,000,000,000 (Rupees Ten Billion 
Only) divided into 2,857,142,857 Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.3.50 
each." 

	

C. 	FURTHER Resolved that Article No.6 of the KESC Articles of Association be and is, 
hereby, substituted with the following: - 

"The share capital of the Company is Rs.115,000,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred 
Fifteen Billion Only) divided into 32,857,142,857 ordinary shares of Rs.3.50 
each." 

"The share capital of the Company is Rs.10,000,000,000 (Rupees Ten Billion 
Only) divided into 2,857,142,857 Redeemable. Preferenc 	t....pf Rs.3.50 
each." 	 .4,011160  14,;.,.;. 
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Karachi Electric Supply Company Ltd. 
Office & Postal address: K.E.S.0 House, 39-B, Sunset Boulevard, Phase-II, 
Defence Housing Authority, Karachi. 
Tel: 35647017 Fax: 35647155 & 99205147. Email Address: moonis:alvi@kesc.com.pk  

Certified True Copy of Resolutions 

passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) 

of the Company held on 08 October 2012 

IFC & ADB Loans - Modification in Special Resolutions passed at EGM on 20 January 2010 

1. To consider and approve issuance of additional share capital to International Finance 

Corporation (IFC) & Asian Development Bank (ADO) as a consequence of increase in the 

exchange rate ceiling from PKR 90 for USD 1 to PKR 105 for USD 1:- 

To consider and pass the following as Special Resolutions by way of amendment to the 

Special Resolutions passed by the Shareholders of the Company at the Extraordinary General 

Meeting of the Company held on 20 January 2010, on the same subject, with our without 

modification: 

a. Resolved that the issue of further capital to the extent of USD 50 Million to be 

converted to equivalent PKR at applicable exchange rate on the date of subscription viz. 

additional share capital in PKR up to an estimated PKR 5250 million (US$ 1= PKR 105), to 

International Finance Corporation (IFC) & Asian Development Bank (ADB) (USD 25 

million each) without making a Right Issue be and is, hereby, approved subject to the 

approval of the Federal Government/ Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan 

(SECP) as required u/s 86(1) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

b. Further Resolved,that the Directors of the Company be and are, hereby, authorized to 

take all necessary steps in this regard, to approve the terms (other than as specified 

herein) of and effect issuance of up to 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares at par value, 

agreed at the time of signing the Loan Agreements and Subscription Agreements In May 

2010, to IFC (up to 750,000,000 shares) & ADB (up to 750,000,000 shares), subject to 

completion of all legal requirements envisaged under Companies Ordinance, 1984 and 

KESC Memorandum & Articles of Association. The above shares will rank par) p_assu. in _ — • .  
every respect with the existing capital of the Company. 

c. That the date of subscription of these shares by IFC and ADB shall be no later than 31 

December 2012. 
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Karachi Electric Supply Company Limited 
3" rluar, K.E.S,C House, 39-B, Sunset Boulevard, Phase-II, Defence Housing Authority, Karachi. 

Tel: 32647017 Fax: 90205165 & 32647159. Email Address: rnoonis.alvitokesc.com.pk  

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF RESOLUTIONS PASSED AT THE 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) HELD ON 29 OCTOBER 2013 

AT 10:30 A.M. AT NAVY WELFARE CENTRE, LIAQUAT BARRACKS, KARACHI 

Resolved that the name of Company be and is hereby changed as "K-Electric 

Limited" after obtaining requisite statutory approvals pursuant to the 

Companies Ordinance 1984. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT name of the Company in Clause-I of Memorandum 

of Association, Article-3 of Articles of Association and wherever appearing in 

Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company be changed to read 

as K-Electric Limited. 

Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary be and are hereby authorized 

to take steps necessary for change of name. 

\\ 

1\400N153 ALVI 
Cowen Secretary 

KESC Ltd. 

• 
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Address: NO. 268 Zhongshan SOulh Road, Shanghai, China 
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MESSAGE 

FROM CHAIRMAN 

Shanghai Electric Power Co., 

Ltd. (SEP) has developed as a 

comprehensive new energy 

enterprise with thermal power 

generation, new energy power 

generation, operation and 

maintenance, scientific arid 

technical R&D in electric power 

generation. 

With the guide of its parent 

company State Power Investment 

Corporation (SPIC), SEP prospers 

in domestic business and 

expands in overseas market 

while improving its enterprise 

management, employee's 

capability and business 

profitability. 

As the successor of China power 

generation industry, SEP clearly 

defines its development strategy, 

strengthens international 

exchange and cooperation, 

devotes to building an innovative 

international integrated energy 

grotto and modern state-owned 

enterprise. 

You reap what you sow and 

cooperation will lead to a 

prosperous future. I do believe 

SEP contains infinite developing 

opportunities which a wise man 

would like to see. Grasp and 

treasure the opportunity, and we 

will create a win-win future. 

Chairman Wang Yundan 

2 
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Responsibility of 

"12th Five-Year Plan" Period 

During the "12' Five-Year Plan" period, SEP has firmly implemented the corporate spirit of 'providing green energy and serving 

the public", adhered to reform and innovation, accelerated operational transformation, strengthened standard operation, 

improved management quality and efficiency, constantly built up core competitiveness, so as to complete its responsibility 

journey of scientific development, people's livelihood guarantee, green and low-carbon, safety and stability, and giving back to 
the society during the "12n. Five-Year Plan' period. 
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Through innovation on environmental 
protection technologies. SEP has 

carried out green design at the source, 

implemented energy conservation 

reconstruction and emission reduction 
technology innovation on the equipment, 

led the industry technological upgrading, 

improved air quality. and promoted 

sustainable development of the 
environment, in order to realize the self-

creation of blue sky. 

The company has earnestly implemented 

the 'Environmental Protection Law and 

other relevant policies and regulations, 

adhered to the corporate spirit of 

"providing green energy and serving the 

public; and conducted innovation at the 

design source, improved environmental 
protection performance, and helped the 

enterprise and the environmentachieve 

sustainable development. 	•  

SEP using scientific and technological 

innovation as driving force, has conducted 

a large quantity of energy conservation 

rehabilitation projects furies existing 

power generation units. By applying and 

promoting steam condenser exhaust 
passage optimization technology, air 

preheater flexible seal technology, Brandon 

steam seal technology and other new 

energy-saving technologies, the company 

has carried out comprehensive and 

systematic energy-saving transformation 

on 300MW, 600MW, and 1000MW 

subcritical or ultra-supercritical generation 

units, effectively saving valuable resources. 

Currently. with the 

increasingly prominent 

environmental protection 

i55012, the socralend 

economic benefits have 

became a joint force 

for the development of 

coal-fired electric power 

enterprises. 

18 2015, the coal consumption for power 

supply was 283.58g/kWh, down 4.349/kWh 

from a year earlier, equaling to a reduction 

of 150,000 tons of coal, 374,000 tons of CO,, 

and 1,870 tons of 50,; the comprehensive 

station service power rate was 435 

percent, down 0.43 percent year-on-year: 

the desulfurization and denitrification 

equipment rates both reached 100 percent. 

The company has been ranked in top place 

among all the subsidiary of the group 

company for two consecution years in 

terms of coal consumption for coal-fired 

power supply and the station service power 

consumption rate. 

In recent years. with the impact of atrnosphenc 

environmental problems such as the issue of 

smog, the coal-fired power generation units, 

which took up more than 70 percent of China's 

total power generation, have been widely 

criticized for the emissions produced from more 

than SO percent of the total coal consumption. 

The environmental issue has become an 
important factor in restricting the development 

of electric power industry. 

The company has enhanced environmental 

protection and ultra-low emission work at 

the 11 ehgn source, providing clear, and green 

energy for regional economy development of 

East China, making great contributions to the 

improvement of ecological envIronment, and 

surving to build beautiful China. 
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're bathe, reduce emission 

of 	hek uno one of 

valor rade nn Vangt7e River 

Del, and eille• key areas with 

heave mollehens the National 

De relmenient and Retort, 

Ceeiniesion. the National 

Energ" Administration. and 

the 411r1,, of Environmental 

Protection iointly lonnalated 

the */5:1100 Nen for Uggnichng 

and transformation of 

ealomed Pun, knergv  

Conservation and Emission 

Rerf0eurni1201e-2020/". 

and thE Shanahan WItencival 

GOvetnnem ekpliettly pm 

toward the goal of "workino 

hare to achieve 12 percent of 

2 11,10t, redo, Iwo of NO in 

0 e-2015 Iwo percentage 

point: shove the national 

average level' 

in 'il k .' 	ei 

krriss1an reduction is our 

due social lesponsibilny. 

Conducting clean emission 

and higher reducing the 

emission al teal-hied power 

generation units arc of great 

'impedance in reducing 

coal-based air pollation and 

continuously improving 

proportion of coal-fired power 

generation 

Adhering to the road orgreen 

development; the company has constantly 

increased Investment in environmental 

protection and emission reduction 

technological innovation. In 2015, the 

company has vigorously conducted 

environmental protection transformation 

work for the existing coal-fired generation 

units, completing denitrification project of 

the Caojing cogeneration No.5 emergency 

boiler, and the clean emission project of 

Rue gas of Caojing Power Plant Unit 1. All 

generation units of the company have 

been equipped with SCR denitrification 

system, making positive contributions to 

the creation of "clear water and blue sky". 

In 2015, the annual total investment of 
the company in environmental protection 

reached 460 million yuan. The company 

conducted environmental transformation 

on eight generation units, and the emission 

reductions of SO, and NO, amounted to 

2,500 tons and 4,000 tons respectively. 
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Emphasis on Inheritance 

Efforts (311 Innovation 

insistimn on Individuality 

Integrated system 

Management Philosophy 

Legal, scientific and strict corporate 

governance 

Operation Philosophy 

Integrity-based, benefit-prioritized 

and all staff-participated 

Working Philosophy 

Plan, Procedure, Revision, Excellence 

HP Management Philosophy 

Treat strivers as the backbone 

Safety Philosophy 

All risks are controllable; all violations are 

preventable; all accidents are avoidable 

Anti-corruption Philosophy 

Bea clean person and do clean things 

Professional Ethics 

Be loyal to the country, the cause 

and the company 

Lead nuclear power development and 

provide green energy 

Corporate 
. 	Mission 

"Harmony 
Corporate Culture' 	'. 

Philosophy 	 Vision  
System 

Corporate 	 Corporate 
philosophy 	 Commitments 

Cote Values 

Innovative creation 

Continuous striving 
Harmonious development 

Build an innovative, 

international, integrated 

energy group anc modern 

SOE with outstancfinc core 

competitiveness 

Commitments to customers 

Becoming the most reliable 

energy and service provider 

Commitments to employees 

Becoming the best platform lc 

show the value or life 

Commitments to shareholders 

Becoming the most valuable creator 

for return on investment 

Commitments to other 
enterprises in the same industry 

Becoming the most ideal 
cooperative partner 

Commitments to society 

Becoming the most conscious 
sot hal responsibility fulfiller 

Ned,ting 

Branch companies 

Ver,Linirm Cower Mem 
Maim Thermal gower eNni 

Major subsidiaries 

,mmorpvs. limit Newer Mew 
Minion, Fn.,. Mont 

Slall l,ininon i rn 

Sionghai Slovogrion, 	MneemSermitmen 
Co. i 

i
cl. 

Shanghai Ceram, i0,11E•dlIell Cf: , Lot. 
lima., Deem. 'rimer Le Ltd 
riengto Mesh. Criwor Cie...ration Co. Lid 
Shanghai SnangvhanElt.l, cower 
Ormineering 
Snarler., Shannellar, Limn° Power Operation 

Lot 
Sluing.. cooing Miaowed Hems Lo. td 
Shanghai Dettn, 	New kne, 
Development .p..t 

Shanolon Hemel Enr 	is, laintogeiu.. ltd  
AvtiNimlimielm Joni., am Vet—saillm,.1 om run 

cu, u.,  
Shanghai Elm rie Power Meloi iritchrin Du  

Montana, Hogg! rMwta Lem, Development °form 
!one; MO 
Shanghai Liam. Nene Enmity InvIntinem Ca Lid 
Shane', Niainadttion Pow, Nenvranen Le Inc 
11.11,, .31.1.111 Yowr ■ I/ 

_s tic Shane., Namarchiin wend POnt in.i to 
10,114. Fla.., Pow° 'eel C. _of 

Mane,. rl,tIK I mom inomonen, Vor 

Der rn nom lac inlogv 
Engineering a..11 .1 
Nvirmim M1011411f1,11..-11■PlI,11,P1k,,1.110 ■ 

co Ltd 
Shanghai Criaman New Snergerievelienneni 
iLa t 
Shanghai Vrorlit Min, Comm Enriniv 
ooaeloprnaot Co Ird  

Eli_, n, 
Sliermtia, Netne Mnitalor 	norm. 
Dewlap... a L. 
TOO, WI. Dv, trio, ilf.10( 
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About SEP 
	

Corporate Culture 

	I 	i t 	 

Prcf--;[e 

Shanghai Electric Power Co„ Ltd. (SEP) is 

one of the major listed companies of State 

Power Investment Corporation (SPIC). and 

one of the most important electric energy 

enterprises in Shanghai. As the witness of 

the generation of China's electric power 

industry, SEP. boasting a hundred years 

of history, is the participant of the great 

development of China's power industry, as 

„-oor.a. ill ortur o'SE*,  

'vent 	id 	anci  

well as the advocator of 'providing green 

energy and serving the public". 

On the basis of maintaining the 

sustainable development of its main 

business of thermal power, SEP has been 

committed itself to the development 

in the fields of clean energy, renewable 

energy, modern electric power service 

industry arid circular economy. SEP has 

become a modern energy enterprise 

integrating coal-fired power featuring 

high parameter and high capacity, gas-

tired power, wind power and solar power 

as well as distributed power supply. The 

industrial layout covers the East China, 

expanding to overseas market gradually. 

Based on the quintessence of traditional 

Chinese culture and inheritance of the 

original outstanding cultural elements 

of China Power Investment Corporation 

(CPI) and State Nuclear Power Technology 

Corporation (SNPTC), the concept system 

of "Harmony Culture" of SPIC was formed 

through in-depth investigation and 

research, extensive collection of opinions 

• 

as well as serious combing and extraction 
of ideas. 

SEP inherited the"Harmony Culture" of 

SPIC and treated "harmony" as the main 

theme of its corporate culture which 

reflected the common values of the 
world.The company emphasized on the 

promotion of effectively implementing 

the concept system of "Harmony Culture", 
integrated the philosophy of 'Harmony 

Culture' into the management and 

regulatory regime of the company, 

utilized cultural management to improve 
the corporate management, and laid the 

foundation for the corporate culture of 

SEP. 

11 
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• • 	• 
Corporate Governance 

In accordance with the Company Law, 

Securities Law, Code of Corporate 

Governance for Listed Companies in 

China, and the requirements of relevant 

documents of China Securities Regulatory 

Commission and Shanghai Stock 

Exchange, SEP established a governance 

structure centenng on general meeting 

of shareholders, board of directors, board 

of supervisors and senior managment, 

enhanced internal control system building, 

regulated connected transactions and 

internal information management, 

guaranteed the openness, fairness and 

impartiality of information disclosure, and 

effectively protected the lawful rights and 

interests of all shareholders. 

In 2015, the board of directors of SEP 

consisted of 14 directors, among whom 

six were independent directors; the 

board of supervisors consisted of six 

supervisors, among whom two were 

worker super visors. The company held 

two general meetings of shareholders, 

12 directorate meetings and four board 

of supervisors meetings.The company 

received 65 person-times of investor visit, 

participated in five investor meetings and 

forums, answered 318 calls via investor 

hotline, and replied to 36 online messages 

from investors. 

Cask Drmlf2r ■ ds ca SEP 

ash thvIci,"■ . pet 10 share. 
;rn,lucfiric tax: 

th, 	 1av7h01,e,  0, OP 
(.011,11,, J1111.111,1i1 statement, 

Our Visic‘r, 

n 

LLonorro,.. value 	 C/u, Value Prc,:,.,:,Itior 
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Key Performance Indicators 

p e satin g Peri orma nce 

#4,1001V-MiANCIONry:p-, Luidffly3potrep -17.0.10bitiPtC",12 ,Dior:t1VgAre• 
yuan 31 603 71.567 35.053  47,3.14 93.046 

billioo yuan 17.976 11.044 18.132 16.152 11.018 

billion y9on 0.573 1.355 2.096 2.495 2..952 

1411.0 90.10 0463 0.707 1.151 1.325 1.332 

7.97  18.15 15.79 14.98 13.34 

110.111 119.93 135.01 	• 10..69 

547 5.11 

MW 5740.9 5757.5 0531.1 777517 9367.7 

301, 

million 6/ 

34.566 

19.5717 

30.597 

11.7795 

31.119 

10.9.114 

37.59 	' 

11.1593 

.35.23 

1323056 

MW 5745.9 5757.6 8537.1 8757.6 • 9362.7 

MW /0090 7161.9 8470.3 8932.2 	! .9361.5 .  

77)0 1.461 5,330 13.654 13.055 • 0.731 

91ece 6 t7 3' 04 

Safety Production 

0,1.10,1! tunes 

woes 

0,6624916,,,, savo,sorpnl times 0 Or 

tunes 0 

day 977 1902 1667 2032 

Environmental Protection 

(017,1111P1101108 u9636 9/10,1h 312.49 291.43 291.20  267.92 	.. 	. 285.58 

4.78 	:. 

MW 109 19.0 300.6 491.1 	. 	. 513.9 

01 11.64 1!.' ? 25.38 26.91  

1 1 99.8 98,22 	', 98.47 

:66369.3 ca rib re10wn, 442105 31.415 25.346 12.537 ! 

10001603 19.765 10,571 9.983 6.079 .6.087 

g/kW11 1,05 0.55 0.67 0.34 

90WM1 046 0.26 0.27 0.10 

9/kw]] 15103 71.11011 0.029 0.076 0.046 

Social Harmony 

111000135 Unit 2011 .3012 2013 2014 2013 

608,0-1.19.01103",  person 6911 6673 6492 	i• • 6445 

13.7 13.9 14.40 15.93 

100 100 100 100.  

100 100 100 

person 11°' 2208 

nerson3990 1530  2185 

Social Responsibility Management 

established ano 

improved social 

iesponsrlarlitv 

management system 

• Established 

organizational 

siruznire of sustainable 

development and 

social responsibility 

management Establishing social 

responsibility 

management 

system 

• 840109 00,  00.14'l 

resonnseriley rosining 

and onprovto 

encr 

eapabilds 01 97010! 

resoonsmility 

perlorrnanc6 

Improves(' social 

1058056631111 

capability 

Enhancing soda1 

responsibility 

tomenunicalions 

Ifieasuresfor 
prcrmaling social 
TewonsibIllityvf 

• Released social 
responsibility report 

and took initedive to 

disclose information 

relating to social 

responsibility 

• 19687 5903916,5 With 

stakeholders and 

responded to toeir 

09959.917. 

Responsibility Promotion Management 

Committed to becoming the global leader 

of green energy. 

SEP has been actively dealing with 

the relations between the corporate 

development and human development, 

social development and environmental 

protection, and gradually integrated social 

• 

responsibility management into corporate 

strategy and day-to-day operation. 

striving to realize common development 

of the company and its stakeholders. 



PL-44141WIN 

 

4,!tet,-.44:itZ I 

  

amain, in nanimirli, awl regular., 

la nava, de tri rub armada 

Mennen trek; 	i• arrnial .■ ,111%,011., ininimire, and ii.Ji 
dr-,1011no, 

rimornment- 

Signing conga:, and aciretiments oa0v,daIste with laws 

Customers 

BenchniaMing leg Laboratory of National  Naironaitlrctril 
Power Industry ul 21,15 

rrrrs Poet lot National Competition 01 WORN Ultra- 	chi,. 
ElonivoflCoond 

SupolerIlMal Coai-ted Wet Cooling Generation link 

China Association 	Vet., Power Markel lechnologres 

fowling paean electric entigv wprily 
oroltasional and lardeoualigv,ewpe 

PrtindifilJ osrinreoval soon hiP'P'1'W.v"k""` pnae,rnrerrn comiurting 	 clist„iner sainianio„ 

• 

• 	 • 

'■ Ye anci Stakeholders 
	 Our Responsibilities and Honors 

Naiioi,atUnui 

medflunion 

taimaial amid,  ( halleamm fer Central 5110 Cianlai 
Zole 

National 0011.1011 0111,  

haureral nokimi award tor direarmaln v Mane,' 
201 ar-2011,  

National Pon, is' Model Wm lig, 

• Fannie im Model Wrigie, 

Rep Prim of National kl,CtI hnatn Linienver 
le:m.0100gal Achwvernenr of 20'1 

sP+0,00,) 
Pramminio 1.11 	Cenlia■ Coi,m1,1■■ 
Suiremnim and adinnoomiarn Comma, ri 

metal. ermonnan for hording 1ms pm 	reams 

China A, 	 /mum ■•• 

Feuerarron or /min:Union 

China flecirie v Camp,: 

Claim Asoimanier 	Mod, Ali. :ham mimarrea uf 1 nua 
Irrational imharmiling (./11.1111, Manet■ CrIle1111,..ts All.C.11■11.i.,1.11,1, le...vim, China qmor heron to ir dame m.:1 
',01!• 

:narenoluei 

Employees 

Community 

1,,,1.111■ J 

Undaning minanain 	rnamin 

honicting lights and interests or ,Immholder, 

Prom:ono lavdtil right, and iveer' of emplayee, 

Ensuring occumnannal satoy and health 
Pronging onmilal vonownsarmin arid nem., 

Creating elfOrirning career develop:nem platierin 

flirting for In, retired empliweer 

Supporting local mono., developmenr 

homin. soma' Minim,  
mg environment 

snartnolgefs hm,rie ra director, and ogard super:ism . 

inhanimg elimination drrclorure 

iStenaineeing dividend, of ,hareholder, 

hafing 

(010lortil, Mann, mg: managemPnr 
smoothing and bmwderano career developmem enannel loi 

moraine, 

Pionoing complete career Oeveriopmen; owning 

Ethan 	Me walk 01 retirement managenwill CM1111111tree 

/ethnological innovation 

i Merino dean elle, 

Carrying°. enerip•sevong and emonon reduction 

Particinating in golds welfare range 

National "Anvirrig 	Orroandlno Una or 201S 

National Uutilandrrvl kneetnrise In utak,. Conti°,  
leani Amway of Electric Powo Industry 012r,  I n 

Shanghai Work Solely Outsiandlog One 

Shanghai 'Safety Model Und of /014 

ShanoNiOutgianding Linn fm War." Mutual 
Assatarwo War 5 of 20/ 

0,110001 /Wield to, Outstanding Elton: Vowel Oro,' 
Provincial and ministerial 	 of /015 

honors 

/eneiarion or /woe 0niona SeTS ',Or uky,raihork 
Salo, 

China Water Resource Elm-Amity 	 A;:c..nor 

Admirmtralml of Work Sainty 

Shanghai Moracipal i7omn,si0n to. Comoreheinive Mmagenperi m 
Public /twiggy 

shanghai Federation of Trade Under 

China Hemp Power Construction Association 

	

Popularganon Competition Aflame Cerigenting OlIn 
	AllriChirm lederairon Tim..., Sior adomagranon or Word 

new lWorl, Swett tram• of 2715 

Advanced lion of Shanghai in homoonglransparemit 

	

/margin,  Mina, Ind Denim or Moggenvat 	Shanghai ederanon of Uade Union, 
Work ol 201.,20. 

Cooperative partners 

Conous WI, comic/anon and achwerno winnern tewl, 

m argued Ingenli,  

Achieving common creveloPment 

rirlightior irtaim mini I reaniennein with 	v woo and 

communication, 

Conducting 

Maintaining Ittirdillefl operation 

nhancing Comm, ancominr 

Shining terniognmes 

ra Meting rommrar deetintalaint 

National Golden Award for HighrOnehty Maga of 
2014-2015 

Shanghai Monk.' Award tot l'snm,,Tita,ofTrraotstary 
Blood ilOflairon 

China Association of Coniiiiirnoti tincinrisemanatienien.  

Shanghai klungigal C,rrnTeOsion of Health 	Fannie Planning 
Red Mow Society or Orbs ;Shanghai Brandi . and Blond Donation 
Management lrommisaion gi the /moo, 41 rile Chinese People 
tineraiori A,Trs Stationed in Shanghai 

Honors of SPIN 

Honors of media 

Striae abiding be pidgins and Indintrial regulation, 

DT 1 lei emery,: ist> in Me sac, inousrry 	Jointly meant, healme aompetitive rilY11011rnent 

mornottno elt viol: out., inclintw Oroeivv,rve 

hot Mgt of National 1100, Induct, Skill Competition 

Ilemungration Bare for Worker, Innovation Sox, 	Silo  

Belt Weretary oi the Maid for I mad °moony 	firna.corii 

16 
	

17 



e ee, 

!,,,at • wt:., 	 hold 

tmyltiv-I:: 

wur! 	 modern 	 TH•• 

create: 

n, ,•.ut!.• 

ft• rir of-•-uut, 



13,885.6 
13.G:5 	of heal supplied 

-Inner Mongolia • 

Shanxi 

Oinghal 

• 

Shandong 

• 

• 	• 
Optimizing Structure for 

	
Improving Performance with Outstanding Operation 

Better Development 
The company keeps adjusting its industrial 

structure and has achieved significant 

improvements in its asset structure through 

taking measures such as constructing large 

generating units and shutting down small 

ones, optimizing the operation mode of 
its thermal power plants and developing 

renewable energy resources. At the same 

time, the company also optimizes its 

development layout throughout China and 

develops high-quality resources in Xinjiang, 

Inner Mongolia, Yunnan and other places, 

significantly improving its operational 

strengths. 

In 2015, the newly-increased generation 

capacity of the company was 605.1 MW, 

in which 323.8 MW came from renewable 

energy resources, the electricity generation 

reached 35.23 TWh, and the heat supply 

reached 13.885.611. 

665.1 	323.3 
6,15 	newly-m, 	 Mix, '23 r NIV,  canv  
opm oldrc ciunnun, 	nom n.w energy 

35.23 
35.2:1 W. n1 electriot 

On July 22, 2015, the Big Three credit rating 

agencies released a credit rating report on 

SEP. Fitch Ratings assigned the company 

the long-term issuer credit rating of BBB+ 

and the senior unsecured bond rating of 

BBB+. Moody's Investors Service assigned 

the company the issuer rating of Baal for 

the first time and the senior unsecured 
	

S 
bond rating of Baal; and Standard & Poor's Xinjiang 

Ratings Services assigned the company and 

the foreign bond to be issued the credit 

rating of BBB and the Greater China credit 

rating of cnA. The oudook for all the above-

mentioned ratings is stable. 

Achieving High-Efficient Development with 
Thermal Power Optimization 

The company has continuously optimized 

the thermal power structure, and the 

electricity generation keeps increasing. 

With vigorous implementation of 

technology transformation, both the coal 

consumption of electricity supply and the 

station service power consumption rate 

keep going down, and the high-efficient 

low-carbon development of coal-fired 

power is accelarated. 

In 2015, the net coal consumption of 

the company was 283.58g/kWh, and the 

comprehensive station service power 

consumption rate was 4.35 percent; and 

100 percent of the desulphurization 

equipment and denitrification equipment 

necessary were installed. In the National 

Energy Efficiency Benchmarking & Contest 

of Thermal Generating Units, the Unit 3 

of Tianji Power Plant was awarded the 

First Prize of the"National 600MW Ultra-

supercritical Water-cooled Thermal Units 

Contest", and the Unit 1 of Caojing Power 

Plant and the Unit 2 of Tianji Power Plant 

were awarded the Third Prize of the 

"National 1000MW Ultra-supercritical 

Water-cooled Thermal Unit Contest' 

and the "National 600MW Supercritical 

Water-cooled Thermal Units Contest" 

respectively. In the energy efficiency 

contest sponsored by the SASAC, the Unit 

3 of Tianji Power Plant was awarded the 

"Best Coal Consumption Prize for 600MW 

Ultra-supercritical Water-cooled Units'. 
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Promoting Sustainalide 

Development with Renewable 

Energy 
tun 	 i L;alikun Ling.han 

48t4t, 
Wind low, Proinct 
Xwo Count 51999 

.11,99ny 9191,5 II 

100. 3.98. 
VV9n9ntote Cnurn9 Ch,onzhong County 	I 

Pan,t 
Inner Mon9,1■ 9 410, niong7lie 

The company takes the initiative to 

develop photovoltaic (PVL wind and other 

renewable energy projects and explores 

the distributed PV power projects. At the 

end of 2015, the generation capacity of 

renewable energy projects of SEP was 

813.9 MW, in which 392 MW came from 

PV power generation, arid 421.9 Mo' came 

from wind power generation. In 2015, the 

company procured 13.64 percent of equity 

of Shanghai Donghai Wind Power Co., Ltd. 

Wrnd Cow, Nun, Hon, 
Xinjtonn 

P9 Power 	Chavng 
Inner 1,lonoo19, 

Wind power projects PM power projects 

40. 
L'IstniAlted IT pane,  Pioject 

i9.1angvi, 

am,„ 
PT non., F,oicc 1. Malan 

Shanahan 691on ga9n9 TaivAngshan 

MW MW 5 49.5. 
P'nPu.ve.  5r01,1 

1114M 

FT Poop, Project. Sivong 

Golna, Phase I. 11  

49.5. 
Wind Power Projec t=  99 oower Prolect, x,njiong  Wind Power I,roject, N,na xi, 

EXpidring CoMpte.hensive Energy 

Supply 
• • 

C.Z1,1:41: rif  
97,-4,111, eri9rgv rrni9c, 

fr9.talicd vindtit? 
T, power ..eject, 

The company explores comprehensive 

energy supply and is dedicated to building 

an integrated energy supply chain 

characterized by"PV power generation, 

and distributed and centralized energy 
supply". 

Prop09,9n of renewable 	 capacity wold 
pow,' pfolec IC 

50.79 
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The Ayoun Muussa project in Egypt has been 

officially approved by the group, and the Joint 

Development Agreement has been concluded 

between SEP and its partners, Korea Electric 

Power and the ANI from UAE. It has been 

added to the China-Egypt Production Capacity 

Norwegian 	 Cooperation List. 

• 
England 

Montenegro • 
Italy • 

O 
Malta 

America 

• 

Turkey 

• 
	

hag 

Egypt 

The Oil to Gas Conversion Project of the D3 

Power Plant has been smoothly launched. The 

45MW wind power project in Montenegro has 

been approved. 

Implementing "Going Out" Strategy to Expand 
Overseas Markets 411111=111111111110 

Optimicm9 C}:er:e:ac Project 

Layout 

Responding to China's "Going Our 

policy positively, the company takes the 

initiative to promote overseas projects, 

and assists the local governments in 

developing resources and facilitates 

the transformation of the local resource 

advantages to economic advantages. 

In 2015, the company formulated the 

International Development Plan of SEP 

(2015-2020). 

By the end of 2015, the company had 

carried out preliminary work of overseas 

projects in 19 countries and regions. 

41111111111M0 
On July 9, 2015, the local government nwed an 

official license for the Hu niolu 2a8611MW Coal-

fired Power Generation Project, which was the 

largest project invested by a Chinese enterprise 

In Turkey. 

CZMICE:=1= 
The 4.310W PV Power Plant In Sande City. Hyogo 

Prefecture was put into operation in early 

February 2016, 	 • 

The resumption of the WOW PV Power Project.  • 

in Nasukarasimarna Coy has started. 

The resumption of the 7E.SMW PV Power Project 

at Nishigo Village, fiskushinta Prefecture has 
started 

The PV Power Projects totaling VIMW in 

Shfionawate City, Osaka Prefecture and Tstrkoba 

City, Ma raki Prefecture respectively have been 

officially approved by the company 

-Tanzania 

The Feasibility Study Report for the 209MW gas-

fired power generation project In Tanzania has 

been approved officially by the Government 

of Tanzania, which meant that the company 

obtained the right to develop the project 
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Improvin0 S&T Innovation Sy'atorn 

The company has set up systems and 

mechanisms in favor of scientific and 

technical innovation, pays close attention 

to the training of scientific and technical 

talents, and has established efficient 

incentive mechanism. With an atmosphere 

in which science and technology are 
highly valued and scientific and technical 

talents are respected, the company 
provides solid platforms for scientific and 
technological innovation. 
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While promoting its own innovation and 

development in overseas markets, the 

company is dedicated to leading a number 

of companies with strengths to take they 

first step to "Going Out" arid promote tire 

export of technologies, equipment and 

labor services in relation to large thermal  

power generation from China, in order to 

realize win-win development. 
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Technological Innovation 
to Drive Growth 

The company improves scientific and technological innovation system continuously, 

strengthens its cooperation with universities and research institutes as well as the 

transformation and applications of Innovative achievements, and leads the industry 

upgrading through scientific and technological innovation, to contribute to ti ie creation of 

an innovative society. 
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wr • • 
We actively refine classical management experience and methodology. and make the classical 

cases on the integration of information technology and industry produce demonstration effects 

and becoine the industry bend 	within SPIC. We establish documented information 

technology and industry integration management system, and our ERP system Iws obtained the 

certification of the information technology and Industry integration management system. 

In June, 2015, the company was recommended by SPIC and added to the list of the 

Implementation Pilot Enterprises of the integration of information technology and industry 

by MIR. 

utuic 	mart 

The company gives full play to its business 

advantages and innovation mechanism to 

fully promote the development of smart 

lighting business. The company, leading 

the change of life style and development 

mode, is dedicated to building integrated 

terminals and important infrastructure for 

smart Litres. 

Adopting New Thinking 
to Improve Management 
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Boostino Efficiency with intormatization 

Construction 

The company gives full play to information 

technology and promotes the implementation 

of the Second Phase of its ERP system. As six ERP 
modules (Planning & Budget, Finance, Equipment, 

Materials, Projects and Contracts) have been 

implemented, the business risk control and the 

ERP system of the company are deeply integrated 

and effectively linked wills the OFISE managrnant 

results. During the design, construction and 

implementation of the ERP system, the company 

carried out special consulting and construction of 

information security at the same time, on which 

the building of the PRO platform is based, to 

make information management more normalized 
and systemized. 

In 2015, through the assessment of the Business 

Management Manual of the ERP system of the 

company, 667 risk control points were identified. 
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During the total process from 

development to construction of the 

Tianji Power Plant Project, the company, 

persisting in the principle of green 

construction, used sound absorption 

and insulation materials, which enabled 

the plant to meet the requirements of 

the urban noise control standards, and 

took measures to save materials and 

land and reduce the discharge of waste 

water, gas and residues to try to protect 

vegetation and biological diversity, in the 

hope of reducing the adverse impacts 

on the environment and realizing green 

development. In 2015, 42 percent of the 

Tianji Phase II Project site was covered 

with plants, and thus the project passed 

the acceptance of "Green Construction 

Demonstration Project in the Electric 

Sector" 

• Conttnuous 
irenrovernents and 
lean management hen' 

imluval., ideas 
and way, to protect 

the 	
sys,ens. 	 environment 

and the environmental 
protection In the plant 
tee P0(0 cycle n 
completed, 

• Thmuot, tile 
inteuratron of  

Ins "health' and 
'envitunmene 

t,ep, la OTESE 

EnvIronmental 
nisi, rriartz,Tertient 

h. 

4,priraLi:ii. of 	• 
environmentai 

pititezt inn 
performance 

• • • 
The company continuously improves its environment management mechanism through 

building the internal environmental protection expert network, carrying out internal 

environmental protection inspection, facilitating the improvement of its environmental 

protection lean management and bringing the internal inspection results into its 

performance indicators. The company regularly organizes and holds experience exchange 

meetings and workshops, and prepares and issues CEMS (Continuous Emission Monitoring 

System) management rules and standards for CEMS small room regulation, to strictly control 

environmental risks. 

In 2015, there was no environmental incident within the company. The Tianji Power Plant 

was awarded the "Prize for Over-Fulfilling Poliutants Discharge Reduction Goals" by the 

Anhui Provincial Government, and was entitled the "Environment-Friendly Enterprise" by 

the Huainan City Government and the'Excellent Environmental Protection Enterprise and 

the 'Excellent Energy-Saving and Consumption-Reducing Enterprise" (No.1 among thermal 

power enterprises) by the group company. 

• 

Environment 
mari?genient 
Innovation  

Am, environmensal 
mote:eon ieacimsety 
team Ivc 	the 
rr•es to,  re hams 

m procaine, ha• 
been est:oil:hen 

r resporomIc tor 
leading and managing 
Inc env:lame:Aar 

protection in the plant. 

• Rules for Intplenrentroo 
Technical Stmerwstort 
of Environmental 
Protection, 
Management 
Standards fur 
Environmental 
Protection. Regulations 
on rime Effective 
Operation and 
Managenwnt of the 
Onion Pollution Source 
Monitoring System, 
etc. have been newly 
issued 

• The operation and 
management of CEMS 
facilities ale regulated 
to ensure the accuracy 
and effectrveness nf 
CEMS data. 

• Envuonnlernal 
contingency plan, 
have been set up In 
accordance with the 
OHSE system: 

• Standard operating 
procedure; and  
a aid, tired and 
marnterrance systere 
have been set trc• 

• enveoninental 
pntezere teraical 
rmnion Z.11, 
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for supervise:9 
the enwronmental 
inntection in the plant. 

irnp,:we.rrien's 
ei-ivironmere:a! 

pi-zyt eztion 
te.:hrioloaief 

• Every environmental 
Protection hlthcator 
IS designated 
to responsible 
apartments and 
personnel while details 
are hichlIghted any ar 

• the plant establishes 
cooperation with 
China Electric Power 
Research Inctierte and 
other environmental 
protection Institutes 
to carry out 
technical training 
programs. conduct 
equipment diagnosis, 
make technical 
breakthroughs, etc., in 
the hope of improving 
its overall environment 
contrill and protection 
level. 

assessment mechanism 
charactenzed by"high 
rewards and heavy 
Petralne,  or given full 

play to make Monts 
through management 

0! 

t'r -Ts tiSTPEMIT.?; 
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p-oteztion 

• Continnency hardware facilities 
have neer, rnstalleO, and emergency 
drills are carried out regularly: 

• The operation mode is to he 
adjusted rim accordance mutt, the 
requirenlonl, of local environtnen.1 
protector, at:Matte, to get 
Involved in the environmental 
protecar of the recIlOri, 
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The company emphasizes the 

communication of the culture of 

environmental protection, educates and 

publicizes the stall about environmental 

protection knowledge, and tries 

to create the atmosphere of green 

development. The company also carries 

out environmental protection charity 

activities, and promotes more people to 

take an active part in the environmental 

protection activities through its own 

actions 

S 
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• To promote impedes, 
office iienugh the 

implemental.,  of the 

[RP system: 

• To promote 
lelesonlerences and 

seders confelemes 

vigorously to reouce 

busmen; trips and the 

incur paper 

• 

`se 

• • 	 • 

kaiieehl 

rhOrT: 

The company emphasizes water, electricity 

and paper conservation of In offices, and 

manages offices in accordance with the 

QHSE standards, integrating low-carbon 

and green ideas into every step of its 

operations. 

Taking environmental factors into full 

consideration in its procurement process, 

the company purchases equipment in 

accordance with the QHSE standards 

and strengthens the implementation 

of regulations in relation to supplier 

evaluation. In 2015, the company began to 

require coal suppliers to detect five harmful 

elements of coal at the port of shipment, 

to increase the proportion of Shenmu 

coal procurement and usage which is 

characterized by higher heating value and 

lower ash content and total sulfur content, 

and to make efforts to import more coal 

from Indonesia which is characterized by 

low total sulfur content and ash content 

(less than 30 percent of those in Shenmu 

• lo renovate ofece 
buildings for saving 

electricity and water. 

• to keep rho temperature 
of all condo !wing nor 

higher than 20 degrees 

Celsius el motel and not 

lower than Ti, degrees in 

statlier: 

coal), in the hope of reducing the emission 

of pollutants and improve air quality. 

In 2015, the company increased the 

Shenmu coal purchase by 16 percent from 

the previous year. with the heating value 

of the coal procured up 143 Kcal year on 

year; and the company imported 1.81 

million tons of coal from Indonesia. rising 

9.7 percent from the previous year and 

accounting for 22 percent of the total coal 

procured by its power plants in Shanghai 

area. All the coal imported by the company 

was in compliance with the regulations 

regarding the detection of the designated 

One harmful elements in coal in China, with 

zero incident of non-compliance. 

• To advocate prinung 

both sines of the Dal), 

The company actively supports the development of circular economy, carries out circular 

economy, promotes the circulating utilization of resources. and tries the best to achieve win-

win results of economic, social and environmental benelits. 

• to tuns oil kenos le and 
computer screens during 

off-hours 
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Regarding production safety as the basis 

and precondition of the work of power 

plants, we strengthen the customized 

management of every working area 

and separation of different areas, and 

promote the total-process standardized 

management of the safety of maintenance 

of various classes, to guarantee safe 

production.The company conducts 

pilot program in some of its subsidiaries 

to implement production safety 

management to the extent that it covers 

everywhere in them. 

In 2015, there was no accident such as 

personal injury and equipment damage 

within the company, and the accumulated 

days of no personal injury reached 3,137 

continuous days, and those of no damage 

to equipment reached 2,032 continuous 

days, 

41 
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• 
In 7015, the company passed the annual 

external audit conducted by DNV GL, and 

its Lunjmo Power Plant built the system 

and pa - seri the certification in the year 

when the tech, acal transformation project 

was pin into operation. 

The company developed the OFISE 

management plan for 2015, implemented 

the arrangement of the building of 

the safety, health and environmental 

protection system by SPIC and put the 

system into use for the first time in its 

Tianji Power Plant 

• 
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The company strengthens the identification 

of hidden dangers in equipment 

management and Its staff.lt supervises the 

performance.of duties strictly and impartially 

with an iron tay-t...-, controls non-compliances 

strictly and upr.,,ornprornisingly with 'iron 

hands'; and eliminates hidden dangers 

determinedly with an `iron heart", to make 

safety stable, controllable and under control. 

c..niwn, 

100r/t  

Every subsidiary of the company conducts 

emergency training arid drills positively. to 

improve their response and treatment ability 

in case of any emergency. 

During the" 12" Five-Year Plan" period, the 

company formulated 606 contingency 

plans and conducted 102 emerueics drills 

all ogethe 

During the peak demand period in summer, 

the company snakes emergency measures 

to keep the important equipment in the 

fuel conveying system in good condition 

and unload the fuel quickly, and follows the 

requirements tot minimum inventory in 

summer, to make sure the safe and stable 

operation of its plants. 

‘,";th SE.f€Ty• 

Strengthening the publicity, study and implementation of the Work Safety law of China and its 

new contents and requirements added since the 2014 revision, the company improves its staff's 

awareness of safety and skills of safe operation, and improves the safety level of its operations. 





Adhering to the concept of the mutual 

development of the company and the 

staff, we invested further in training and 

educational programs, and improved the 

training system characterized by"Inulti-

graded, multi-subject and multi-channels". 

In 2015, SEP Training Center was enlisted 

as one of the training bases for high-

skilled talents of Shanghai. 

In 2015, the company invested 27.05 

million yuan in training programs and 

gave 128 training courses, with a total 

number of participants of 5,852 person-

time and the participation of 100 percent 

of its employees. 

SEP High-skilled Talents Training Cass curia in i0.171r1■1110: With 
struidards and an order, and unproven the double dranneh oicareer development 
for prole.sionA1 and technical talents and high-skilled talents in combination 
with the company's development strategy of "Karr Transformation". It gives lull  

• play to the role: high-skilled talent,  can play in power generation, and its three-
level education acrd ruining 11.1liatIC111C11/ network guarantees the effect of an 
training.  of high-skilled enlents- 

Cuntmenlc gn t is b,r the Expert Panel 

47 

The company follows strictly the Labor 

Contract Law of China and the relevant 

laws and regulations. sticks to open, fair 

and equal recruitment policy, signs labor 

contracts with employees according to 

law, pays social security prermurn3f,c8 

employees in a tirneh• manner, stitlts to  

the corupt of egual pay for equal work". 

and fighltagainst labor discrimination and 

forcedl* r. 

In 207 	e company signed labor 

contr. 	ith 100percent of its employees, 

and 1 	rcent of its ernployeemleie 

covered the social security pr 

The company sticks to and improves 

continuously the democratic management 

system with the workers' congress as 

its basic form, and makes efforts to 

explore and implement multiple ways of 

democratic participation. By establishing 

the workers' congress system, making 

the process of calling for advice and 

suggestions more reasonable, and etc., the 

company listens to its employees' voices, 

actively talks and communicates with 

them, encourages them to get involved 

in its management and development. 

and really guarantees its employees' right 

to know, right to supervise and right to 

participate. In 2015, the number of the 

deputies to the workers' congress of the 

company was 202, and one session of the 

workers' congress was held. too percent of 

the proposals brought up at the congress 

were implemented. 

46 
r1  

ey the end of 7015, the company has n5,111 employees, in which the female staff accounted 

fin In, percent. bin were disabled employees and !EP, stall alemad.25 percent uf lire  

company's management team were female. 80 percent of the employees of the company's 

overseas projects were local residents. and 89 fobs were created. 

In 2015, the company followed strictly all the relevant laws and regulations, implemented 

positively the principle of democratic management, emphasized on the occupational health 

and safety of its staff, and made efforts to guarantee the rights arid interests of employees in 

every respect. 

We care about employees' occupational 

health and safety as well as their physical 

and psychological health, and make 

eh orts to create health and ideal working 

environment for them. The company 

organizes regularly employees' physical 

examination and invites well-known 

experts to conduct first-aid ability training 

for them to improve their awareness 

and skills of self-medication and mutual 

medication, strengthens the prevention 

and treatment of occupational diseases, 

and pays close attention to their 

psychological health. By the end of 2015, 

100 percent of the staff had taken the 

physical examination, 

Interpretation of strategies, business 
marnagernent. corporate vulture, safety, 
produeenon technologies, labor.  °niece., 
financials, performance management. 
international business, foreign languages, etc. 

Nese,  employees. 
°nap-skill, workers. 
leannagement 

Et naLai  on. talent-. 
ann middle-level oriel 
tfigh-level manager,  

s, 

op 

SET high-skilled 
talents inannino 
Ease SPICAuvanced 
Thinning t.ctitei, 
effernaleraincig 
institute, et: 

• 

We provide good channels for career advancements of employees, constantly enrich and 

improve training system, continuously improve talent reserve and training system, and have 

established long-term incentive mechanisms including model incentive. 



• Po the end or 2015. Mc 

crinpany ha created 

droop, file,  or 944 

employe, 

• hi far. 52 young 
employees are in the 

reserve. 

• The company has selected 
169 employees for the 

pilot program 

• To nolehm, clan anti pick up tamee, 

• lo reaaim the young employees to conduct self-
asserament.and develop costomded career 

oevelopmem and persorolgroolliAans ter them. 

• 

 

to prepare no employees cont.,: In:. and track anti 

follcro 	[nee growth regulark,•• 

• 19, constr., torrog by mean; of training course, 
lectures, contmts, guidance by experienced workers. 

cormionicatom oporaiol. selector , etc  

• To create personal growth files 

for young employee, uncle, 

25 year, sold, and develop 

toner plans ins them 

• To formulate the selection standards of young 

talents to be adoed la do reserve; 

To renal,/ implement the selection procedure, 

• Ti train the selected talents by designated tutors; 

• to provide framing courses fur young talents. 

To rerun its subsulianec !beam/opt the pike 
program based on inert owl muaton. create 

innovative training method, such as one young roan 

berm reserved for each key positron, double channels, 

gurrJance by expenenced worker to young employees, 

A/6 roles and oration, encoUrage young employees 

to join the selection of outstandem youth. technical 

torurns.00 activities and symposiums in 1115195119619 
and work and experience in tough places such as log 

Masse. proiectl and 'Oolong Musa Power Plant; 

• ill Se, Up the reserve o• 

excellero young employees in 

provide young talents reserve 

for the development of the 

company 

• The program was launched 
in March. 2913 M SEP Caojrng 

Power Plant. Waigaogiao 

Power Plant and Tranji Power 

Plant 
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• 
The company provides good pladorms 

for the development of its staff. It widens 

continuously the channels of career 

advancements for the employees, and 

encourages them to choose the right post 

arid channel for them to give full play to 

their talents and to grow and develop. 
As the pace of the company entering in 

international markets is quickened, the 

company also has set up a job rotation 

and talent reserve system in favor of 

both the company's development and 

the career development of its employees 

working abroad. to improve their skills, 

experience, mentality and initiative. 

Promising youth makes the country 

prosperous, and excellent youth makes 

the country powerful. it is even more so 

for an enterprise. SEP has been paying 

close attention to the reserve, training 

and incentive of young talents With the 

Young Talents Reserve being established 

and training plans for young talents being 

developed, the company has set up a regular 

training mechanism step by step. 

riming the one and hall .year's work abroad, I was SO lucky to 

lsudIt several accidents succeszfully. The experience is rare and valuable. 

3rd loony how to cherish and possess 	atter you eVelle1111: a fret. VIC! y011 

understand the len nod results only when )0 it look back. • 

— Dai Vanbin 
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SEP sticks to, explores and improves 

continuously the-Model Worker Incentive" 

mechanism, and put forward the policy of 

"caring about the model workers' growth, 

life and work" to facilitate the model workers' 

growth. We have set up the niechanisni 

ortraming, publicizing, caring about and 

serving the model wt.,' kers', which drives 

the normalization of the Model Worker 

Incentive mechanism. By the end of 2015, 

14 employees in the company had been 

selected as model workers. 

The company, by consolidating value 

orientation and creating an ambient of 

encouraging hard working, also transforms 

the spirit of model workers to the power 

to drive its sustainable development. We 

improve the establishment of the "Model 

Workers' Room for Innovation" continuously, 

and try to expand the influence of model 

workers' spirit and to lead the employees to 

try to be equal to those who are virtuous and 

talented and catch up with and surpass those 

who are progressive through the platform. By 

the end of 2015.10 model workei innovation 

studios and eight employee innovation 

studios wow established by the company 

We give employees in difficult family 

financial circumstances and employees 

suffering from illnesses basic help in life 

and mental help.The company has set up 

a fund especially for helping and visiting 

regularly the employees facing difficulties 

and:or suffering from illness. 

In 2015, the company helped 2,253 

Person-times of employees facing 

difficulties, and invested 3.162 million 

yuan in the condolence payment; helped 

74 person-times of employees suffering 

from serious illnesses, and paid 806,000 

yuan to help employees suffering tient 

serious illnesses 

In the lotus, WC will continue to try to improve slur professional 

skills. gins lull play In slur role, as model workers, and make contribution to 

the development at 001' to eunstritil into the lir>t world-leadiny, enterprise in 

in accordance with the 2.54' strategy of the company, 

miirnehis made by all the model workers 

We care about employees life and work, classify employees nue different groin, and 

them customized care and help based on the problems, difficult., and urgent demands  

they are facing. In 2015, the satisfaction rate of employees with the company reached 90 

percent. 
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We keep making effort; to give the 
	

We pay high attention to the improvement 

warmest meetings from home to 	 of the working conditions for the front-line 

our employees working abroad on 	 employees, and try the best to provide them 

festival occasions when they miss then 	 with better working environment. 

families more than ever, by means of 

the executives of the company visiting 

employees working abroad in person and 

holding a party for their family members 

during the period from the Spring Festival 

to the Lanten Festival every year.  

 

We pay high attention to the improvement 

of the working conditions for the front-line 

employees, and try the best to provide them 

with better working environment. 

We promote the eniichment of employeeslife and expansion of their horizons. By means of 

holding employee dragon boat races and other cultural and sports activities, the company provides 

platforms for the employees to show their talents and enrich their off-duty life, strengthens their 

teamwork awareness. and creates a positive and healthy ambient for life and work. 

 

We recognize the contributions made by 

the retired employees to the development 

of the company, and emphasize on the 

communication with retired employees and 

inheritance of experience accumulated by 

them. We stick to the concept of 'respecting 

and caring about the aged and provide 

retired employees with physical guarantee 

and spiritual care. 

We not only pay close attention to the 

physical development of employees, but 

also care about their spiritual and cultural 

demands. In 2015, by means of setting up 

free employee bookstores, the company 

created good ambient for the employees 

to read and get more knowledge, which 

promoted the building of spiritual 

civilization of the company. 
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Volunteer Service to 
Deliver Warmth 

Poverty Alleviation 
Activity Highlights 
Responsibilities 

Adhering to the volunteer spirit of idecfication, friendliness, mutual assistance. and progress", 

we "instantly develop and enlarge our volunteer team it. company has effectively 

conducted public welfare projects including the "Yingshaill long' volunteer service activity 

and voluntary blood donation activity foi many yea's. 

We constantly carry out poverty alleviation activities, increase investment for poverty 

alleviation, conduct student assistance activities, and support the development of 

vulnerable groups and backward regions. 

During the-121' Five-Year Plan" period, the company's investment in poverty alleviation 

reached 1.985 million yuan, helping 205 households of families with difficulties. and 

benefiting 7,854 people. 
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E>einz a Gicybal 

Citizen tC 

Karmony 

With the expansion of overseas business. we have conducted operation in an increasing number 

of countries The company has actively participated in the local infrasiruaure construction and 

:on linunity building. trying the best to be a qualified global corporate citizen. It has also paid 

attention to the employment of the country iii which it operates, and the career development 

of local workers. In 2015, SEP's overseas projects created 37 employment opportunities, and the 

localization rate of overseas employees reached 80 percent. 
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Building Solid Defense Line v.,ith Integrity Edueatia! Complying with Laws 
and ReguLations tO  

Ensure Development 

Abiding by laws and regulations strictly, the company promotes the law popularization 

and the building of law risk prevention mechanism in a deep-going way, enhances anti-

corruption and integrity upholding construction, makes special efforts to carry out efficiency 

supervision work, so as to guarantee the compliance operation, and the stable and healthy 

development. 

LOSS r 	'W,I0ti  

Through special-topic education, 

conversation reminder, publicity base 

building, and other means, the company 

actively conducts anti-corruption and 

integrity upholding publicity education. 

In 2015, it organized 200-odd special-topic 

education including center team studies, 

Party lectures. and visiting activities, and 

the participants reached more than 3.600 

person-times. 

The company has enhanced internal 

control and built integrated risk 

prevention chain; conducted off-office 

auditing for each and every oft-office 

managers, and strengthened rotation 

auditing in combination with iii.office 

auditing; revised and released the new 

manual for r isk management and internal 

control. It introduced the Committee 

of Sponsoring Organizations of the 

Treadway Commission ICOSO) 2013, using 

business process reengineering (BPR) and 

enterprise resource planning (ERP) results 

to distinguish domestic and foreign risk 

control management processes, optimize 

authorized approval system, and set up 

third-tier organization management and 

control requirements. 

In 2015, the company completed 10 

economic responsibility auditing projects, 

2 auditing projects relating to assets, 

liabilities, profits and losses, and 5 special 

auditing and auditing investigation 

projects. The auditing opinions and 

suggestions were completely rectified. 

The research project of the 'Risk 

Management for Overseas Investment 

of Electric Power Enterprises" won the 

second prize of management innovation 

achievements of electric power industry 

in 2015. Tim "Risk Review on Kill Power 

Station Project in Tanzania" won the prize 

of excellent auditing and internal control 

project of SPIC. In SPIC's auditing and 

internal control benchmarking contest, 

the company took the second place in 

terms of rating scores. 

Usury the dlsclf. , se Inspection and supervhion 
channel n: iht• nfirsial WVbSile of the company 
as oIxtorn, SEP release: information relasing 
in 6.i-corruption ann estennie unholdim, 

itItt:Ils■ 	52011,.• 	MA) 
nut, 01 l'ony members and leader,. 

The discipline 	 The company send 
insnectron 	 5M5 message 
commission of 	!elating to Integra) 
the sompasse 	 up,  loldhsp to its 
organizes suite nye 	leaders and managers 
conversolion with 	 mpnnant 
newly appointed 	holidays and festivals, 
rnanayers in batches, 	publicizing the work 
and the leaders at 	style of heino a cleats 
various level; give 	person and doing 
renunders regularly In 	clean things. 
department directors 
and key managers 

SEP vigorously enhances legal risk 	 'Going Our development strategy and 

prevent., system construction. 	 nye; seas projects, it conducts centralized 

Depending on the review of 'three laws", 	special-topic legal knowledge training 

the company has constantly improved 	 for project team, regular employees of 

legal risk prevention mechanism. In 	 overseas projects, and financial personnel 

accordance with the requirements of 	 involving foreign accounting. 

ontrol uric 

PromPting"Two Responsibilities' and Conducting Research 

Optimizing Management with Efficiency Supervision Combating Corruption 
and Upholding Integrity 

The company further integrates internal 

supervision power and resources. It has 

improved the capabilities of supervision, 

discipline inspection and accountability 

of discipline inspection, actively 

integrated internal supervision power 

and resources, attached importance to 

the implementation of "Eight Regulation" 

of the CPC Central Committee and the 
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4  

"Five Prohibitions" of SPIC, conducted 

supervision for self-examination and 

self-correction of auditing of part of 

its subsidiaries, and the rectification 

of office room of all subsidiaries, and 

Comprehensively carried out rectification 

work relating to issues found during the 

inspection tour or auditing. 

4b 

The company actively promotes the 

implementation of "two responsibilities" 

in a deep-going way. On the one hand, 

it turns responsibility system on Party 

style and clean management into KPI 

performance goal, endorsing with 

signature of leaders at various levels, 

and on the other hand, prints the 

"Responsibility letter of Implementing 

Main Responsibility of Party Style and 

Clean Management Building", improving 

the complete chain of responsibility 

breakdown, inspection and supervision, 

• 

and tracking-down and investigation. 

With the in-depth development of the 

"Going Our strategy, SEP, depending 

upon the research on the professional 

integrity and the risk prevention and 

control of overseas markets, drafts 

manual on the professional integrity and 

the risk prevention and control, so as to 

strengthen the awareness of integrity 

of employees working abroad, and 

guarantee the healthy development of the 

company's overseas strategy. 
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This v. the second time Ina row that I have read the social responsibility report of Shanghai Electric Power 

Company L milted of State Power Investment Corporation (SPI117. Many companies have always been 

talking about the innovation of the social responsaulay report. hoptng to compile a report that is aliment 

front that of past years a of othei companies. Rut sometimes the form seems to receive more weight 

troll the content. However. we can see from this moon, Shanghai Electric Power Company Limited has 

given deep ti tonight of their social responsibility, understood how in demonstrate to stakeholders and 

they have a cleat understanding of then-  position.  

Ffistly. the framework of report maintained its merits and made some innovations as well. The report has 

used the framework of 2014 social responsibility report and continued to show their social respmrsibility 

and performance with a relatively waviest attitude. Meanwhile, Shanghai Electric Powei Company 

Limited has seized the opportunity of the ending of the"1 2r"  Five-Year Plan" and has given a summary 

of the social responsibility performance fa the past five years to stakeholders. making them understand 

wore clearly of the overall conditions of the company. Apo, horn this, they nave conveyed their concept 

of green development and the practice of green operation to stakeholders in the tram of specific topics. 

which to the environmental protection concerned try the public Green development not only firs the 

country s new development concept, bra is also closely combined with the overall development strategy 

of SPI17, highlighting the resolution of green development, 

Secondly, the report is more readable. By quoting the content of the conversation between the 

employees and stakeholder-, at the beginnIng. the report makes people feel warns. A small change as it is, 

the social responsibility report gives the information of what the public want to know instead of what the 

company wants to let them know. Meanwhtle, the overall designing style is consistent with that of 2014 

and highlighted the authenticity and readability of the report in terms of figures, pictures or diagrams. 

Thirdly, the report can make some improvements on the whole. In line with the disclosure requirements 

of social responsibility standard as home and abroad, the moon of Shanghai Electric Panel- Company 

Limited still have some room to improve. The released data of the report has been increasing year by year, 

but many quantitative indicators of public concern especially environmental protection index still need to 

be further increased. in the ineanttme, the report also reflected that the social responsibility management 

is not systematic enough, the management work of social responsibility, organization and coordination 

are in their initial stage. certain gap still exists between the social responsibility management of 

outstanding enterprises home and abroad. 

All in all having read this report, the efforts can be seen in social responsibility management and practice 

especially the reflection on vire social responsibility report of Shanghai Electric Power Company Limited.  

The compilation of the social responsibility report Itself gives a clear picture of the social responsibility 

performance of the company. The merits and demerits of social responsibility performance can all be 

seen from this report. I sincerely hope that Shanghai Electric Power Company Limited can apply its social 

responsibility concept into tire practice of operation, making more contributions and environmental 

values to the society along with the creation of company values. 

the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security 

Deputy Director of Institute of Internattonal Labor and Social Security 

zhanglunteng 

I have carefully read the 2075 Social Responsibility Report of Shanghai Electric Powet Company Limited 

of State Power Investment Corporation Ihereinaftet referred to as Shanghai Electric Report) This is the 

3rd social responsibility report released by Shanghai Electric to the public and the 1st report released 

by Shanghai Electric after the restructuring of State Power Investtnent Corporation. As 201'5 marks 

the filial year of the nation's 12" Five-Yea) Plan, thy report has demonstrated in a detailed manner the 

responsibility practices and performances of Shanghai Electric during the "12' Five-Year Plan' period. 

Under the strategic guidance of State Power Investment Corporation, the social tesponsibility practices of 

Shanghai Electric has been increasingly corresponding to the national and international trends of social 

iesponsibility development, thus dernotrthating the company's iesolut min and sincerity lot fultillrng its 

social responsibilities. 

This Social Responsibility Report of Shanghai Flecuic is <tiaradetieed mainly by the following aspects on 

the whale: 

First, the Isathowurk is stably. The frarnewoik of this report hes basically adopted the farm and structure 

of last year, allowing stakeholders to conduct longitudinal compat ison lot a clear knowledge or the 

responsibility practices of Shanghai Electric over the past two years, reflecting the increasing maturity of 

Shanghai Electric in terms of its theories and practices on social responsibilittes. 

Second, the content is written in a properly detailed mannerTopics of •12' Five-Year Plan" and 

'Environmental Protection" have been added into this report so as to give stakeholders a clearer picture 

of the focus of Shanghat Electric in terms of its responsibility f ulfillment In 2015. 

Third, the form continues to be Innovative. Introducing each chapter with words from both staffs of 

Shanghai Electrrt and external stakeholders has brought readers closer to the company. reflecting the 

fact that Shanghai Electric is compiling this soca) responsibility report from stakeholders' perspective 

instead of lust finishing the compiling work perfunctorily. 

As the new media age approaches, the company has gained increasingly more attention from 

stakeholders. A good social responsibility report can help bridge the gap between companies and 

stakeholders, giving the public a better understanding of both the company and its social responsibilities 

while promoting recognition between the two parties. 

In spite of all above, this report of Shanghai Electric has left some room fur progress in Its social 

responsibility work, especially in the management of its social responsibilities. I hope that Shanghai 

Electric can build a social responsibility management system and a propelling mode in accordance 

with the international development by means of combining the overall development strategy of State 

Power Investment Corporation with the actual features of Shanghai Electric, while building a century-

old company by increasing the sustainable competitiveness of the company through social responsibility 

management. 

One has to keep his responsibiltfies in mind while fulfilling los responsibilities by actual deeds. I sincerely 

hope that Shanghai Electric can embed the concept and method of its social responsibility into various 

aspects of the operotIon of the company, help Its gaffs internalize such concept and method through 

actual deeds, and cooperate with stakeholders to build a better life! 

Director of the Corporate Social Responsibility Development Centre of the China federation of Industital Economics 

Secretary General of the Think Tank of Research on Social Responsibilities of industrial Enterprises in China 

Vice Chasms., of the Chinese InsliSule Of Business holmintstration 

Expert of the ()Won,' Grove for National Corporate Social ResponssobsIstv Standards 

Wang Xiaoguang 

Cor-,merct from 

Experts 
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Feedback Form 
	

About the Report 

Tel.: 021-23108718 

Fax: 021-23108717 

Postal Code:200010 

sepcoeshanghaipower.com  

Address: No. 268 Zhongshan South Road, 

Shanghai, China 

Department: Securities Department of 

Shanghai Electric Power Company Limited 

Preparation of the report 

The report is prepared and compiled in 

accordance with the requirements of the 

"Guiding Opinions on Performance of 

Social Responsibilities by Central State-

Owned Enterprises" of the State-Owned 

Assets Supervision and Administration 

Commission (SASAC) of the State 

Council, the "Notice on Strengthening 

Social Responsibility Performance of 

Listed Companies" of the Shanghai 

Stock Exchange, the"Guidelines for 

Environmental Information Disclosure 

of Listed Companies of the Shanghai 

Stock Exchange", the'Sustainability 

Reporting Guidelines, Version 4.0" of 

the Global Reporting Initiative (GRIL 

and the "Guidelines on Corporate Social 

Responsibility Reporting for Chinese 

Enterprises (CASS-CSR 2.01" of the 

Research Center for Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) under the Institute 

of Economics of the Chinese Academy of 

Social Sciences. 

Explanation of Abbreviations 

For the convenience of presentation and 

reading, the "Shanghai Electric Power 

Company Limited" in this report is also 

expressed by the 'Shanghai Electric 

Power", "the company" and "we". 

Reporting cycle 

This report is an annual report. The 

company released its first corporate social 

responsibility report on March 25, 2014, 

and the second on Mardi 27, 2015. This 

is the third of its kind of Shanghai Electric 

Power Co., Ltd. 

Reporting period 

The reporting period of this report is from 

January 1.2015 to December 31, 2015. 

Some contents may surpass the above 

scope. 

Reporting contents 

If without special instructions, the data 

of this report is from official documents, 

statistical reports and financial reports 

of Shanghai Electric Power Company 

Limited. as well as information relating to 

social responsibility practices of various 

functional departments and affiliated 

enterprises that has been collected, 

summarized and audited by the social 

responsibility management system of the 

company. 

Indicato• selection 

In terms of indicator selection, the main 

considerations of this report are the 

relativity, materiality and availability of 

indicators relating to topics, which can 

not only reflect the performance of the 

company's social responsibility practices, 

but also can be collected by the existing 

management system. 

Availability of the report 

The report is available both as printed 

version and online version. If you need the 

printed report. please mail to Shanghai 

Electric Power Company Limited. 

Address: No. 268 Zhongshan South Road, 

Shanghai. China 

Tel.: 021-23108718 

Fax: 021-23108717 

E-mail: sepcoeshanghaipoweccom 

You can log on to the official website of 

Shanghai Electric Power at 

http://www.shanghaipower.com/to  

browse or download the online report, 

learning the dynamic information relating 

to corporate social responsibility activities 

of the company. 

Shanghai Electric Power Company Limited pays great attention to your suggestions to our 

social responsibility report. If you have any comments and suggestions. please feel free to 

contact us, so that we can carry our continuous improvements of the report. 

Please fill your comments and suggestions in the following "Feedback Form", 

and mail it to us: 

Multiple choice questions 

Please fill appropriate serial number in tire"1 	I star ids tor ',Is". 2 stands for "no' and? 

stands for "have no idea": 

Do you think this report could well reflect the social responsibility performance of Shanghai 

Electric Power? 

Do you think the information disclosed in this report is clear and accurate? 

Do you think the content layout of this report is convenient for reading? 

Please feel free to give us your suggestions: 

1. Do you think which aspect is most satisfying in this report? 

2. Do you think which part is most important to your life? 

3. What information do you want to learn in the future? 

4, What are your suggestions to the future reports? 
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Company profile of State Power Investment Corporation 
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State Power Investment Corporation ("SPIC") was established in May 2015 through the 
reorganization and merger of China Power Investment Corporation and State Nuclear Power 
Technology Corporation. The Company has registered capital of RMB45bn, and reported sales 
revenue of RMB192.404bn in 2015 with total assets of RMB773.8bn and 129,000 employees. The 
Company has seven listed companies, with two listed in Hong Kong and five traded on the China A-
share market. 
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SPIC is one of the five largest electricity producers in China. The Company has total installed 
capacity of 107.4 GW, which is comprised of 68.27GW coal-fired power capacity, 20.94GW hydro 
power capacity, 3.36GW nuclear power capacity, 4.85GW solar power capacity and 9.98 GW wind 
power capacity. Clean energy, as the strategic focus of the Company, accounts for 40.06% of the 
total installed capacity. The Company has coal production capacity of 80.4 million tons per year (t/y), 
aluminum smelting capacity of 2.485 million t/y and railway transportation line of 331 km, which 
have paralleled the development of power generation. 
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SPIC is one of the three largest nuclear power developers and operators in China. The nuclear 
power plants in operation and under construction in Haiyang (Shandong province), Hongyanhe 
(Liaoning province) and Rongcheng (Shandong province) as well as some inland and coastal plant 
sites formed the platform of the 3rd generation of self-reliant nuclear power technology in China. It 
is the leading entity to proceed with the major national project of large-scale cutting edge 
pressurized water reactor. By leveraging its strong capabilities and complete industrial chain in 
nuclear power R&D, design, engineering construction, manufacturing, operation and management 
of related equipment and materials, SPIC is able to assume the great responsibility of the 3rd 
generation of self-reliant, industrialized and international-oriented nuclear power industry in China. 
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SPIC is committed to business globalization and internationalization. The Company has already 
established presence in 36 countries (regions) including Japan, Australia, Malta, India, Turkey, 
Pakistan, South Africa, Brazil and Myanmar etc. Its controlled installed capacity is 1.0962GW; the 
controlled installed capacity under construction is 10.0205GW; and the attributable installed 
capacity under cooperation agreement with preparatory work in place is 5.14GW. The Company 
has the qualification and capacity to offer full-range and complete industrial chain service for project 
construction and operation across coal-fired power, nuclear power, new energy and power 
transmission and distribution 
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1. Corporate information 

I. Company Information 

Chinese name of the Company 	 ..EAF.JAStf5MPfl'.L:A 

Chinese name abbreviation of the Company 	_Legjj  

Foreign name of the Company 	 SHANGHAI ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY LIMITED 

Foreign name abbreviation of the Company 	SEP 

Legal Representative 	 Wang Yundan 

Company's registered address 	 No. 268 Zhongshan Road South, Shanghai 

Postal code of company's registered address 200010 

Company's office address 	 No. 268 Zhongshan Road South, Shanghai 

Postal code of company's office address 	200010 

Company website 	 www.shanghaipower.com  

E-mail 	 sepco@shanghaipower.com  

II. Company Stock 

Company Stock 

Type 	 Stock Listing Exchange 	Abbreviation 	Stoke code 

A Stock 	Shanghai Stock Exchange 	 SEP 	 600021 

2. Business description 

I. Main Business 
The Company focuses on development in fields including efficient energy utilization, clean energy, 
new energy, modern electric power services and circular economy. By continuous development, 
reform and innovation, the Company has become an integrated modern energy corporation which 
undertakes thermal power generation by efficient utilization of fire coal, gas power generation, wind 
power generation, solar power generation and distributed power supply. The Company has 
established businesses all over China and it has been expanding overseas businesses step by step. 
Main businesses of the Company include electric power generation, heat supply and electric power 
services. Details are as below: 

1. Electric power generation 

Electric power generation is the core business of the Company. Based on the rapid development of 
efficient low-carbon coal power, the Company makes great effort to develop new reproducible 
energy businesses such as wind power and solar power to greatly increase the proportion of new 
reproducible energy. Based on the development strategy of "Specializing Shanghai's Businesses, 
Optimizing Domestic Businesses and Strengthening Overseas Businesses", the Company has 
expanded electric power generation businesses all over China. By the end of 2015, shareholding 
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installed capacity of the Company has reached 9,362,700 KW among which 6,480,000 KW is coal 
power, accounting for 69.21%; 2,068,800 KW is gas power, accounting for 22.10%; 421,900 KW is 
wind power, accounting for 4.50%; 392,000 KW is photovoltaic power, accounting for 4.19%. Clean 
energy accounts for 30.79% of the installed capacity and installed capacity of above 600,000 KW 
accounts for 70.9% of the total installed capacity of coal power. 

2. Heat supply business 

Heating supply business is an important business of the Company. Heat supply business of the 
Company concentrates in Shanghai and the Company earns profit mainly from subsidiary power 
plants including Shanghai Caojing Cogeneration Co., Ltd., Shanghai Wujing Power Generation Co., 
Ltd. and Shanghai Waigaoqiao Power Generation Co., Ltd. The main service objects are large 
industrial enterprises and residents around these power plants. The Company fully implements the 
governmental policy of "Shutdown and Replacement of Small Coal-fired Boilers" and continuously 
expands concentrated heat supply. In the public heating power market of Shanghai, the Company 
has achieved a market share of 56.3%. The combined heat-power units of the Company, with a 
large capacity, are highly efficient. Shanghai Caojing Cogeneration Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the 
Company, has the largest combined gas-steam circulating unit in China. The heating capacity and 
heating parameters of these units are most advanced in the industry and at a world level when 
compared with devices of the same type both domestic and abroad. 

3. Electric power services 

In addition to supply of electric power, the Company, based on its main business of electric power 
generation and depending on inherent advantages in respect of talent, technology and operating 
management, has expanded its energy service markets such as power station management, 
technical services, operation and repair & maintenance. 

In respect of subsidiaries of the Company, engineering companies have acquired the qualification 
for project EPC in EU and operating companies have acquired the qualification to provide foreign 
labor services. These companies are capable of undertaking core O&M businesses for domestic 
key electric power industries and of providing professional services including power station 
operation, maintenance and overhauling. Presently, the Company has gone out Shanghai and it 
provides services for thermal power stations, nuclear power stations and new energy power stations 
both domestic and abroad. It has become strongly competitive in the industry. In addition to provide 
services all over China, the Company is also one of the electric power service enterprises which 
implement the "Going Out" Strategy first. It has been entrusted by several foreign countries to 
operate their thermal power units, including Equatorial Guinea, Iraq and Turkey. 

Shanghai Minghua Electric Power Technology Engineering Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of SEP, is one of 
the high-tech enterprises in Shanghai and one of the technological "Giant" enterprises to be 
cultivated by the Shanghai Government. Minghua Electric Power continuously improves the quality 
and technical content of technical services, promotes industrialization of scientific and technological 
achievements and accelerates the transfer of traditional technical services to high-end technical 
services such as technical consultation, product R&D and product promotion. 

• 
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Operating Performance 

Indicator Unit 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Total assets billion yuan 31.603 31.567 35.053 47.344 52.046 

Operating revenue billion yuan 17.376 15.044 15.132 16.102 17.018 

Total profit billion yuan 0.823 1.355 2.096 2.498 2.852 

Net profit attributable to the parent company billion yuan 0.463 0.883 1.181 1.326 1.332 

Total controlled installed capacity MW 5748.9 5757.8 8537.1 8757.6 9362.7 

Amount of power supply TWh 34.568 30.597 31.119 33.597 35.23 

Amount of heat supply million GJ 13.5712 11.7795 10.9414 11.1593 13.8856 

Production capability MW 5748.9 5757.8 8537.1 8757.6 9362.7 

Equity installed capacity MW 7009.3 7161.9 8476.3 8932.2 9361.5 

Patents registered piece 6 8 17 37 84 

Safety Production 

Indicator Unit 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Major casualty accident times / 0 0 0 0 

Major equipment accident times / 0 0 0 0 

Electric power safety accident times 0 0 0 0 

Environmental pollution accident times / / / 0 0 

Days of continuous safe production and 
operation 

day / 937 1302 1667 2032 

Environmental Protection 

Indicator Unit 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Coal consumption for power supply g/kWh 312.49 291.48 291.20 287.92 283.58 

Production capability of renewable energy 
projects 

MW 10.9 19.8 300.6 491.1 813.9 

Emission of NO, 1000 tons 44.805 31.415 25.346 12.537 6.538 

Emission of SO2 1000 tons 19.768 10.571 9.983 6.079 6.087 

Emission performance of NO,, g/kWh 1.05 0.85 0.68 0.34 0.18 

Emission performance of SO2 g/kWh 0.46 0.28 0.27 0.18 0.17 

Emission performance of dust g/kWh 0.103 0.098 0.079 0.076 0.046 

Social Harmony 

Indicator Unit 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Number of employees person 6913 6673 6492 6445 

Proportion of female employees % 13.7 13.9 14.46 15.93 

Rate of signing labor contracts % 100 100 100 100 

Rate of joining trade union % 100 100 100 100 

Number of employee volunteers person / / 1698 2208 

Number of volunteer services person-time 1679 1912 2186 
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3. Management credentials 

Name 	 Experience 

Wang Yundan 
	

Present Chairman and Secretary of the Party Committee of SEP. Once was General 
Manager of Shanghai Urban Electric Power Supply Limited of Shanghai Electric 
Power Company, Deputy Director of the Technology Department of State Grid 
Corporation of China, Director of the Planning and Development Department of China 
Power Investment Corporation. 

Wang Huaiming 
	

Present Director and President of SEP. Once was Director of the Planning 
Department and Deputy Chief Engineer of State Grid Jiangsu Electric Power 
Company & General Manager of State Grid Wuxi Power Supply Company, Deputy 
General Manager and member of the Party Committee of State Grid Hubei Electric 
Power Company, General Manager and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of 
State Grid Qinghai Electric Power Company, Deputy Director of and Director of the 
Planning Department of China Power Investment Corporation. 

Wang Jiangong 
	

Present full-time supervisor and director of the sponsored corporation of State Power 
Investment Corporation and Director of SEP. Once was Deputy Chief of the Finance 
Section of North China Power Engineering Co., Ltd., Deputy Director of the General 
Office of Auditing Bureau of Ministry of Electric Power Industry of PRC, Chief of the 
Auditing Department Section II of State Power Corporation, senior executive of and 
Deputy Manager of the Supervision & Auditing Department of China Power 
Investment Corporation, Deputy Director of the Auditing Department of China Power 
Investment Corporation, Deputy Director (responsible for the work) of and Director of 
the Auditing and Internal Control Department of China Power Investment Corporation. 

Zhang Hongde 
	

Present Deputy Director of the Finance and Assets Management Department of State 
Power Investment Corporation and director of SEP. Once was member of leading 
party group and Financial Controller of CPI Ningxia Energy Co., Ltd., member of 
leading party group and Financial Controller of CPI Xinjiang Energy Co., Ltd., member 
of leading party group and Deputy General Manager & Financial Controller of CPI 
Northwest Branch Co., Ltd., member of leading party group and Deputy General 
Manager & Financial Controller of Huanghe Group. 

Zhao Fengyun 
	

Present Deputy Director of the Thermal Power Department of State Power Investment 
Corporation and director of SEP. Once was senior executive of electricity market of 
the Marketing Department, Deputy Manager of the Commercial Department of, and 
Deputy Director of the Power Generation & Operation Department of China Power 
Investment Corporation. 

Mao Guoquan 
	

Present Deputy Director of the Hydraulic Power and New Energy Department of State 
Power Investment Corporation and director of SEP. Once was member of leading 
party group and Deputy General Manager of CPI Southern Power Co., Ltd., Board 
Chairman and Temporary Secretary of the Party Committee of Guangxi Changzhou 
Hydropower Development Co., Ltd., Deputy Director of the Foreign Business 
Department of China Power Investment Corporation, member of leading party group 
and Deputy General Manager of PI Yunnan International Power Investment Co., 
Ltd.(CPI Yunnan Power. Co., Ltd.), and Deputy General Manager of Upstream 
Ayeyawady Confluence basin Hydropower Co., Ltd. 

Xu Lihong 
	 Present Vice President, Financial Controller and director of China Power International 

Development Limited, and director of SEP. Once was Deputy Director General of the 
Economic Operation Division of State Economic and Trade Commission Electric 
Power Company, Vice President of and Manager of the Finance and Property 
Management Department of China Power International Development Limited. 

Wang Jintao 
	Present Manager of the Production and Technology Department of China Yangtze 

Power Co., Ltd., and director of SEP. Once was Chief Engineer of the overhaul 
factory of Gezhouba Power Plant Co., Ltd., Deputy Chief of the Production Section of 
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Name 

Sun Ji 

Zheng Liangcheng 

Xia Dawei 

Shao Shiwei 

Yu Xinyang 

Gao Yufeng 

Jin Mingda 

Xu Fei 

Zhao Yazhou 

Feng Junjie 

Li Zhengguo 

Experience 

the Power Production and Management Department of China Three Gorges 
Corporation, Engineering Technology Director and Deputy Manager of the Production 
and Planning Department of China Yangtze Power Co., Ltd., Director Assistant and 
Deputy Director of the overhaul factory of China Yangtze Power Co., Ltd. 

Once was Director, Deputy President & CFO of SEP, and Deputy Chief of the 
Financial Department of Shanghai Electric Power Company. 

Present Secretary of the Party Committee and Deputy General Manager of Yangtze 
Three Gorges Equipment & Materials Co., Ltd. Once was Manager of the Auditing 
Department of China Yangtze Power Co., Ltd., Financial Controller and Deputy 
General Manager of Yangtze Three Gorges Industrial Co., Ltd., Manager of the 
Production and Planning Department of China Yangtze Power Co., Ltd., and director 
of SEP. 

Present Professor and Doctorial Tutor of Shanghai National Accounting Institute, also 
Vice President of China Society of Industrial Economics, Chairman of Shanghai 
Accounting Society, consultant expert of the Accounting Standard Committee of the 
Ministry of Finance of PRC, Honorary Professor of Chinese University of Hong Kong, 
and member of the Listing Commission of Shanghai Stock Exchange. 

Present Independent Director of SEP. Once was Board Chairman, General Manager 
and Secretary of the leading party group of East China Grid Company Limited, 
General Manager and Secretary of the leading party group of State Power 
Corporation East China Company. 

Present Independent Director of SEP. Once was Deputy General Manager of China 
Huaneng Group, General Manager of Shanghai Electric Power Corporation, Primary 
Designated Engineer of State Electricity Regulatory Commission of PRC, and 
consultant of East China Grid Company Limited. 

Present Independent Director of SEP. Once was Deputy Director of Shanghai 
Municipal Commission of Housing and Urban Rural Development, Director of 
Shanghai Housing Accumulation Fund Management Center, Board Chairman and 
Secretary of the Party Committee of Shanghai Land (Group) Co., Ltd. 

Present President of Shanghai Chemical and Industrial Association, and Independent 
Director of SEP. Once was Vice President of Shanghai Electric (Group) Corporation, 
General Manager of Shanghai Mechanical & Electrical Industry Co., Ltd., President 
and Board Chairman of Shanghai Huayi (Group) Company. 

Present Board Chairman of Shanghai Re-guarantee Co., Ltd., and Independent 
Director of SEP. Once was Deputy General Manager of PICC Shanghai Company, 
and Vice President of Shanghai State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. 

Present Vice President of China Power International Development Limited, Deputy 
General Manager of China Power International Holding Limited, and Chairman of the 
Board of Supervisors of SEP. Once was Chief Accountant and Financial Controller of 
China Power International Holding Limited. 

Present Deputy Director of the Auditing and Internal Control Department of State 
Power Investment Corporation, and Supervisor of SEP. Once was Manager of the 
Internal Control Department of China Power International Development Limited, Chief 
of the Internal Control and Risk Management Section of the Auditing Department of 
China Power Investment Corporation. 

Present Deputy Chief of the Supervision Section II of the Supervision Department of 
State Power Investment Corporation, and Supervisor of SEP. Once was Senior Staff 
Member of Discipline Inspection Office I of the CPC Central Commission for 
Discipline Inspection, first-class staff of the Discipline Inspection Section I and the 
Discipline Inspection Section II of the Discipline Inspection Office of China Power 
Investment Corporation. 
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Experience 

Present Deputy Manager of the Financial Department of China Yangtze Power Co., 
Ltd., and Supervisor of SEP. Once was Director of the Xiba Accounting Center of and 
Auditor General of the Financial Department of China Yangtze Power Co., Ltd. 

Present Secretary of Discipline Inspection Commission, Chairman of the Labor Union 
and Employee Supervisor of SEP. Once was Deputy Secretary of the Party 
Committee of, Secretary of the Discipline Inspection Commission of and Chairman of 
the Labor Union of Yangchang Power Plant of Shanghai Electric Power Co., Ltd., 
General Manager and Secretary of General Party Branch of Shanghai Caojing 
Cogeneration Co., Ltd., Director of the Human Resource Department of Shanghai 
Electric Power Co., Ltd., Chief of the Leader Management Section of the Human 
Resource Department of China Power Investment Corporation. 

Present Party Branch Secretary of the Skill Training Center of SEP, and Employee 
Supervisor of SEP. Once was Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of, Secretary 
of the Discipline Inspection Commission of, vice president of Shanghai Electric 
Minhang Power Plant, Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Kanshan Power Co., Ltd., 
President of Shanghai Electric Minhang Power Plant. 

Once was Secretary of Discipline Inspection Commission, Chairman of the Labor 
Union, Employee Supervisor and Director of the Human Resource Department of 
SEP, Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of CPI Power Engineering Co., Ltd. 

Present Deputy President & Chief Engineer of SEP. Once was Deputy Chief of the 
Production and Technology Section of Shanghai Electric Power Company. 

Present Deputy President of SEP. Once was President of Shanghai Nanshi Power 
Plant, General Manager and Secretary of the Party Committee of Shanghai Electric 
Power Fuel Co., Ltd., General Manager and Secretary of the General Party Branch of 
Shanghai Caojing Cogeneration Co., Ltd., and General Manager of Shanghai Caojing 
Integrated Energy Co., Ltd. 

Present Deputy President of SEP. Once was Deputy Chief Engineer of Shanghai 
Waigaoqiao Power Plant, Director Assistant and Deputy Director of the Construction 
Preparation Section of Waigaoqiao Power Plant Phase-II Project, Deputy General 
Manager of Waigaoqiao No. 2 Power Generation Co., Ltd., Deputy Director of the 
Construction Preparation Section of Caojing Power Plant Phase-I Project, Deputy 
General Manager and General Manager of Shanghai Shangdian Caojing Power 
Generation Co., Ltd. 

Present Deputy President and Secretary of the Board of Directors of SEP. Once was 
Chief of the High-Tech Industrial Development Section of and Chief of the Energy 
Development Section of Shanghai Municipal Development & Reform Commission. 

• 
Name 

Li Aijun 

Gu Ai 

He Zhiliang 

Wang Guoliang 

Sun Weidong 

Guo Baohong 

Xing Lianzhong 

Xia Meixing 

• 

• 
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4. Top 5 shareholders as of 30 June 2016 

Name of shareholder 

State Power Investment Corporation 

China Power International Development Limited 

China Yangtze Power Co., Ltd. 

Central Huijin Investment Company Limited 

China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 

Others 

Shareholding 
CA) Shareholder nature 

43.02 State-owned legal person 

16.98 Overseas legal person (controlled by 
State Power Investment Corporation) 

5.67 State-owned legal person 

1.61 
	

State-owned legal person 

1.27 State-owned legal person 

31.45 

• 
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Articles of Association of Shanghai Electric Power Company Limited 

(Amended 29 June 2016) 

These Articles of Association have been reviewed and adopted by the 2015 Shareholders' Meeting of 
the Company 

Chapter 1 	General Principles 

1. To protect the lawful interests of Shanghai Electric Power Company Limited ("Company") and its 
shareholders and creditors and to regulate the organisation and acts of the Company, these Articles 
of Association are hereby entered into in accordance with the Company Law of the People's Republic 
of China ("Company Law"), the Securities Law of the People's Republic of China (-Securities 
Law") and other relevant regulations. 

2. The Company was established as a joint stock company with limited liability incorporated in 
accordance with the Company Lan' and other relevant regulations. The Company was incorporated 
by way of promotion and pursuant to the Official Reply Approving the Establishment of Shanghai 
Electric Company Limited issued by the People's Republic of Chins State Commission for 
Restructuring the Economic System (Ti Gni Sheng No. [1998] 42). On 4 June 1998, the Company 
completed its registration procedure with Shanghai Administration for Industry and Commerce and 
obtained its business license (License No. 3100001005356). 

3. The Company made an initial public offering of 5240,000,000 common shares (domestic shares) on 
27 September 2003 with approval of the China Securities Regulatory Commission ("CSRC"). The 
Company was listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 29 October 2003. 

4. The registered Chinese name of the Company 

The name of the Company is "IA FP.).0:01141411/fd" in Chinese and Shanghai Electric Power 
Company Limited in English. 

5. The Company's domicle 

The Company's domicile is No. 268 Zhongshan South Road, Shanghai 200010. 

6. The registered capital of the Company is RMB 2,139,739,257. 

7. The Company is a perpetually-existing joint stock limited company. 

8. The chairman of the board of directors shall be the legal representative of the Company. 

9. The entire capital of the Company is divided into shares of equal par value. Shareholder liabilities to 
the Company shall be limited to their respective subscription to the Company's shares whereas the 
Company's liabilities shall be limited to the total amount of its assets. 

10. From the effective date of these Articles of Association, these Articles of Association shall be a 
legally binding document that regulates the organisation and acts of the Company, defines the rights 
and obligations between the Company and its shareholders and defines the rights and obligations as 
between the Company's shareholders and also be binding upon the Company, shareholders, directors, 
supervisors and senior management personnel. In accordance with these Articles of Association, 
shareholders may institute legal proceedings against other shareholders, directors, supervisors, 
managers and other senior management personnel of the Company; shareholders may also institute 
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legal proceedings against the Company; and the Company may institute legal proceedings against its 
shareholders, directors, supervisors, managers and other senior management personnel. 

11. 	The other senior management personnel referred to herein shall include the deputy general managers, 
secretary of the board of directors, and chief finance officer. 

Chapter 2 	Business Scope and Objectives 

P. 	The business objectives of the Company are to engage in power generation and business operation 
pursuant to the laws, regulations and policies of the state, on the basis of market needs and by 
making full use of the financial, human and material resources, so as to maximize financial benefits 
for the Company, to generate social benefits for the public and to create lawful returns for all 
shareholders and employees of the Company.. 

13. 	Following registration in accordance with the law, the business scope of the Company shall be: 
development, construction, operation and management of electric power; organization of the 
production of electric power and heating power and sale of own products; skill training for electricity 
personnel within electricity enterprises; energy management contracting; general contracting of 
electricity engineering construction projects; general contracting of electromechanical installation 
construction projects (business operation pending the obtaining of relevant construction industry 
qualification); bid invitation/bidding agency; development and application of new energy and 
renewable energy projects; coal distribution; scientific and technical development and consulting 
services for electric power and related businesses; technical development and technical consulting 
services for integrated gasification combined cycle power generation projects; management of own 
properties; import/export of products including but not limited to equipment, apparatus, testing 
instruments and spare parts and export of own technologies relevant to electric power and energy 
performance contracting (except for products and technologies which a company is restricted by the 
state from dealing in or the import/export of which is prohibited by the state); contracting of offshore 
projects and onshore international bidding projects; offshore dispatching of labour forces required 
for offshore engineering and offshore power station operation management and maintenance; 
warehousing. 

Chapter 3 Shares 

Section 1 	Share Issues 

• 
14. 	The stock of the Company is issued in the form of shares. 

15. The Company's shares shall be issued in accordance with the principles of openness, fairness, 
impartiality and each share of the same class shall be entitled to the same rights. 

Each share of the same class shall be issued on the same terms and at the same price for the same 
issue. Any individual or entity shall subscribe to shares at the same price for each share. 

16. The shares issued by the Company are denominated in Renminbi. 

17. The issued shares of the Company are held by the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Registration 
and Settlement Co., Ltd. in escrow. 

18. The Company is established by way of promotion and its promoters are Shanghai Municipal Electric 
Power Company and the former East China Power Group Corporation (restructured in May 2000 to 
become State Power East China Company). 

19. 	The Company shall issue a total number of 2,139,739,257 shares, all of which shall be RMB 
common shares. The shareholding structure of the Company shall be as follows: 920,600,327 shares 



to State Power Investment Corporation, accounting for 43.02% of the total number of shares; 
363,292,165 shares to China Power International Development Limited, accounrting for 16.98% of 
the total number of shares; 121,245,236 shares to China Yangtze Power Co., Ltd., accounting for 
5.67% of the total number of shares; and 734,601,529 shares to other shareholders, accounting for 
34.33% of the total number of shares. 

20. The Company or its subsidiaries (including its subordinates) shall not provide any financial 
assistance to any person subscribing or purchasing or intending to subscribe or purchase shares of 
the Company in the form of, among others, donation, advance payment, security, compensation or 
loan. 

Section 2 	Capital Increase and Reduction and Buy-back of Shares 

21. - 	The Company may, in accordance with operational and managerial requirements and the relevant 
laws and regulations, increase its registered capital in the following ways, subject to a resolution 
passed at the shareholders' meeting: 

(1) the issue of new shares to the public or to existing shareholders; 

(2) the private placement of new shares; 

(3) the bonus issue of shares to existing shareholders; 

(4) the conversion of capital reserve to share capital; or 

(5) other methods permitted by the laws and administrative regulations and the securities 
authority of the CSRC. 

11. 	The Company may reduce its registered capital. Any decrease in the registered capital of the 
Company shall be effected in accordance with the Company Law, other relevant regulations and the 
provisions hereof. 

23. 	In the following circumstances, the Company may buy back its issued shares in accordance with the 
laws, regulations, rules and these Articles of Association: 

(1) the decrease in the registered capital of the Company; 

(2) the merger with other companies that hold shares in the Company; 

(3) to award shares to the employees of the Company; 

(4) the buy-back of shares of the Company required by the shareholder who has objection to the 
resolution of the shareholders' meeting on merger or division of the Company. 

The Company is prohibited from purchasing or selling its shares unless its activities fall within the 
scope as described above. 

24. 	The Company may buy back its issued shares in any of the following ways: 

(1) centralized trading of securities at competing prices on the stock exchange; 

(2) making a tender offer in accordance with the rules of the CSRC and other competent 
authorities; 

(3) any other means approved by the CSRC. 
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25. If the Company buys back its issued shares in accordance with articles 23 (1) to (3), a resolution 
shall be adopted at the shareholders' meeting. In the case of the circumstance described in article 
23(1), the Company shall de-register such shares within ten (10) days of the date of buy-back; in the 
case of circumstance described in article 25 (2) or (4), the Company shall transfer or de-register such 
shares within six (6) months. 

If the Company buys back its issued shares in accordance with article 23(3), such shares to be 
purchased shall not be more than five percent (5%) of all of the issued shares of the Company; 
payment for purchase shall be sourced from the after-tax profits of the Company; such shares to be 
purchased shall be transferred to employees within one year. 

Section 3 	Transfer of Shares 

26. The Company's shares can be transferred in accordance with law. 

27. The Company shall not accept pledges of its own shares. 

28. Shares held by the promoters in the Company shall not be transferred within one year from the date 
of establishment of the Company. Shares issued prior to the Company's public offering shall not be 
transferred within one year from the date of listing of the shares of the Company on the stock 
exchange. 

Directors, supervisors, and senior management personnel of the Company shall declare to the 
Company their shareholdings and any change in such shareholdings. During the term of their 
respective positions, the number of shares transferred by any of them shall not exceed twenty five 
percent (25%) of the total number of their respective shares of the Company. Any shares held by 
any of them shall not be transferred within one year from the date when shares in the Company first 
trade on the stock exchange. The aforesaid persons shall not transfer their shares in the Company 
within six months of vacating their position. 

29. If any director, supervisor or senior management personnel of the Company, or any shareholder 
holding five percent (5%) or more of shares in the Company, sells any of its shares in the Company 
within six months from their purchase, or purchases any such shares in the Company within six 
months from their sale, any proceeds arising from such sale or purchase shall be vested in the 
Company and the board of directors of the Company will take back such proceeds, provided that any 
securities company will not be prohibited from selling shares within six months if such company 
holds five percent (5%) or more of shares due to purchase of the remaining shares arising from the 
underwriting. 

If the board of directors of the Company fails to give effect to the previous paragraph, shareholders 
shall be entitled to request the board of directors to do so within thirty (30) days. If the board of 
directors fails to do so within such period, shareholders shall be entitled to bring an action directly to 
the People's court in the name of shareholders for the benefit of the Company. 

Any director responsible shall assume the joint and severable liability for such failure of the board of 
directors to perform its duties in accordance with the first paragraph. 

Chapter 4 	Shareholders and Shareholders' Meeting 

Section 1 	Shareholders 

30. A shareholder of the Company is a holder of the Company's shares in accordance with the law. 
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A shareholder shall have rights and obligations according to the class of shares held by the 
shareholder and shareholders of the same class of shares shall have the same rights and shall bear the 
same obligations. 

	

31. 	The shareholders of the Company shall establish a shareholder register in accordance with 
certificates provided by the securities registration institution. The shareholder register shall be 
conclusive evidence as to the shareholder's shareholding in the Company. 

	

32. 	The Company shall enter into a share escrow agreement with the Shanghai Branch of China 
Securities Registration and Settlement Co., Ltd. and shall, based on certificates provided by it , 
establish a shareholder register, enquire on a regular basis about information regarding key 
shareholders and changes in their shareholding status (including any pledge on shares), and keep 
informed about the shareholding structure of the Company. 

	

33. 	When the Company holds shareholders' meetings, distributes dividends, goes into liquidation or 
conducts such other matters which require it to confirm the identity of shareholders, the board of 
directors or convenor of the shareholders' meeting shall set the record date of share registration and 
all the registered shareholders after the closing of the share registration on the record date shall be 
shareholders of the Company for such purpose. 

Section 2 	Shareholders' Rights 

	

34. 	The shareholders of the Company shall enjoy the following rights: 

(1) to receive dividends and other forms of profit distribution in accordance with the number of 
shares they hold; 

(2) to request, convene, hold the shareholders' meetings or attend shareholders' meetings in 
person or by proxy, and exercise the appropriate voting rights; 

(3) to supervise the business operation and activities of the Company and to make proposals or 
enquiries in relation thereto; 

(4) to transfer, gift or pledge shares held by them in accordance with the law, administrative 
regulations and these Articles of Association; 

(5) to inspect these Articles of Association, the shareholder register, receipt of bonds issued by 
the Company, minutes of the shareholders' meetings, resolutions of meetings of the board of 
directors, resolutions of meetings of the board of supervisors, financial and accounting 
reports; 

(6) to participate in the distribution of the remaining assets in accordance with the shareholding 
upon the dissolution or liquidation of the Company; 

(7) in case of any shareholder having objection to any resolution in connection with merger or 
division of the Company adopted at the shareholders' meeting, to request the Company to 
purchase shares held by such shareholder; 

(8) any other rights conferred by laws, administrative regulations, departmental rules and these 
Articles of Association. 

	

35. 	The shareholders who submit a request to access or inspect any information mentioned in the above 
article shall provide the relevant documents to confirm the class of their shares in the Company and 
the number of shares that they hold. The Company shall provide the information requested by the 
shareholders after verifying the shareholders' identity. 
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36. If the resolutions of shareholders' meeting or the meeting of the board of directors violate the 
requirements of law and administrative regulations, the shareholders are entitled to apply to the 
people's court to request such resolutions be declared void. 

If the convention procedure or the voting procedure in connection with the shareholders' meeting or 
the meeting of the board of directors is in breach of laws and administrative regulations or these 
Articles of Association, or the resolution breaches these Articles of Association, the shareholder is 
entitled to request the people's court to revoke such resolution within sixty (60) days from the date of 
the passing of the resolution. 

37. If directors or senior management personnel breach any laws, administrative regulations or these 
Articles of Association in performing their duties and incur any loss to the Company, shareholders 
alone or jointly holding one percent (1%) or more shares in the Company for at least the immediately 
preceding one hundred and eighty (180) consecutive days are entitled to request the board of 
supervisors in writing to bring an action in the People's court; if the board of supervisors breaches 
any laws, administrative regulations or these Articles of Association in performing its duties and 
incurs any loss to the Company, the shareholders may request the board of directors in writing to 
bring an action in the People's court. 

If the board of supervisors or the board of directors refuses to bring an action upon receipt of the 
written request from shareholders under the previous paragraph, or fails to bring an action within 
thirty (30) days from receipt of such request, or if no immediate action may cause the Company 
irreparable harm in an emergency, the shareholders set forth in the previous paragraph shall be 
entitled to directly bring an action in the People's court in their own names for the benefit of the 
Company. 

If other persons infringe legitimate interests of the Company and incur any loss to the Company, 
shareholders set forth in the first paragraph of this article may bring an action in the People's court in 
accordance with the previous two paragraphs. 

38. If directors and senior management personnel breach laws, administrative regulations or these 
Articles of Association and impair the interests of shareholders, shareholders may bring an action to 
the People's court. 

Section 3 	Shareholders' Obligations 

39. The shareholders of the Company shall undertake the following obligations: 

(1) to observe laws, administrative regulations and these Articles of Association; 

(2) to pay the subscription price according to the number of shares subscribed for and the form 
of the contribution; 

(3) not to sell back the shares to the Company other than in accordance with the relevant laws 
and regulations; 

(4) not to abuse the rights of shareholders to impair the interests of the Company or other 
shareholders; not to abuse the independent status of the Company as a legal person or the 
limited liabilities of shareholders; or not to impair the interests of creditors of the Company; 

If any shareholder of the Company abuses rights of shareholders, such shareholders shall be 
liable for any loss incurred by the Company or other shareholders according to law. 

If any shareholder of the Company abuses the independent status of the Company as legal 
person or the limited liabilities of shareholders to evade debts to the material detriment or 
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interests of creditors of the Company, such shareholder shall be jointly and severally liable 
for the debts of the Company; and 

(5) 	to comply with any other obligations required pursuant to laws, administrative regulations 
and these Articles of Association. 

40. If a shareholder holding five percent (5%) or more than the voting shares in the Company creates a 
pledge over any shares it holds, it shall report the matter to the Company in writing on the date of its 
occurrence. 

41. The controlling shareholders and the actual controllers of the Company shall not impair the interests 
of the Company by use of their connected relationship. If any of them breaches such provision and 
causes any loss to the Company, it shall be liable for such loss. 

The controlling shareholders and the actual controllers of the Company shall have a fiduciary duty to 
the Company and the shareholders holding public shares in the Company. The controlling 
shareholders shall exercise their rights as investors in strict compliance with the law. The controlling 
shareholders shall not conduct any connected transaction, profit distribution, asset reorganisation, 
external investment, fund possession, capital borrowing, security or other activity to the detriment of 
the lawful rights and interest of the Company and other shareholders, shall not use their controlling 
positions to the detriment of the lawful rights and interest of the Company and shareholders holding 
public shares in the Company, and shall not use their controlling positions to the detriment of the 
right of the Company and shareholders holding public shares in the Company. 

Section 4 	Shareholders' Meeting 

42. The shareholders' meeting is the governing body of the Company and shall exercise the following 
powers: 

(1) to determine the business policies and investment plans of the Company; 

(2) to elect and replace directors and supervisors who are not employee representatives and 
decide matters relating to the remuneration of directors and supervisors; 

(3) to examine and approve the reports of the board of directors; 

(4) to examine and approve the reports of the board of supervisors; 

(5) to examine and approve the Company's annual financial budgets and final accounts; 

(6) to examine and approve the Company's plans for profit distribution and making up of losses; 

(7) to resolve on any increase or reduction of the Company's registered capital; 

(8) to resolve on any issue of bonds by the Company; 

(9) to resolve on the merger, division, dissolution or liquidation of the Company or the change 
of its corporate form; 

( 10) 	to amend these Articles of Association; 

(11) to resolve on the appointment or dismissal of the Company's accountants; 

(12) to examine and approve any guarantee as provided for in article 43; 

• 
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(13) to examine and approve matters in connection with asset acquisition or sale incurred within 
one year representing more than thirty percent (30%) of the Company's latest audited total 
assets; 

(14) to examine and approve any change in the purpose of funded capital; 

(15) to examine any stock incentive plan; 

(16) to examine and approve other matters required to be decided at the shareholders' meeting in 
accordance with laws, administrative regulations, departmental rules or these Articles of 
Association. 

The afore-mentioned powers of the shareholders' meeting shall not be delegated to and vicariously 
exercised by the board of directors or any other institution or individual 

	

43. 	Any of the following external guarantees provided by the Company shall be approved at the 
shareholders' meeting: 

(1) any guarantee which is provided after the total secured amount in connection with external 
guarantee provided by the Company and any subsidiary controlled by the Company equals 
or exceeds fifty percent (50%) of the Company's latest audited net assets; 

(2) any guarantee which is provided after the total secured amount in connection with external 
guarantee provided by the Company equals or exceeds thirty percent (30%) of the 
Company's latest audited total assets; 

(3) any guarantee in favour of any entity whose ratio of debts to assets is higher than seventy 
percent (70%); 

(4) any single guarantee where the total secured amount is in excess of ten percent (10%) of the 
Company's latest audited net assets; 

(5) any guarantee in favour of any shareholder, actual controller or a connected party of either of 
them. 

	

44. 	Shareholders' meetings include annual general meetings and extraordinary general meetings. The 
• annual general meeting shall be held once a year and shall be held within six months of the end of 

the preceding fiscal year. 

	

45. 	Upon the occurrence of any of the following events, the Board of Directors shall convene an 
extraordinary shareholders' meeting within two months of the occurrence thereof: 

(1) the number of directors falls below two-thirds of the number required by the Company Law 
or the number provided by these Articles of Associations; 

(2) the Company's aggregate losses amount to one-third of its paid-up share capital; 

(3) a single shareholder or shareholders jointly holding an aggregate of ten percent (10%) or 
more of the total shares in the Company request in writing that an extraordinary 
shareholders' meeting be convened; 

(4) the board of directors considers an extraordinary shareholders' meeting to be necessary; 

(5) the board of supervisors considers an extraordinary shareholders' meeting to be necessary; 

(6) More than half of all independent directors propose the convening of such meeting; 
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(7) 	any other circumstances requiring an extraordinary shareholders' meeting to be held in 
accordance with laws, administrative regulations, departmental rules or these Articles of 
Association. 

The number of shares held by shareholders for the purposes of paragraph (3) shall be determined as 
at the date of such written request. 

	

46. 	An extraordinary general meeting shall resolve on matters specified in the notice or the relevant 
announcement. 

	

47. 	The Company shall hold shareholders' meetings in Shanghai, with the exact location to be 
determined at the sole discretion of the convenor of the shareholders' meeting based on actual 
circumstances. The venue of the meeting shall be notified to the shareholders via an announcement. 

A meeting site shall be prepared for the shareholders' meeting andthe shareholders' meeting shall be 
held on the scene. The Company may provide network connections or other means as it deems 
appropriate to facilitate the shareholders' attendance at a shareholders' meeting. Any shareholder 
participating at a shareholders' meeting through the afore-mentioned methods shall be deemed to be 
present. 

	

48. 	When convening a shareholders' meeting, the Company will engage a lawyer to issue and make 
public a legal opinion on the following matters: 

(1) whether the convention and holding of the shareholders' meeting is in compliance with laws, 
administrative regulations and these Articles of Association; 

(2) the qualification of participants and the convenor is lawful and valid; 

(3) the voting procedures and results at the meeting are lawful and valid; and 

(4) other relevant matters at the request of the Company. 

Section 5 	Convention of Shareholders' Meetings 

	

49. 	An independent director is entitled to propose to the board of directors in writing to convene an 
extraordinary general meeting. The board of directors shall respond to such proposal in writing in 
accordance with laws, administrative regulations and these Articles of Association within ten (10) 
days of receipt of such proposal. 

If the board of directors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice convening the 
shareholders' meeting shall be sent within five (5) days after the resolution of the board of directors 
is passed. If the board of directors refuses to convene the meeting, the board of directors shall give 
and publicise its reasons. 

	

50. 	The board of supervisors is entitled to propose to the board of directors in writing to convene an 
extraordinary general meeting. The board of directors shall respond to such proposal in writing in 
accordance with laws, administrative regulations and these Articles of Association within ten (10) 
days of receipt of such proposal. 

If the board of directors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice convening the 
shareholders' meeting shall be sent within five (5) days after the resolution of the board of directors 
is passed. Any amendment to the original proposal in the notice shall be subject to the consent of the 
board of supervisors. 

• 

• 
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If the board of directors refuses to convene the meeting or fails to respond within ten (10) days of 
receipt of such proposal, the board of directors shall be deemed to be unable to or fail to perform its 
duties to convene shareholders' meetings, and the board of supervisors may convene and preside over 
the meeting on its own initiative. 

51. 	Any shareholders alone or jointly holding ten percent (10%) or more of shares in the Company 
("proposing shareholders") are entitled to request the board of directors in writing to convene an 
extraordinary general meeting. The board of directors shall respond to such proposal in accordance 
with laws, administrative regulations and these Articles of Association within ten (10) days of 
receipt of such request. 

If the board of directors agrees to convene the extraordinary shareholders' meeting, a notice 
convening the shareholders' meeting shall be sent within five (5) days after the resolution of the 
board of directors is passed. Any amendment to the original proposal in the notice shall be subject to 
the consent of the relevant shareholders. 

• If the board of directors does not agree to convene the meeting or fails to respond within ten (10) 
days of receipt of such proposal, any shareholders alone or jointly holding ten percent (10%) or more 
of shares in the Company are entitled to propose to the board of supervisors in writing to convene the 
extraordinary general meeting. 

If the board of supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, the board of 
supervisors shall send a notice convening the meeting within five (5) days of receipt of such proposal. 
Any change in the original proposal shall be subject to consent of relevant shareholders. 

If the board of supervisors fails to send the notice within the required period, the board of 
supervisors shall be deemed to have failed to convene and preside over the shareholders' meeting. A 
single shareholder or shareholders jointly holding ten percent (10%) or more of shares in the 
Company for the immediately preceding ninety (90) consecutive days may convene and preside over 
such meeting on its own initiative. 

52. 	If the board of supervisors or shareholders convene the shareholders' meeting on their own initiative, 
they shall notify the board of directors in writing and at the same time file the notice of meeting with 
CSRC Shanghai Regulatory Bureau and the Shanghai Stock Exchange for the record. 

The shareholders entitled to convening the shareholders' meeting must hold at least ten percent (10%) 

• of shares in the Company immediately before the resolution of such meeting is publicised. 

The shareholders convening the shareholders' meeting shall submit relevant supporting documents to 
the local entity of CSRC of the place where the Company is located and the Shanghai Stock 
Exchange when such shareholders send a notice of the shareholders' meeting and announce the 
resolution of the shareholders' meeting. 

53. With regard to the shareholders' meeting to be convened by the board of supervisors or shareholders 
on their own initiative, the board of directors and the secretary of the board of directors shall provide 
assistance. The board of directors shall provide the shareholder register of the record date of share 
registration. If the board of directors fails to provide the shareholder register, the convenor may, by 
presenting the relevant notice announcing the convention of the shareholders' meeting, request the 
register from the securities registration and settlement entity. The shareholder register obtained by 
the convenor shall not be used for purposes other than convening a shareholders' meeting. 

54. The Company shall hear costs and expenses necessary for the shareholders' meeting to be convened 
by the board of supervisors or shareholders on their own initiative. 
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55. 	A shareholders meeting shall be convened by the board of directors and presided over by the 
chairman of the board in accordance with the law. If the chairman of the board of directors is unable 
or fails to perform his duties for whatever reason, the meeting shall be presided over by a director 
jointly nominated by more than half of the directors. 

The shareholders' meeting convened by the board of supervisors on its own initiative shall be 
presided over by the chairman of the board of supervisors. If the chairman of the board of 
supervisors is unable or fails to perform his duties, the meeting shall be presided over by the vice-
chairman of the board of supervisors. If the vice-chairman of the board of supervisors is unable or 
fails to perform his duties, the meeting shall be presided over by a supervisor jointly nominated by 
more than half of the supervisors. 

The shareholders' meeting convened by shareholders on their own initiative shall be presided over by 
the representative nominated by the convenor. 

If the person presiding over the meeting breaches the procedural rules at the shareholders' meeting 
causing the shareholders' meeting to discontinue, subject to consents of more than half of 
shareholders with voting rights attending the shareholders' meeting, the shareholders' meeting may 
nominate a person to act as the person presiding over the meeting and such meeting may continue. 

Section 6 	Proposals and Notices for Shareholders' Meeting 

	

56. 	A proposal for a shareholders' meeting shall satisfy the following requirements: 

(1) It complies with the relevant requirements of laws, administrative regulations and these 
Articles of Association and falls within the business scope of the Company and scope of 
responsibility of the shareholders' meeting; 

(2) It contains express topics and specific matters to be resolved; 

(3) It is submitted to or served upon the convenor in writing. 

	

57. 	Shareholder(s) alone or jointly holding three percent (3%) or more of shares in the Company may 
make an interim proposal and submit it to the convenor in writing 10 days prior to the convention of 
a shareholders' meeting. The convenor shall give a supplementary notice for the shareholders' 
meeting within two days following receipt of the proposal to make public the contents of the interim 
proposal. 

Save as provided in the preceding paragraph, the convenor, following the giving of the shareholders' 
meeting notice, shall not revise any proposal already specified in the shareholders' meeting notice or 
include any new proposal. 

The shareholders' meeting shall not vote on any proposal which is not specified in the shareholders' 
meeting notice or does not comply with Clause 56 of these Articles of Association. 

	

58. 	The convenor shall act in the best interest of the Company and the shareholders to review proposals 
for the shareholders' meeting pursuant to the requirements of Clause 56 of these Articles of 
Association. 

	

59. 	If the board of directors decides not to include a proposal for the shareholders' meeting in the 
meeting agenda, it shall give an explanation at the shareholders' meeting and shall publicize the 
proposal and the explanation given by the board of directors along with the shareholders' meeting 
resolution after the conclusion of the shareholders' meeting. 

• 

12 



• 

• 

	

60. 	If the shareholder making a proposal objects to the decision of the board of directors not to include 
the proposal in the agenda of the shareholders' meeting, it may propose to the board of supervisors 
to convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to the procedure provided in Clause 51 of 
these Articles of Association. 

	

61. 	The convenor shall notify the shareholders by way of an announcement of the an annual general 
meeting 20 days prior to its convention and of an extraordinary general meeting 15 days prior to its 
convention. 

	

62. 	A shareholders' meeting notice shall include the following: 

(1) The time, venue and duration of the meeting; 

(2) Matters and proposals submitted to the meeting for consideration; 

(3) Clear written clarification that all shareholders are entitled to attend the shareholders' 
meeting and that they may have proxies (who do not have to be shareholders of the 
Company) to attend and vote at the meeting; 

(4) The record date of share registration for the shareholders entitled to attend the shareholders' 
meeting; 

(5) The time and place of delivery of any power of attorney for voting; 

(6) The name and telephone number of a permanent contact person for the meeting. 

The shareholders' meeting notice and any supplementary notice thereof shall adequately and fully 
disclose all proposals and all information or explanations necessary for the shareholders to make 
reasonable judgements on matters to be discussed. Where any matter to be discussed requires the 
opinion of any independent director, the opinion and justification of such independent director shall 
be disclosed when the shareholders' meeting notice or supplementary notice is given. 

If a shareholders meeting is held through the internet or by any other means, the shareholders' 
meeting notice shall specify the time and procedure of voting through the internet or by any other 
means. The commencement time of voting for a shareholders meeting through the internet or by any 
other means shall not be earlier than 3:00pm of the day immediately prior to the opening of the 
shareholders' meeting on the scene and shall not be later than 9:30am of the day of the opening of 
the shareholders' meeting. The ending time shall not be earlier than 3:00pm of the day of conclusion 
of the shareholders meeting on the scene. 

The share registration record date for the shareholders meeting shall be within seven (7) working 
days prior to the date of the meeting. The share registration record date shall not be changed after 
the date is confirmed. 

	

63. 	If the election of directors and supervisors is proposed to be discussed at the shareholders' meeting, 
the notice of the shareholders' meeting shall disclose full details of the director candidates and 
supervisor candidates, including at least: 

(1) Educational background, working experience, part-time employment; 

(2) Any connected relationship with the Company, the controlling shareholder or the actual 
controller of the Company; 

(3) The number of shares held in the Company; 
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(4) 	Any penalty imposed by the CSRC or other relevant authority or censure imposed by the 
stock exchanges. 

Unless a director or supervisor is to be elected using the accumulative voting system, each of the 
director or supervisor candidates shall be proposed on a standalone basis. 

64. After the notice of the shareholders' meeting is given, without a proper reason the shareholders' 
meeting shall not be postponed or cancelled and any proposal listed in such notice shall not be 
withdrawn. In the event of any such postponement/cancellation or withdrawal, the convenor shall 
announce such postponement/cancellation or withdrawal and give reasons therefor at least two (2) 
working days prior to the original date for the convention of the meeting. 

Section 7 	Holding of Shareholders' Meetings 

65. The board of directors and other convenors shall take all necessary measures to ensure that solemnity 
and orderliness of the shareholders' meeting. Apart from shareholders (or their proxies), directors, 
supervisors, board secretary, senior management personnel, legal counsel engaged and board 
invitees, the Company shall be entitled to deny access by any other personnel in accordance with the 
law. The Company will take steps to prevent any activity interfering in the shareholders' meeting, 
creating disturbances or infringing upon the legal interests of other shareholders and shall report 
such activity to the relevant authority for further action. 

66. All shareholders registered on the record date of share registration or their proxies shall be entitled to 
attend shareholders' meetings and to exercise voting rights in accordance with relevant laws and 
regulations and these Articles of Association. 

The Company and the convenor shall not object on any ground. 

67. Shareholders may attend shareholders' meetings in person or delegate a proxy to attend and vote on 
their behalves. 

A shareholder shall appoint a proxy through a written power of proxy which shall be signed by the 
principal or by a representative appointed by it in writing. Where the principal is a legal person, the 
chop of the legal person or the signature of the representative formally appointed by it shall be 
affixed. 

68. If any individual shareholder attends a meeting in person, the shareholder shall present his/her 
identification certificate or any other valid certification to prove his/her identity, the share account 
card and the shareholding certificate. In the event of attendance by proxy, a valid identification 
certificate, the power of proxy and the shareholding certificate of the proxy shall be provided. 

A shareholder with the status of a legal person shall have its legal representative or a proxy 
appointed by the legal representative attend the meeting. If the legal representative attends the 
meeting, he/she shall present his/her identification certificate and any valid certificate to prove 
his/her qualification as the legal representative and the shareholding certificate. If a proxy attends 
the meeting, he/she shall present his/her identification certificate, the written power of proxy issued 
according to law by the legal representative of the shareholder and the shareholding certificate. 

69. The power of proxy issued by a shareholder authorising a proxy to attend a shareholders' meeting 
shall include: 

(1) the name of the proxy; 

(2) whether the proxy has any voting right; 
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(3) instructions on agreeing, disagreeing, or abstaining in respect of every matter to be discussed 
in the agenda of the shareholders' meeting; 

(4) whether any voting right is granted in connection with any extraordinary proposal that may 
be incorporated into the agenda of the shareholders' meeting and (where voting right is 
granted) specific instructions on what voting right is to be exercised; 

(5) the date of issue of the power of proxy and its valid term; 

(6) the signature (or chop) of the principal. If the principal is a shareholder with the status of a 
legal person, the corporate chop of the legal person shall be affixed. 

The power of proxy shall specify whether the proxy for the shareholder is able to vote at his/her 
discretion if the shareholder does not give any specific instruction. 

70. The power of proxy for voting shall be kept at the domicile of the Company or such other place as is 
designated in the meeting notice at least twenty-four hours prior to the opening of the meeting. If the 
power of proxy for voting is signed by someone authorised by the principal, the power of 
authorisation or any other authorisation document in connection with such signature shall be 
notarised. The notarised power of authorisation or any other authorisation document and the power 
of proxy for voting shall all be kept at the domicile of the Company or such other place as is 
designated in the meeting notice. If the principal is a legal person, its legal representative or any 
other person authorised by the board of directors or another decision making body may attend the 
shareholders' meeting of the Company. 

71. The Company shall prepare the attendee register which shall include, among others, the name of 
attendee (or the name of the entity), identification certificate number, domicile, the number of shares 
with voting rights that he/she holds or represents, and name of the person (or entity) who attends the 
meeting by proxy. 

72. The convenor and lawyers engaged by the Company shall jointly verify the legitimate qualification 
of shareholders in accordance with the shareholder register provided by the securities registration 
and settlement company and shall register the names of shareholders and the number of voting 
shares each of them holds. The meeting registration shall end before the person presiding over the 
meeting announces the number of shareholders and proxies attending the meeting on the scene and 
the total number of voting shares held. 

73. All the directors, supervisors and the secretary of the board of directors of the Company shall attend 
the shareholders' meeting; the general manager and other senior management personnel shall attend 
the shareholders' meeting as non-voting attendees. 

74. Once a notice is given to convene a shareholders' meeting, the board of directors shall not alter the 
time of convening the meeting unless for reasons attributable to force majeure or other unexpected 
events. Where it is necessary to alter the time of a shareholders' meeting due to the occurrence of a 
force majeure event, the record date of share registration shall not be altered accordingly. 

75. If the number of the directors falls below the mandatory minimum number required by the Company 
Law or the number provided by the Articles of Association or if the aggregate losses amount to one-
third of its total share capital, and the board of directors fails to convene a shareholders' meeting 
within the required timeframe, the board of supervisors or the shareholders may convene an 
extraordinary shareholders' meeting on their own initiative pursuant to the provisions of these 
Articles of Association. 

76. The Company shall formulate procedural rules for the shareholders' meeting and provide details for 
the convention and voting procedures for a shareholders' meeting, including notices, registration, 
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consideration of proposals, voting, vote counting, announcement of voting results, making of 
meeting resolutions, meeting minutes and their signing and public announcement, among others, and 
the principles for the delegation of power by the shareholders' meeting to the board of directors (any 
such delegation shall be clear and specific). The procedural rules for the shareholders' meeting shall 
be an attachment to the Articles of Association and shall be formulated by the board of directors and 
approved by the shareholders' meeting. 

77. At the annual general meeting the board of directors and the board of supervisors shall report to the 
shareholders meeting on the performance of the business over the previous year. Each independent 
director shall also report his/her work. 

78. At the shareholders' meeting, directors, supervisors and senior management personnel shall give 
explanations in connection with queries and suggestions submitted by shareholders. 

• 79. 	Before votes are taken, the person presiding over the meeting shall announce the number of 
shareholders present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and the total number of voting 
shares they hold. The number of shareholders present in person or represented by proxy at the 
meeting and the total number of voting shares they hold shall be confirmed by the meeting 
registration procedure. 

80. 	The secretary of the board of directors shall be responsible for preparing minutes of the 

shareholders' meeting which shall record the following information: 

(1) 	the time, place and agenda of such meeting, and the name of the convenor; 

(2) names of the person presiding over the meeting, directors, supervisors, the general manager 
and other senior management personnel attending the meeting; 

(3) the number of shareholders present in person or represented by proxy, the total number of 
voting shares they hold or represent, and the percentage of the total number of the 
Company's shares that they represent; 

(4) the course of discussion about each proposal, the main points in connection with each speech, 
and the results of votes cast; 

(5) any queries, opinions and recommendations of shareholders and corresponding answers or 
explanations; 

(6) names of lawyers, persons counting votes, and persons supervising votes; and 

(7) any other details necessary to be included in the minutes in accordance with these Articles of 
Association. 

8 1 . 	The convenor shall ensure that the meeting minutes shall be true, accurate and complete. The 
meeting minutes shall be signed by directors, supervisors, the secretary of the board of directors and 
the convenor or their proxies attending the meeting, and the person presiding over the meeting. The 
meeting minutes shall be kept together with the signature book regarding shareholders present at the 
meeting, the power of proxy and other valid documents in connection with interne voting and other 
voting manners for no less than ten (10) years. 

82. 	The convenor shall ensure that the shareholders' meeting continues until final resolutions are formed. 
If the shareholders' meeting ceases or is unable to form resolutions due to special reasons such as 
force majeure, the convenor shall take necessary measures to resume the shareholders' meeting or 
directly terminate such meeting and make a timely announcement. At the same time, the convenor 

• 

• 

• 
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shall report to the local entity of CSRC of the place where the Company is located and the stock 
exchange. 

Section 8 	Voting and Resolutions of Shareholders' Meetings 

	

83. 	Shareholders (including their proxies) shall exercise their voting right through the voting shares they 
hold, and each share shall have one vote. The shares held by the Company in the Company itself 
shall not carry any voting right and such shares shall not be included in calculating the total number 
of voting shares held by shareholders present at the meeting. 

The board of directors, independent directors, or shareholders satisfying relevant requirements may 
solicit shareholder voting rights. 

	

84. 	Shareholders' meeting resolutions may be ordinary resolutions or special resolutions. 

An ordinary shareholders' resolution shall be passed by one half or more of the votes cast by the 
shareholders present in person or represented by proxy at the shareholders' meeting. 

A special shareholders' resolution shall be passed by two-thirds or more of the votes cast by the 
shareholders present in person or represented by proxy at the shareholders' meeting. 

	

85. 	The following matters must be approved by an ordinary resolution at a shareholders' meeting: 

(1) the work reports of the board of directors and board of supervisors; 

(2) any proposal for profit distribution and for making up of losses prepared by the board of 
directors; 

(3) the appointment and removal of the members of the board of directors and the members of 
the board of supervisors and their remuneration and the method of payment in relation to 
their appointment; 

(4) the annual budget and final statement of accounts; 

(5) the Company's annual report; 

(6) any other matters that do not require a special resolution at a shareholder's meeting under 
the laws, administrative regulations or these Articles of Association. 

	

86. 	The following matters must be approved or effected by special resolution at the shareholders' 
meeting: 

(1) any increase or decrease in the Company's share capital; 

(2) any issuance of bonds of the Company; 

(3) any merger, division, dissolution or liquidation of the Company; 

(4) any amendments to these Articles of Association; 

(5) any purchase or sale of substantial assets or grant of security (including guarantees) by the 
Company within one year representing, in aggregate, more than thirty percent (30%) of the 
latest audited total assets of the Company; 

(6) the adoption of any stock option scheme; 
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(7) 	any other matters requiring a special resolution, as prescribed by laws, administrative 
regulations or these Articles of Association, or resolved by ordinary resolution at a 
shareholders' meeting as having sufficient material effect on the Company. 

87. While ensuring the legality and validity of a shareholders' meeting, the Company shall resort to 
various means to make it easy for shareholders to attend the meeting, including making use of any 
internet voting platform or other modern IT technology. 

88. Unless the Company faces any crisis or other special circumstances and without the approval of a 
special resolution, the Company shall not enter into any contract with a director, the general manager 
or other senior management personnel whereby these people are entrusted with the responsibility for 
managing all or any substantial business of the company. 

89. List of candidates for directors and supervisors shall be submitted in the form of a proposal to the 
shareholders' meeting for voting. 

When the shareholders' meeting vote on the election of directors or supervisors, a cumulative voting 
system may be adopted subject to the provisions of these Articles of Association or the resolution of 
the shareholders' meeting. 

The cumulative voting system as mentioned above shall refer to the system in which each share shall 
carry the same number of votes as the number of directors or supervisors to be elected and the voting 
rights of a shareholder may be used aggregately. 

The board of directors shall publicize the resumes and basic information of director candidates and 
supervisor candidates. 

90. Other than in the case of the cumulative voting system, the shareholders' meeting will vote on all 
proposals one by one. Where there are different proposals for the same matter, voting will be 
conducted in order of the time they are submitted. The shareholders' meeting will not put a proposal 
on hold or abstain from voting on it unless a force majeure event or any other special reason causes 
the shareholders' meeting to be terminated or prevents it from resolving on the proposal. 

91. The shareholders' meeting will consider a proposal without revising it. Any revision thereof will be 
deemed a new proposal and will not be capable of being voted on at the current shareholders' 
meeting. 

92. The same voting right shall only be used in one of the three ways, namely on the scene, through the 
internet or otherwise. If the same voting right is duplicated the first vote will be counted. 

93. The shareholders' meeting shall adopt the open ballot system for voting purposes. 

94. Before voting on a proposal, the shareholders' meeting shall elect two shareholder representatives 
for vote counting and scrutiny. If a shareholder is interested in a matter under consideration, the 
shareholder in question or its proxy shall refrain from vote counting or scrutiny. 

When the shareholders' meeting votes on a matter, lawyers, shareholder representatives and 
supervisor representatives shall be jointly responsible for vote counting and scrutiny and shall 
announce the voting result on the spot. The voting result of the resolutions shall be included in the 
meeting minutes. 

The Company's shareholders or their proxies voting through the internet or by other means shall be 
entitled to verify their voting result via the relevant voting system. 

• 
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95. The on-site shareholders' meeting shall not be concluded earlier than the internet meeting or the 
meeting by any other means. The person presiding over the meeting shall announce the voting status 
and voting result for each proposal and, based on the voting result, announce whether the proposal is 
approved. 

Before announcing the voting result, the Company, tellers, scrutineers, major shareholders and 
internet service providers and all other relevant parties who are involved in the on-site, internet and 
other means of voting for the shareholders' meeting shall be obligated to maintain the voting 
confidential. 

96. Shareholders present at the shareholders' meeting shall vote for or against any proposal submitted for 
voting or abstain from voting on it. 

In respect of any vote not filed, misfiled, illegible or not submitted, the voter shall be deemed to 
abstain. The voting result in respect of shares held by such voter shall be deemed to be "abstention". 

97. If the person presiding over the meeting has any doubts as to the result of voting on any resolution 
he/she may have the votes recounted. If the person presiding over the meeting does not recount such 
votes, any shareholder present in person or by proxy at the meeting who disputes the result 
announced by the person presiding over the meeting shall be entitled to request a recount of the votes 
immediately after the declaration of the result and the person presiding over the meeting shall 
proceed with such recounting forthwith. 

98. If a shareholder is connected with a matter to be considered by the shareholders' meeting, it shall 
abstain from voting on it, and the voting shares held by it shall not be included in calculating the 
total number of voting shares present at the shareholders' meeting. 

The shares held by the Company in itself shall not carry any voting right and such shares shall not be 
included in calculating the total number of voting shares held by shareholders present at the meeting. 

99. The board of directors and the board of supervisors shall respond to and give explanations in 
connection with queries and suggestions submitted by shareholders, unless they involve the 
Company's business secret that cannot be disclosed at the shareholders' meeting. 

100. The resolution of the shareholders' meeting shall be announced in a timely manner. The 
announcement shall specify the number of shareholders present in person or by proxy at the meeting, 
the total number of voting shares held or represented by them, the percentage of such voting shares 
in relation to all the voting shares of the Company, the voting methods, the voting result of each 
proposal, and details of each resolution. 

If any proposal is not adopted, or the current shareholders' meeting amends the resolution of the last 
shareholders' meeting, special indication thereof shall be given in the announcement of the resolution 
of the shareholders' meeting. 

101. If any proposal is adopted by the shareholders' meeting on the election of directors and supervisors, 
the newly elected directors or supervisors shall immediately take office thereafter. 

102. The number of attendees at the shareholders' meeting, the number of shares held by participating 
shareholders, the powers of proxy, the voting result for each matter, meeting minutes, the legality of 
the meeting procedure and such other matters may be notarised.. 

103. If the shareholders' meeting adopts any proposal for a cash dividend, share allocation, or conversion 
from capital reserves to share capital, the Company will implement detailed plans within two months 
after the end of the shareholders' meeting. 
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Chapter 5 	Board of Directors 

Section 1 	Directors 

	

104. 	Any director of the Company shall be a natural person. A person may not serve as the director of the 
Company if he/she is: 

( ) 	a person with no or limited capacity for civil acts; 

(2) a person who has been sentenced to criminal punishment for the crime of corruption, bribery, 
encroachment of property, misappropriation of property or disruption of the order of the 
socialist market economy and in any such case not more than five years have elapsed since 
the expiration of the enforcement period; or a person who was deprived of his/her political 
rights for committing a crime and not more than five years have elapsed since the expiration 
of the enforcement period; 

(3) a director of a bankrupt company or enterprise, or a president or general manager of a 
bankrupt plant and was personally liable for the bankruptcy of the company or enterprise 
and not more than three years have elapsed since the date of completion of the bankruptcy 
liquidation; 

(4) the legal representative of a company or enterprise that has had its business licence revoked 
and has been closed down by order for violation of law for which such representative incurs 
individual liability and not more than three years have elapsed since the date on which the 
business license of the company or enterprise was revoked; 

(5) a person with a comparatively large amount of personal debts due and unsettled; 

(6) a person who has been banned by CSRC from participation in the market and such ban has 
not been lifted; and 

(7) falls under other prohibited categories set forth in laws, administrative regulations or 
departmental niles. 

If the Company elects or appoint a director in violation of the preceding paragraph, such election or 
appointment shall be invalid. If a director falls under the circumstances specified in this article 
during his/her term of office, the Company shall dismiss the director from his/her office through an 
appropriate procedure. 

	

105. 	Directors of the Company shall be elected or replaced at the shareholders' meeting. The term of 
office of a director shall be three (3) years. Upon the expiration of the term, a director shall be 
eligible for re-election and re-appointment. The shareholders' meeting shall not dismiss a director 
before the expiration of the term without giving any reasons. • 

The term of office of a director shall be effective from the date of appointment until the expiry of the 
term of the current board of directors. If the term of office of a director expires and re-election fails 
to take place timely, the original director shall perform his/her duties under laws, administrative 
regulations, rules and these Articles of Association until a new director is elected to replace him/her. 

The general manager or other senior management personnel may take up the concurrent position of a 
director. The total number of directors assumed by the employee representatives and of directors 
who also act as the general manager or senior management personnel shall not, in aggregate, be more 
than half of all the directors of the Company. 

• 

• 
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106. 	Directors shall comply with laws, administrative regulations and these Articles of Association and 
undertake the following duties of loyalty to the Company: 

(1) not to take bribes or other illegal income and not to seize the Company's assets; 

(2) not to misappropriate the funds of the Company; 

(3) not to deposit the assets or funds of the Company in an account opened in his/her personal 
name or in the name of another individual; 

(4) not to, in violation of these Articles of Association of the Company, lend the funds of the 
Company to other persons or use the property of the Company to provide security for other 
persons without the prior consent of the shareholders' meeting or the board of directors; 

(5) not to enter into a contract or transaction with the Company in violation of these Articles of 
Association or without prior consent of the shareholders' meeting; 

(6) not to take advantage of his/her position to seek for himself/herself or other persons 
commercial opportunities that belong to the Company or to self-operate or operate on behalf 
of another person, the same type of business as that of the Company without the prior 
consent of the shareholders' meeting; 

(7) not to accept any commission in relation to a transaction with the Company; 

(8) not to disclose any confidential information of the Company without prior authorization; 

(9) not to impair the interests of the Company by use of his/her connected relationship; 

(10) to comply with any other duties of loyalty set forth in laws, administrative regulations, rules 
and these Articles of Association. 

Any proceeds derived by a director from violating this article shall belong to the Company and such 
director shall be liable for any loss sustained by the Company there from. 

	

107. 	Directors shall comply with laws, administrative regulations and these Articles of Association and 
undertake the following duties of diligence to the Company: 

(1) to exercise the rights vested in them with due diligence so as to ensure that the commercial 
behaviour of the Company shall comply with the requirements of the relevant laws and 
regulations and of each economic policy of the State and do not go beyond the business 
scope set forth in the business licence; 

(2) to treat all shareholders on an equal basis; 

(3) to understand in a timely manner the operation and management of the Company's business; 

(4) to confirm in writing regular reports of the Company and ensure that all the information 
disclosed by the Company is true, accurate and complete; 

(5) to provide true, relevant information to the board of supervisors and not to interfere with the 
board of supervisors and the performance by supervisors of their duties; 

(6) to comply with any other duties of diligence set forth in laws, administrative regulations, 
rules and these Articles of Association. 
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108. A director shall not act on behalf of the Company or the board of directors in his/her own name 

unless otherwise provided for in these Articles of Association or authorized to do so by the board of 
directors. Where a director is acting in his/her own name, the director shall make this known to the 
third party if the third party would otherwise have good reason to believe that the director is acting 
on behalf the Company or the board of directors. 

109. To the extent that any director or any other entity in which a director holds a position has a direct or 
indirect interest in any current or intended contract, transaction or arrangement with the Company 
(other than an employment contract), such director shall promptly disclose to the board of directors 
the nature and level of his/her interest, regardless of whether the relevant matter generally requires 
approval or consent by the board of directors. 

Unless the interested director has made such disclosure to the board of directors as required in the 
previous paragraph, and the board of directors has approved the relevant matter at a meeting in 
which the interested director is not counted for quorum and voting purposes, the Company shall be 
entitled to revoke the relevant contract, transaction or arrangement (other than a contract, transaction 
or arrangement with a bona fide third party). 

110. If, before the Company ever considers the relevant contract, transaction or arrangement, a director 
has given written notice to the board of directors to the effect that he/she makes known an interest in 
the future entry into such contract, transaction or arrangement by the Company on the ground 
identified in such notice, to the extent that it is made clear in the written notice, such director shall be 
deemed to have made the disclosure as required by the preceding clause. 

111. If any director fails to attend in person or by proxy two consecutive meetings of the board of 
directors, such director shall be deemed to have failed to perform his or her duties and the board of 
directors shall propose the replacement of such director to the shareholders' meeting. 

112. Any director may submit his resignation prior to the expiry of his or her term of office. Such 
director shall submit a written letter of resignation to the board of directors. The board of directors 
shall disclose relevant information within two (2) days. 

113. If at any time the board of directors of the Company consists of less than the minimum number as 
statutorily required, due to the resignation of any director, such director shall continue to perform 
his/her duties as director of the Company pursuant to applicable laws, administrative regulations, 
rules and these Articles of Association until a new director is elected to replace him/her. 

Except as otherwise provided for in the preceding paragraph, the letter of resignation of such director 
shall come into effect as of its delivery to the board of directors. 

The remaining directors shall convene an extraordinary shareholders' meeting immediately to elect 
another director to fill the vacancy arising from a resignation. Before the shareholders' meeting has 
passed a resolution in respect of the election of directors, the duties of the resigning director and the 
remaining directors shall be limited accordingly. 

114. Where the director resigns or his/her term of office expires, such director shall not be released from 
his/her duties to the Company and its shareholders until his/her letter of resignation becomes 
effective or for a reasonable period after his/her resignation comes into effect, or for a reasonable 
period after the term of office expires. Moreover, unless and until a trade secret of the Company 
becomes publicly available, such director shall continue to be bound by his/her duty of 
confidentiality in respect of any such trade secret after his/her term of office expires. The duration 
of other duties of such director shall be determined under the principle of fairness, depending on the 
remoteness in time of the relevant event from his/her departure, and the specific circumstances and 
conditions under which such director has terminated his/her relationship with the Company. 

• 

• 
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115. If any director violates laws, administrative regulations, rules or these Articles of Association in the 
performance of duties, such director shall be liable for any losses sustained by the Company. 

116. The Company shall not be responsible for any taxes due and payable by the directors. 

117. Provisions relevant to the directors' obligations in this section shall apply to supervisors, the general 
manauer and other senior management personnel of the Company. 

Section 2 	Independent Directors 

118. An independent director means a director who holds no other position at the Company and has no 
relationship with the Company or any of its major shareholders which may interfere with his/her 
independent and objective judgment. 

Independent directors • have duties of good faith and diligence to the Company and all its 
shareholders. Independent directors shall comply with applicable laws and regulations and these 
Articles of Association, diligently perform their duties, safeguard the general interests of the 
Company and in particular, procure that no harm be made to the legitimate interests of medium or 
minority shareholders. Independent directors shall perform their duties independently from the 
major shareholders or the actual controller of the Company, or any other entity or individual with an 
interest in the Company. 

119. The Company shall comply with the relevant requirements of the CSRC in the engagement of its 
independent directors, one (1) of whom must be an accounting expert. 

120. Nomination, election and replacement of independent directors 

(1) An independent director may be nominated by the board of directors, the board of 
supervisors, or the shareholder(s) who hold, either alone or jointly, one percent (1%) or more 
of shares in the Company and shall be elected by the shareholders' meeting. 

(2) The nominator shall obtain the consent of the nominee before nominating him/her as an 
independent director. The nominator must be fully aware of the nominee's profession, 
education, professional title and previous work experiences (including part-time work 
experiences), and must present an opinion on the qualifications and independence of such 
nominee as a candidate for independent director. The nominee shall make public statements 
that he/she has no relations with the Company that may affect his/her independent and 
objective judgment. The board of directors shall disclose the above information as required 
before the convention of the shareholders' meeting which will elect the independent director. 

(3) The Company shall deliver all relevant documentation on the nominee to the CSRC, the 
local delegate of the CSRC at the place of the Company and the stock exchange on which 
the Company is listed before the convention of the shareholders' meeting which will elect 
the independent director. If the board of directors of the Company has any objection to the 
nominee, a written opinion of the board of directors shall be attached to the above 
submissions. 

(4) The term of office of the independent director shall be consistent with the term of office of 
other directors under the current board of directors. The independent directors may be re-
elected at the expiry of his/her term, provided that the period of the renewed term of office 
shall not be more than six (6) years. 

(5) If an independent director fails to personally attend three consecutive board meetings, the 
board of directors should propose to the shareholders' meeting to replace such independent 
director. 

23 



No independent director shall be removed without cause before his/her term of office expires, 
except under the above circumstances or in any of the non-eligibility situations prescribed in 
the Company Law. If an independent director is removed before the expiry of his/her term 
of office, the Company shall disclose his/her removal as a special item of disclosure. If 
he/she is of the opinion that the removal lacks sufficient ground, he/she may make a public 
statement to that effect. 

(6) 	An independent director may resign before his/her term of office expires. Such director 
shall submit a written letter of resignation to the board of directors and disclose any 
information that may be relevant to his/her resignation or in his/her opinion noteworthy to 
the shareholders and creditors of the Company. If the proportion of independent directors on 
the board of directors of the Company falls below the minimum requirement set forth by the 
CSRC as a result of such resignation, such resignation shall not become effective until a 
replacement independent director fills the vacancy. • 

	

121. 	Additional powers granted to independent directors 

In addition to the general powers and duties of directors under the Company Law, other applicable 
laws and regulations, and these Articles of Association, the independent director shall have the 
following special powers and duties: 

(1) to approve any proposed transaction with an interested party (except for the provision of 
security by the Company) if the transaction value amounts to RMB three million (3,000,000) 
or more, and accounts for point five percent (0.5%) or more of the most recent audited net 
asset value of the Company in absolute amount. Such approval must then be submitted to 
the board of directors for discussion. The independent director may engage an outside 
institution to issue an independent financial report to assist them in making a decision; 

(2) to propose appointment or dismissal of accounting firms to the board of directors; 

(3) to propose to the board of directors that an extraordinary shareholders' meeting be convened; 

(4) to propose that a meeting of the board of directors be convened; 

(5) to independently engage external audit and consulting firms; and 

(6) to solicit the voting rights of shareholders prior to the shareholders' meeting. Independent 
directors shall obtain the consent of half or more of the independent directors when 
exercising the above-listed powers and duties. If the proposals relating to the above duties 
are not adopted or are unable to be exercised, the Company shall disclose relevant 
information. 

	

122. 	Independent directors shall give independent opinions on the following material matters in relation 
to the Company: 

( ) 	In addition to the duties above, independent directors shall give independent opinions on the 
following matters to the board of directors or at shareholders' meetings: 

(i) nomination, appointment or dismissal of directors; 

(ii) employment or dismissal of senior management personnel; 

(iii) remuneration of directors and of the Company's senior management personnel; 

• 
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(iv) any existing loan or other capital arrangement between the shareholders, actual 
controller or any affiliate of the Company and the Company that is in excess of 
RMB 3 million or five percent (5%) of the latest audited net assets of the 
Company, and whether effective measures have been taken to collect overdue 
payments; 

(v) any matter which the independent directors believe would prejudice the interests 
of medium or minority shareholders; 

(2) Independent directors shall give one of the following opinions in respect of the above 
matters: consent; reservation with an explanation of reasons; objection with an explanation 
of reasons; or inability to give an opinion with an explanation of reasons. 

(3) Where relevant matters are required to be disclosed, the Company shall disclose the 
collective opinion of the independent directors and if the independent directors fail to agree 
on a particular matter, the board of directors shall disclose the opinion of each independent 
director. 

123. The majority of any remuneration and evaluation, audit or nomination committee under the board of 
directors of the Company should consist of independent directors and any meeting of such 
committee shall be called by an independent director. 

124. The Company shall provide the following necessary conditions so as to assist the independent 
directors in the effective exercise of their duties: 

(1) The Company shall ensure that independent directors have the same rights to information as 
other directors. Independent directors shall be informed in writing of any matter to be 
decided by the board of directors within the statutory period and simultaneously provided 
with relevant information. If the independent directors believe such information is 
insufficient, they may require that the Company provide additional information. The 
Company and the independent directors shall keep all documentation provided by the 
Company to the independent directors for not less than five (5) years. 

(2) The Company shall provide working conditions necessary for independent directors to 
perform their duties. The secretary of the board of directors shall provide any assistance 
necessary for the independent directors to perform their duties, including describing 
circumstances and providing documentation. If any independent opinion, proposal or 
written explanation made by the independent directors is to be announced, the secretary of 
the board of directors shall handle such announcement with the Shanghai Stock Exchange in 
a timely manner. 

(3) When independent directors exercise their duties, the Company's staff shall provide 
assistance in an active manner and shall not refuse, prevent or deceive or disturb the 
independent implementation of their duties. 

(4) The expenses incurred by independent directors for the engagement of intermediary agencies 
and the exercise of their duties otherwise shall be paid by the Company. 

(5) The Company shall offer proper allowances to independent directors. The board of directors 
shall formulate proposals in respect of the amounts of such allowances, which shall be 
deliberated and determined at the shareholders' meeting and disclosed in the annual reports 
of the Company. Except for such allowances, the independent directors shall receive no 
additional and undisclosed benefits from the Company, any of its major shareholders or an 
interested entity or individual. 
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Section 3 	Board of Directors 

125. The Company shall have a board of directors which shall be accountable to the shareholders' 
meeting. 

126. The board of directors shall consist of fourteen (14) directors, and have one (1) chairman. 

127. The board of directors shall exercise the following duties and powers pursuant to the law: 

(1) to convene a shareholders' general meetings and to submit a report to the meeting detailing 
the work carried out; 

(2) to implement the resolutions passed at the shareholders' general meeting; 

(3) to decide the business plan and investment proposals of the Company; 

(4) to formulate the Company's annual financial budget and accounts settlement; 

(5) to formulate the plans for distribution of the Company's profit or for making up its losses; 

(6) to formulate proposals for the increase or decrease of the Company's registered capital and 
for the issuance of bonds or other securities or the listing of the Company on a stock 
exchange; 

(7) to prepare proposals for any material acquisition by the Company, any repurchase of the 
Company's shares, or any merger, division, or dissolution; 

(8) to decide, amongst other matters, venture investment, asset mortgage, and guarantee within 
the scope of authorisation by shareholders' meetings; 

Venture investments of the Company are limited to treasury bonds and other low-risk 
investments. The total amount of venture investments shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of 
the net asset value of the Company as set out in its latest audited financial statements. 

(9) to establish the Company's internal management structure; 

(10) to appoint or dismiss the general manager of the Company and the secretary of the board of 
directors; to appoint or dismiss senior management personnel such as deputy general 
managers and the chief finance officer of the Company in accordance with the nominations 
of the general managers and determine their remuneration, rewards and disciplinary matters; 

(11) to appoint or replace the members of the board of directors or the board of supervisors of a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of the CoMpany, and to appoint, replace or recommend any 
shareholder representative, (candidate for) director or (candidate for) supervisor of a 
subsidiary in which the Company is a controlling or non-controlling shareholder; 

(12) to determine the setup of any branch office of the Company; 

(13) to establish the Company's management policies; 

(14) to propose amendments to these Articles of Association and any annexes hereto; 

(15) to manage the information disclosure to be made by the Company; 

(16) to propose the appointment or replacement of the Company's auditors at a shareholders' 
general meetings; 
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(17) to listen to the general manager's reports and to examine the general manager's work; 

(18) to review material connected transactions of the Company and submit transactions over a 
certain amount to the shareholders' meeting for deliberation; 

(19) to perform other duties and powers as prescribed by relevant laws, administrative 
regulations, rules and these Articles of Association, and authorised by the shareholders' 
meeting; 

(20) to decide material matters and administrative matters and execute material agreements other 
than those matters and agreements as reserved for the shareholders' meeting under laws, 
regulations, rules of competent authorities and these Articles of Association. 

When the board of directors adopts a resolution in respect of a connected transaction, an 
interested director cannot be present and his/her voting power cannot be counted in the total 
number of valid votes. In addition, such resolution may not become effective unless it is 
approved by at least half of all independent directors. 

128. The board of directors shall explain any modified audit opinion of the registered accountant in 
connection with the Company's financial statements at a shareholders' meeting. 

129. The board of directors shall prepare the procedural rules to be followed at meetings of the board of 
directors pursuant to the requirements of applicable laws, regulations and these Articles of 
Association so as to ensure that it makes efficient and reasonable decisions. Such procedural rules 
(and amendments thereto) shall constitute an annex to the Articles of Association of the Company 
and require approval at the shareholders' meeting. 

130. The board of directors shall exercise the powers and perform the duties ascribed to it by these 
Articles of Association in connection the investments, asset sales and guarantees to be undertaken by 
the Company and establish a stringent review and decision-making procedure. 

The shareholders' meeting grant the following powers to the board of directors: to decide on any 
loan (whether it is within or beyond the scope of the annual budget of the Company), investment, 
asset sale, acquisition, lease, mortgage, pledge, other asset disposal or guarantee to be undertaken by 
the Company, provided that the value of a single transaction does not exceed ten percent (10%) of 
the latest audited total net assets of the Company. 

Any transaction beyond the above scope of authorities granted by the shareholders' meeting to the 
board of directors should be appraised by the relevant experts and professionals, and be subject to 
approval of the shareholders' meeting. If resolutions at the shareholders' meeting are required by 
law or by any competent government authority for transactions within the above scope of authorities 
granted by the shareholders' meeting to the board of directors, the board of directors shall submit 
proposals in respect of such transactions to the shareholders' meeting for approval as required. 

131. The board of directors shall have one (1) chairman. The chairman of the board shall be elected by a 
simple majority of all directors. 

132. The chairman of the board shall have the following powers and authorities: 

( ) 	to preside over a shareholders' meeting, and to convene and preside over a meeting of the 
board of directors; 

(2) to urge and monitor the implementation of the resolutions of the board; 

(3) to sign stock certificates, bonds and other securities of the Company; 
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(4) to sign important documents of the board or other documents to be signed by the legal 

representative of the Company; 

(5) to exercise the powers as legal representative of the Company; 

(6) to exercise special rights in relation to corporate affairs in the event of an emergency such as 
a severe natural disaster or other force majeure consistently with legal requirements and 
corporate interests, and report to the board of directors and the shareholders' meeting when 
such emergency subsides; and 

(7) to exercise other powers granted by the board of directors. 

	

133. 	When the chairman of the board of directors is unable or fails to perform his/her duties, a director 
nominated by more than half of the directors shall perform such duties. 

	

134. 	Meetings of the board of directors shall be held at least twice each calendar year and shall be 
convened by the chairman of the board of directors. Notice of meetings shall be sent to all the 
directors in writing at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting. 

	

135. 	Upon the occurrence of any of the following circumstances, the chairman of the board of directors 
shall convene and preside over the extraordinary meeting of the board of directors within five (5) 
working days: 

(1) the chairman of the board of directors considers it necessary to convene such a meeting; 

(2) such a meeting is proposed by shareholders with at least 1/10 of the voting rights or by at 
least 1/3 of the directors; 

(3) half or more of independent directors jointly propose such a meeting; 

(4) the board of supervisors proposes such a meeting; 

(5) the general manager proposes such a meeting. 

The chairman of the board of directors shall convene a board meeting within ten (10) days 
upon receipt of such proposal and preside over such meeting. 

	

136. 	The board of directors shall send a written notice of the extraordinary meeting to all directors at least 
three (3) days prior to such meeting. 

If the chairman of the - board of directors is unable to perform his/her duties as prescribed herein, 
he/she shall appoint another director to convene the extraordinary board meeting on his/her behalf. 
In the event that the chairman of the hoard of directors fails to perform his/her duties and to appoint 
the person to act on his/her behalf, a director nominated by more than half of the directors shall may 
convene such meeting. 

	

137. 	Any notice of meetings of the board of directors shall include: 

(1) the date and venue of such meeting; 

(2) the expected duration of such meeting; 

(3) the agenda and details of matters to be discussed; and 

• 

• 
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(4) 	the date of the notice. 

	

138. 	Meetings of the board of directors shall only be validly held if more than half of the directors are 
present at (or participate in) the meeting. Any resolution made by the board of directors shall be 
passed by more than half of the directors. 

Each director shall have one vote for purpose of the board resolutions. 

	

139. 	If any director is interested in any entity in the transaction to be resolved by the board of directors, 
such director shall not vote on such resolution independently or on behalf of another director. The 
quorum of a meeting of the board of directors requires more than half of the disinterested directors to 
be present and adoption of any resolution at such meeting requires the affirmative votes of a simple 
majority of disinterested directors. If less than three (3) disinterested directors attend such board 
meeting, the relevant transaction should be submitted to the shareholders' meeting for deliberation. 

	

140. 	Extraordinary meetings of the board of directors may be conducted by facsimil and resolutions may 
he signed by directors attending such meetings, provided that the directors are allowed to express 
their opinions fully. 

	

141. 	The meeting of the board of directors shall be attended by directors in person. If any director is 
unable to attend a meeting, for whatsoever reason, the director may appoint another director by 
proxy to attend such meeting on his or her behalf. The proxy shall set out the name of the authorized 
representative, authorized matters, authority and the effective period and shall be signed or sealed by 
the appointing director. A director appointed to attend a meeting on behalf of the appointing director 
shall exercise the rights of that director within the scope of his or her authorisation. If a director fails 
to attend a meeting of the board of directors and does not appoint another director to attend such 
meeting on his or her behalf, the director shall be deemed to have waived his or her rights to vote at 
such meeting. 

	

142. 	Voting at meetings of the board of directors shall be open. Each director shall have one vote. 

	

143. 	Minutes shall be taken in respect of the decisions on matters discussed at a meeting of the board of 
directors and shall be signed by those directors present at the meeting, the secretary of the board of 
directors and the person recording such minutes. Any director present at the meeting shall have the 
right to require that explanatory statements be written in the minutes regarding his/her comments and 
opinions at the meeting. The resolutions and minutes of the meeting of the board of directors shall 
be kept for ten (10) years in the Company's files by the secretary of the board of directors as an 
important basis to clarify the directors' duties. 

	

144. 	The minutes of the board of directors shall include: 

(I) 	the date and venue of the meeting and the name of the person(s) that proposed the meeting; 

(2) the names of the directors present at (or participating in) the meeting and of the directors 
attending the meeting by proxy on behalf of other directors; 

(3) the meeting agenda; 

(4) main points made by each of the directors; and 

(5) the manner of voting adopted for each matter and results of the vote so as to include details 
of the number of votes in favour of and against each matter and any abstentions. 

	

145. 	Directors who attend the board meetings shall sign resolutions and shall be held responsible for such 
resolutions. If the Company suffers any loss arising from the resolution of the board of directors by 
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reason of violation of laws, administrative regulations or these Articles of Association, directors 
consenting to such resolutions shall be held liable for such loss. If it is proved that a director has 
objected to the resolution and such objection has been recorded in the minutes, such director may be 
exempt from such liabilities. 

	

146. 	The board of directors shall establish in due course four professional management committees, 
consisting of a remuneration and evaluation committee, a nomination committee, an audit committee 
and a strategy committee, and formulate the commensurate rules for implementation. 

Section 4 	Secretary of the Board of Directors 

	

147. 	The board of directors shall have a secretary of the board of directors. The secretary of the board of 
directors shall be a member of the senior management and shall be accountable to the board of 
directors. The secretary of the board of directors shall be appointed by the board of the directors and 
shall be responsible for the preparations and record-keeping in respect of shareholders' meetings and 
board meetings, management of information on shareholders of the Company, and matters in relation 
to information disclosure. 

The secretary of the board of directors shall comply with the relevant requirements under laws, 
administrative regulations, rules and these Articles of Association. 

	

148. 	The secretary of the board of directors shall have the necessary expertise and experience and shall be 
appointed by the board of directors. 

The circumstances under which a person may not serve as a director of the Company as prescribed 
hereunder shall apply to the secretary of the board of directors. 

	

149. 	The secretary of the board of directors shall have the following duties: 

(1) to prepare and submit reports and documentation of the board of directors and the 
shareholders' meeting as required by the competent authorities; 

(2) to prepare for board meetings and shareholders' meetings, and to keep the meeting minutes, 
documentation and records; 

(3) to be responsible for information disclosures in respect of the Company, and to ensure that 
the Company should disclose the necessary information in a prompt, accurate, lawful, 
truthful and complete manner; 

(4) to ensure that any person entitled to records and documentation on the Company should 
have access to such records and documentation in a timely manner; 

(5) to exercise any other powers prescribed by the Articles of Association and listing rules of the 
stock exchange on which the stock of the Company is listed. 

	

150. 	Directors or other senior management personnel of the Company may take the position of the 
secretary of the board of directors concurrently with their existing position. Neither registered 
accountant nor a lawyer engaged by the Company shall undertake the post of secretary of the board 
of directors. 

	

151. 	The secretary of the board of directors shall be nominated by the chairman of the board of directors 
and appointed or dismissed by the board of directors. Where any director concurrently undertakes 
the post of secretary of the board of directors, such person shall not make decisions in both 
capacities where a matter calls for a decision by the directors and by the secretary of the board of 
directors. 
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Chapter 6 General Managers 

152. The Company shall have one general manager to be employed or dismissed by the board of directors. 

The Company shall have several deputy general managers to be employed or dismissed by the board 
of directors. 

Senior management personnel of the Company shall consist of the general manager, the deputy 
general managers, the chief financial officer, the secretary of the board of directors and other 
management personnel of the Company as determined by the board of directors. 

If so appointed, a director may concurrently serve as the general manager or a deputy general 
manager, or in another senior management position, but no more than half of the directors of the 
Company should serve such concurrent senior management positions. 

153. The provisions of article 104 shall also apply to the senior management personnel. 

• The duties of loyalty of directors set forth in article 106 and duty of diligence set forth in article 
107(4) to 107(6) shall also apply to the senior management personnel. 

154. Any person who takes up a position (other than as a directors) in the controlling shareholder of or the 
actual controller of the Company shall not take the position of the senior management personnel of 
the Company. 

155. The term of office of the general manager shall be three years, and may be renewed upon 
reappointment. 

156. The general manager shall report to the board of directors and exercise the following functions: 

(1) to organise production, operation and management of the Company, procure the 
implementation of board resolutions, and report on the working performance to the board of 
directors; 

(2) to implement resolutions of the board of directors, the annual business plans and investment 
plans of the Company; 

(3) to prepare the plan of the internal management structure; 

(4) to prepare the basic management systems of the Company; 

(5) to formulate detailed rules of the Company; 

(6) to propose the employment or dismissal of the deputy general managers and the chief 
financial officer of the Company to the board of directors; 

(7) to decide on the employment or dismissal of management personnel other than those to be 
employed or dismissed by the board of directors; 

(8) to consider adoption of remuneration, benefits, rewards and punishments in respect of the 
employees of the Company, and decide on employment and dismissal of the employees of 
the Company; 

(9) to propose the convening of an extraordinary meeting of the board of directors; and 

(10) to perform any other duties granted by these Articles of Association or the board of directors. 
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157. 	The general manager shall be present at meetings of the board of directors. The general manager 
who does not take the concurrent position of the director shall not have any voting rights at meetings 
of the board of directors. 

	

158. 	The general manager shall, at the request of the board of directors or the board of supervisors, report 
to the board of directors or the board of supervisors on the conclusion and performance of material 
contracts, capital expenditure and profit and loss of the Company. The general manager shall ensure 
the authenticity of such reports. 

	

159. 	Before the general manager considers the adoption of salaries, benefits, work safety, labour 
protection, labour insurance, termination (or dismissal) and other decisions involving the crucial 
interests of the employees of the Company, he/she shall consult the labour union and the employee 
council. 

	

160. 	The general manager shall formulate the detailed working rules of the general manager, which shall 
become effective and be implemented upon approval by the board of directors. 

	

161. 	The detailed working rules of the general manager shall include: 
	 • 

(1) conditions for convening meetings of the general manager, procedures and attendees; 

(2) detailed duties and the duty allocation of the general manager, the deputy general managers 
and other senior management personnel; 

(3) the authorisation in respect of application of the Company's capital and assets and 
conclusion of material contracts, and the system of reporting to the board of directors and 
the board of supervisors; and 

(4) such other matters as the board of directors deems necessary; 

	

162. 	The general manager of the Company shall comply with laws, regulations and these Articles of 
Association and perform the duty of good faith and duty of diligence. 

	

163. 	The general manager may resign prior to expiry of his or her term of office. The detailed procedures 
in connection with resignation of the general manager shall be subject to the employment contract 
between the general manager and the Company. 

	

164. 	The deputy general managers of the Company shall assist and report to the general manager. The 
	• 

procedures for the appointment and dismissal of deputy general managers shall be discussed and 
determined by the board of directors. 

	

165. 	If any senior management personnel breaches laws, regulations and these Articles of Association in 
performing his or her duties, such senior management personnel shall be liable for any loss sustained 
by the Company. 

Chapter 7 Board of Supervisors 

Section 1 	Supervisors 

	

166. 	Supervisors shall consist of representatives of shareholders, and representatives of the Company's 
employees. The supervisors assumed by the representatives of employees shall make up one third or 
more of all the supervisors. 

	

167. 	The provisions set forth in article 104 hereof shall also apply to supervisors. 
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Directors, general manager, deputy general managers and other senior management personnel shall 
not take the concurrent position of supervisors. 

168. The supervisors shall comply with laws, administrative regulations and these Articles of Association, 
and assume the duty of loyalty and duty of diligence, and shall not be permitted to abuse their power 
to accept bribes or other illicit gains and shall not be permitted to seize the Company's property. 

169. The term of office of a supervisor shall be three (3) years and may be renewed at expiry by election. 

170. If no election is made after the term of the supervisor expires, or the supervisor submits his 
resignation during his or her term and causes members of the board of supervisors to be less than the 
quorum, the original supervisor shall continue to perform his duties as supervisor in accordance with 
laws, administrative regulations and these Articles of Association before a new supervisor is elected. 

171. Supervisors have the right to be informed of the business conditions of the Company and are 
obligated to keep the relevant information confidential. 	Supervisors shall ensure that any 
information disclosed by the Company shall be true, accurate and complete. 

172. Supervisors may be present at meetings of the board of directors and put forth any query or opinion 
in connection with matters to be discussed and resolved at meetings of the board of directors. 

173. Supervisors shall not impair the interests of the Company by the use of their connected relationship 
and shall be liable for any loss incurred to the Company. 

174. If any supervisor breaches laws, administrative regulations and these Articles of Association in 
performing his duties, such senior management personnel shall be liable for any loss sustained by the 
Company. 

175. If a supervisor is unable to attend meetings of the board of supervisors on two (2) consecutive 
occasions, such supervisor shall be deemed to be unable to perform his duties and shall be replaced 
at a general meeting or a meeting of staff representatives. 

176. Each supervisor may submit his resignation prior to expiry of his or her term. The provisions 
relevant to the resignation of directors at Chapter 5 of these Articles of Association shall apply to 
supervisors. 

• 177. 	The supervisors shall comply with laws, administrative regulations and these Articles of Association, 
and assume the duties of loyalty and diligence. 

Section 2 	Board of Supervisors 

178. 	The Company shall have a board of supervisors which shall consist of six (6) supervisors. The board 
of supervisors shall have one chairman, and may also have one vice-chairman. The chairman and 
vice-chairman of the board of supervisors shall be elected by more than half of all supervisors. The 
chairman of the board of supervisors shall convene and preside over the meetings of the board of 
supervisors. If the chairman of the board of supervisors is unable or fails to perform his/her duties, 
the vice-chairman shall convene and preside over the meetings of the board of supervisors. If the 
vice-chairman of the board of supervisors is unable or fails to perform his/her duties, half or more of 
the supervisors shall appoint a supervisor to perform such duties. 

Shareholder representatives and an appropriate proportion of employee representatives shall be on he 
board of supervisors and the proportion of employee representatives shall not be lower than one third 
(1/3). The employee representatives on the board of supervisors shall be elected by the employees of 
the Company at the workers' congress or workers' general meeting or through another democratic 
means. 

" 

• 
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179. 	The board of supervisors shall exercise the following duties: 

(1) to review the periodic reports on the Company prepared by the board of directors and 
present written opinions; 

(2) to review the finance of the Company; 

(3) to supervise directors and the senior management personnel in the performance of their 
duties; to propose the dismissal of any director or senior management personnel in breach of 
laws, administrative regulations, these Articles of Association, or resolutions of the general 
meeting; 

(4) to require that directors and the senior management personnel to correct any act detrimental 
to the interests of the Company; 

(5) to propose the convention of the interim general meeting, and to convene and preside over 
the general meeting when the board of directors fails to perform duties for convening and 
presiding over general meeting; 

	 • 
(6) to make proposals to the general meeting; 

(7) to bring an action against directors or senior management personnel in accordance with 
article 152 of the Company Law; 

(8) to make investigations if there is any abnormal circumstance in connection with operation of 
the Company; to engage, if necessary, the professional firms such as the accounting firms 
and law firms for any assistance at the expense of the Company. 

	

180. 	The board of supervisors shall hold at least one meeting every six months. One or more supervisors 
may propose to hold an extraordinary meeting of the board of supervisors. 

Resolutions of the board of supervisors require a simple majority of the supervisors to pass. 

	

181. 	The board of supervisors shall formulate the rules for deliberation by the board of supervisors in 
order to set out the manner of deliberation and voting process and to ensure efficiency and 
reasonableness of its decisions. 

	

182. 	Minutes shall be taken in respect of the decisions on matters discussed at a meeting of the board of 
	• 

supervisors and shall be signed by those supervisors present at the meeting. Any supervisor present 
at the meeting shall have the right to require that explanatory statements be written in the minutes 
regarding his/her comments at the meeting. The minutes of the meetings of the board of supervisors 
shall be kept in the file of the Company for at least ten (10) years. 

	

183. 	The notice of a meeting of the board of supervisors shall include: the date, venue and duration of 
such meeting, the meeting agenda, and the date that the notice is circulated. 

Section 3 	Resolutions of the Board of Supervisors 

	

184. 	The manner of discussion is set out as follows. The person calling meetings of the board of 
supervisors shall convene and preside over meetings of the board of supervisors. If the person 
calling a meeting of the board of directors is unable to attend the meeting, he/she may designate 
another supervisor to preside over the meeting on his/her behalf. In the event that the person calling 
the meeting fails to make such designation, the supervisors present at such meeting shall elect one 
person to preside. 
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Meetings of the board of supervisors shall only be held if half or more of the supervisors are present 
at the meeting. Any resolution may only be passed if it is approved by half or more of all supervisors 
and signed by the supervisors present at the meeting. 

Where the person calling a meeting considers it necessary or more than two thirds of the supervisors 
propose to do so, an extraordinary meeting of the board of supervisors may be held. If an 
extraordinary meeting of the board of supervisors has been proposed by one or more supervisors, the 
reasons for and the purpose of such extraordinary meeting shall be given. 

A supervisor shall personally attend a meeting of the board of supervisors. If he/she is unable to 
attend for any reason, he/she may authorise in writing another supervisor to attend the meeting on 
his/her behalf. 

Such written authorisation shall indicate the name of the authorised supervisor, the matters in 
relation to which such supervisor is authorised to act, the powers granted and the effective period of 
such authorisation, and shall be affixed with the signature or chop of the authorising supervisor. 

185. The supervisors may vote on resolutions by a show of hands or by casting votes. Each supervisor 
shall have one vote. All supervisors have the right to speak at a meeting of the board of supervisors. 
The board of supervisors should consider the proposals made by any supervisor. 

Chapter 8 	Financial and Accounting System, Profit Distribution and Audit 

Section 1 	Financial and Accounting System 

186. The Company shall establish its financial and accounting system in accordance with the relevant 
laws, regulations and other government provisions. 

187. The Company shall formulate and implement external guarantee policies and establish an 
appropriate internal risk control system to stringently control risks from external guarantee, in 
accordance with laws, regulations and requirements of CSRC and other competent authorities. 

188. The Company shall submit the annual financial and accounting reports to the CSRC and the stock 
exchange within four months from the end of every fiscal year, the semi-year financial and 
accounting reports to the agency of the CSRC and the stock exchange within two months from the 
end of the first six months of each fiscal year, the quarterly financial and accounting reports to the 
agency of CSRC and the stock exchange within one month of the end of the first three months or the 
first nine months of each fiscal year. 

The above financial and accounting reports shall be prepared in accordance with the relevant laws 
and regulations. 

189. The Company's annual financial report or interim financial report involving interim distribution of 
profits shall include: 

(1) a balance sheet; 

(2) an income statement; 

(3) a profit distribution statement; 

(4) a cash flow statement; 

(5) notes to financial statements. 

• 
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If the Company does not conduct the interim distribution of profits, the interim financial report shall 
include accounting statements and notes except for the statement described under paragraph (3). 

	

190. 	No hooks of account other than those required by law shall be established by the Company. The 
assets of the Company shall not be deposited in an account opened under the name of any individual. 

	

191. 	The profits of the Company for the current year after income taxes are paid shall be distributed in 
accordance with the following priorities: 

(1) to make up losses; 

(2) to allocate ten percent (10%) of profits to the statutory surplus reserve of the Company; 

(3) to allocate to the discretionary surplus reserve; 

(4) to pay dividends to shareholders. 

The Company needs not allocate further amounts if the cumulative amount of the statutory surplus 
reserve reaches fifty percent (50%) or more of the registered capital. 

If the statutory surplus reserve of the Company is not enough to make up for losses of the previous 
years, the profit of the current year shall firstly be applied to make up for losses before allocation is 
made to the statutory surplus reserve in accordance with the previous paragraph. 

After the Company allocates certain of the after-tax profits to the statutory surplus reserve, the 
allocation to the discretionary surplus reserve shall be subject to approval at the general meeting. 

The remaining after-tax profit after making up losses and allocation to the reserve shall be distributed 
in proportion to the shareholding of shareholders, unless otherwise provided by these Articles of 
Association. 

The Company shall not distribute profits to shareholders until the Company makes up losses of the 
Company and allocates to the statutory surplus reserve. 

If the general meeting distributes profits to shareholders in breach of the previous paragraphs before 
the Company makes up losses and allocate to the statutory surplus reserve, the shareholders shall 
refund such distributed profits to the Company. 

No profits shall be distributed to the Company in connection with shares the Company holds. 

	

192. 	The reserve of the Company shall be applied to make up for losses of the Company, expand the 
operation of the Company or be converted to the share capital of the Company, provided that the 
capital reserve of the Company shall not be applied to make up for losses of the Company. 

When the statutory surplus reserve is converted into share capital, the amount remaining in such 
statutory surplus reserve shall not be less than twenty five (25%) of the registered capital before 
capital increase. 

	

193. 	Once the plan for profit distribution has been determined at the general meeting, the board of 
directors shall distribute dividends (or bonus shares) within two months of the general meeting. 

	

194. 	The policies in connection with profit distribution shall include: 

(1) 	the decision-making procedures and system in connection with profit distribution 

• 
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If the Company distributes profits, the board of directors of the Company shall first prepare a 
proposal for profit distribution and the proposal for profit distribution shall not be submitted 
to the general meeting for approval unless independent directors express independent 
opinions on the proposal for profit distribution. The board of directors shall take into 
consideration and verify the appropriateness, conditions, minimum ratio and other matters in 
connection with the cash distribution, in the course of discussing and approving detailed 
plans for the cash distribution and independent directors shall express definitive opinions. 

The proposal for profit distribution adopted by the board of directors of the Company shall 
be submitted to the general meeting of the Company for approval. When the detailed plan for 
the cash distribution is discussed for approval at the general meeting, communications shall 
be actively made by various means with shareholders, in particular medium and minority 
shareholders, and opinions and demands of medium and minority shareholders shall be fully 
sought and questions raised by medium and minority shareholders shall be answered 
promptly. 

If the board of directors fails to prepare a proposal for the cash distribution in connection 
with profits generated by the Company for the current year, the board of directors shall 
prepare a special report explaining specific reasons for failure to make the cash distribution, 
the purpose for which the Company retains profits, the plan of application and other matters, 
and such report shall be submitted to the general meeting for approval after independent 
directors express opinions. 

(2) the principle of profit distribution 

The profit distribution policies of the Company shall remain coherent and steady, taking into 
consideration long-term interests of the Company, the overall interests of all the shareholders 
and the sustainable development of the Company. The Company shall use its endavours to 
distribute dividends in cash based on the level of profits for the current year and the 
requirements for the continuous operation if the Company generates profits and the cashflow 
satisfies the continuous operation and long-term development. When it comes to the method 
of profit distribution, the cash distribution shall take priority over the stock distribution. 

The Company shall rigorously implement such cash distribution policies as set out in these 
Articles of Association and such detailed plans for the cash distribution as approved at the • 	general meeting. 

(3) methods and intervals of profit distribution 

The Company may distribute profits by way of cash, stock or a combination of cash and 
stock. The Company generally makes annual profit distribution and may conduct interim 
profit distribution under some conditions. 

(4) conditions for and ratios of the cash distribution 

Specific conditions for the cash distribution: 

(i) The Company generates profits for the current year and the aggregated distributable 
profits shall be more than zero; 

(ii) An audit firm has issued an unqualified standard audit report on the financial report 
of the Company for the current year; 

(iii) Upon satisfaction of conditions for the cash distribution, the Company shall make 
profit distribution in cash; if the Company fails to satisfy conditions for the cash 
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distribution under any special circumstance, the Company is able not to conduct the 
cash distribution. If the Company fails to make the cash distribution under any 
special circumstance, the board of directors shall prepare a report describing specific 
reasons for no cash distribution, the specific purpose for which the Company retains 
profits, the estimated investment return and other matters. Such report shall be 
submitted to the general meeting for approval after independent directors express 
opinions; subsequently such report shall be disclosed on such media as designated by 
the Company. 

Intervals of the cash distribution: Except as under any special circumstance, the Company 
conducts the cash distribution once in connection with each of annual profit distributions. If 
permitted, the Company may conduct the interim profit distribution. 

Ratio of the cash distribution: 

Except as under any special circumstance, if the Company generates profits for the current 
year and the aggregated undistributed profits is more than zero, and if the Company conducts 
the cash distribution, profits distributed by the Company in cash shall be no less than 30% of 
distributable profits for the current year. 

Subject to satisfaction of the above-mentioned conditions for the cash distribution, the board 
of directors of the Company shall implement different cash distribution policies taking into 
consideration the industrial features, the development stage, the operation mode, the level of 
profits and expenditures in a substantial amount: 

(i) If the Company is positioned at the mature stage and there is no arrangement for 
expenditures in a substantial amount, profits distributed in cask shall be no less than 
80% of all the profits distributed by the Company in the course of profit distribution; 

(ii) If the Company is positioned at the mature stage and there is an arrangement for 
expenditures in a substantial amount, profits distributed in cash shall be no less than 
40% of all the profits distributed by the Company in the course of profit distribution; 

(iii) If the Company is positioned at the growth stage and there is an arrangement for 
expenditures in a substantial amount, profits distributed in cash shall be no less than 
20% of all the profits distributed by the Company in the course of profit distribution; 

If it is difficult to decide the development stage of the Company and there is an arrangement 
for expenditures in a substantial amount, the above-mentioned conditions and ratio of the 
cash distribution as firstly set out in this subclause may be applied. 

(5) 	Adjustment or amendment to profit distribution policies 

If the Company amends profit distribution policies, opinions of independent directors and 
medium and minority shareholders shall be fully sought through various channels. The board 
of directors shall make detailed demonstration and describe reasons for amendments. The 
amended profit distribution policies shall be submitted to the general meeting for approval 
by an extraordinary resolution after independent directors express. opinions. 

The Company shall not amend the given profit distribution policies, in particular the cash 
distribution policies unless the following conditions are satisfied: 1. It is necessary to amend 
profit distribution policies due to requirements from the production and operation, 
investment planning and long-term development, or due to changes in the external operation 
landscape; 2. The amended profit distribution policies will not breach relevant requirements 
of CSRC and Shanghai Stock Exchange. 

• 

• 

• 

38 



• 

I 

(6) If any shareholder embezzles funds of the Company in breach of law, the Company shall 
deduct the cash distribution available to such shareholder to recover funds embezzled by 
such shareholder. 

(7) The board of supervisors of the Company is entitled to supervise the implementation by the 
board of directors of cash distribution policies and compliance with relevant decision-
making procedures and information disclosure requirements. If it is found that the board of 
directors fails to stringently implement cash distribution policies, follow relevant decision-
making procedures for the cash distribution or make true, accurate and full disclosure of cash 
distribution policies and their implementation, the board of supervisors is entitled to put forth 
its opinions and urge the board of directors to promptly rectify such failure. 

Section 2 	Internal Audit 

	

195. 	The Company shall implement an internal audit system and have internal audit staff for carrying out 
internal audits and the supervision of financial matters and the economic activities of the Company. 

	

196. 	The internal audit system and the duties of the internal audit staff shall be implemented upon the 
approval of the board of directors. The person in charge of the internal audit department shall report 
to the board of directors. 

Section 3 	Appointment of Accounting Firm 

	

197. 	The Company shall engage accounting firms qualified for securities-related business to audit 
accounting statements, verify net assets and provide other relevant consulting services. The term of 
engagement shall be one year and may be renewed. 

	

198. 	Appointment of an accounting firm shall be approved at the general meeting. The board of directors 
shall not appoint any accounting firm until it is approved by the general meeting. 

	

199. 	The Company shall ensure to provide true and complete accounting evidence, books, financial and 
accounting reports and other accounting documents to the appointed accounting firm. No refusal or 
concealment shall be made and no false information shall be provided. 

	

200. 	The accounting firm appointed by the Company shall have the following rights: 

(1) to inspect the Company's books and accounts, records or other evidence and to require the 
Company's directors, general manager or other senior management to provide the relevant 
information and explanations; 

(2) to require the Company to provide any information or explanation in connection with its 
subsidiaries that is necessary for the auditor to carry out its duties; and 

(3) to attend general meetings and receive notices and other information related to such meeting 
that the shareholder is entitled to receive as well as being entitled to speak at any general 
meeting about matters relating to its duties as the appointed accounting firm. 

	

201. 	If there is a vacancy for the accounting firm, the board of directors may appoint an accounting firm 
to fill up the vacancy prior to holding of the general meeting. 

	

207. 	The audit fee of the accounting firm shall be decided at the general meeting. 

	

203. 	The dismissal of or renewal for engagement of accounting firms shall be approved at the general 
meeting and shall be disclosed in relevant newspapers with, if necessary, reasons for replacement 
and shall also be filed with CSRC and the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accounts. 
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204. 	When the Company dismisses or does not re-appoint an accounting firm, it shall give notice to the 
accounting firm thirty (30) days in advance. When the general meeting takes a vote on dismissal of 
the accounting firm, the accounting firm shall be allowed to state its opinions. 

If the accounting firm submits its resignation, the accounting firm shall notify the general meeting as 
to whether there has been any improper conduct of the Company. 

Chapter 9 Notices and Public Announcement 

Section 1 	Notices 

	

205. 	The Company shall serve notices in the following manner: 

- (1) 	by personal delivery; 

(2) by post; 

(3) by public announcement; 

(4) by other means as set out in these Articles of Association. 

	

206. 	When a notice is served by way of public announcement, all of the relevant persons shall be deemed 
to have received such notice upon the publication of the announcement. 

	

207. 	Notices for convening the general meetings shall be served by way of public announcement. 

	

208. 	Notices for convening meetings of the board of directors of the Company shall be sent in writing by 
personal delivery, post or facsimile. 

	

209. 	Notices for convening meetings of the board of supervisors of the Company shall be sent in writing 
by personal delivery, post or facsimile. 

	

210. 	When the notice is served by way of personal delivery, the recipients shall sign and chop on the 
receipt slip to acknowledge its receipt and the day of acknowledgement shall be the date of receipt. 
When the notice is served by post, the date of receipt shall be the fifth working day after delivering 
the notice to the post office. When the notice is served by way of public announcement, the first day 
of publication shall be regarded as the date of receipt. 

	

211. 	Accidental omission to serve a notice or non-receipt of a notice by a person entitled to receive such 
notice shall not invalidate the relevant meeting or the resolutions adopted at that meeting. 

Section 2 	Public Announcement 

	

212. 	The Company shall publish any public announcements and any other information to be disclosed in 
the China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News and/or Securities Times. 

Chapter 10 Merger, Division, Capital Increase, Capital Decrease, Dissolution and Liquidation 

Section 1 	Merger, Division, Capital Increase and Capital Decrease 

	

213. 	A merger may take the form of merger by absorption or a merger by establishment of a new 
company. 

Merger by absorption means that a company absorbs other companies and the absorbed companies 
go into dissolution. Merger by establishment of a new company means that two or more companies 
merge to establish a new company and the original companies go into dissolution. 
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214. 	The merger or division of the Company shall be undertaken by the steps detailed below: 

(1) the board of directors shall draft a proposal for the merger or division of the Company; 

(2) the shareholders shall pass a resolution approving the proposal at the general meeting in 
accordance with these Articles of Association; 

(3) the agreements effecting the merger or division of the Company shall be entered into by all 
parties involved; 

(4) the relevant approval procedures should be undergone according to law; 

(5) creditors' rights and debts of the parties shall be managed; and 

(6) alterations to or cancellation of the Company's registration shall be effected. 

	

215. 	In the event of a merger of the Company, the parties involved in the merger shall enter into a merger 
agreement and prepare a balance sheet and a list of assets. The Company shall notify its creditors 
within ten (10) days from the date of a resolution approving the merger and shall make an 
announcement within thirty (30) days thereof on the China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities 
News and/or Securities Times. Any creditor may request the Company to pay off indebtedness or 
provide appropriate guarantee within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice; in the case of no receipt of 
notice, within forty-five (45) days from the date of public announcement. 

	

216. 	In the case of a merger or division of the Company, the board of directors of the Company shall take 
necessary measures to protect legitimate interests of shareholders opposing the merger or division of 
the Company. 

	

217. 	After the completion of the merger, the creditor's rights and the debts of the parties involved in the 
merger shall be assumed by the company survived the merger or the new company established after 
the merger. 

	

218. 	If the Company is divided, its assets shall be divided accordingly. 

In the event of a division of the Company, a balance sheet and a list of assets shall be prepared. The 
Company shall notify its creditors within ten (10) days of the resolution approving the division being 
passed and shall make an announcement within thirty (30) days thereof in the China Securities 
Journal, Shanghai Securities News and/or Securities Times. 

	

219. 	Companies existing after the Company is divided shall undertake joint and several liability for debts 
of the Company that were incurred before the Company was divided unless otherwise provided by 
such written agreements as the Company enters into with its creditors in respect of payment of debts 
before the Company divides. 

	

220. 	The Company shall prepare a balance sheet and a list of assets when it needs to decrease the 
registered capital. 

The Company shall notify its creditors within ten (10) days of the resolution approving such decrease 
being passed and shall make an announcement within thirty (30) days thereof in the China Securities 
Journal, Shanghai Securities News and/or Securities Times. Any creditor may request the Company 
to pay off indebtedness or provide appropriate guarantee within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice; 
in the case of no receipt of notice, within forty-five (45) days from the date of public announcement. 

The registered capital of the Company after decrease shall not be less than the statutory minimum 
limit. 
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221. 	In the event of a merger or division of the Company, alterations to the registration shall be made at 
the company registration authorities. In the event of a dissolution of the Company, the registration 
shall be cancelled. In the event that a new company is set up, the registration of incorporation 
thereof shall be made. 

If the Company increases or decreases the registered capital, alternations to the registration shall be 
made at the company registration authorities. 

Section 2 	Dissolution and Liquidation 

222. 	The Company shall dissolve upon occurrence of any one of the following events: 

(1) such a term of operation as set out in these Articles of Association expires or there occurs 
any other dissolution event as set out in these Articles of Association; 

(2) a resolution is passed to dissolve the Company at the general meeting; 

(3) a dissolution of the Company is required due to merger or division of the Company; 

(4) the business licence of the Company is revoked according to law; the closure of the 
Company is made according to law; the Company is revoked according to law; or 

(5) where the operation of the Company is in serious difficulties, if the continuous operation 
may cause material losses to the shareholders and such difficulties may not be settled in 
other manners, shareholders holding ten (10%) or more of all the voting rights of the 
Company may resort to the People's court to demand the dissolution of the Company. 

223. 	If any circumstance as set out in article 222 (1) of these Articles of Association occurs to the 
Company, these Articles of Association may be amended to cause the Company to continue to exist. 

Any amendments made to these Articles of Association under the preceding sentence shall be 
adopted by shareholders holding two thirds or more of voting rights present at the general meeting. 

224. 	If the Company is dissolved in accordance with article 222 (1), (2), (4) or (5), the liquidation 
committee shall be established within fifteen (15) days from the occurrence of the dissolution event. 

The liquidation committee shall consist of directors or persons designated by the general meeting. 

If the liquidation committee fails to be established within the above period, the creditors may request 
the People's court to designate relevant persons to form the liquidation committee. 

225. 	Upon establishment of a liquidation committee, the board of directors and the general manager shall 
cease the exercise of their duties immediately. During the period of liquidation, the Company shall 
not carry out any new operation activities. 

226. 	During the liquidation period, the liquidation committee shall exercise the following duties and 
powers: 

(1) to investigate the Company's assets, prepare a balance sheet and a list of the Company's 
assets; 

(2) to give notice or make announcements to creditors; 

(3) to deal with the uncompleted business of the Company in connection with liquidation; 

(4) to effect payment of all overdue taxes and other taxes arising from the liquidation; 
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(5) to settle the Company's debts; 

(6) to deal with the remaining assets after settlement of the Company's debts; and 

(7) to represent the Company in any civil proceedings. 

	

227. 	The liquidation committee shall notify the creditors within ten (10) days of its establishment and 
announce the same within sixty (60) days in the China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News 
and/or Securities Times. 

The creditors who receive the liquidation committee's notice shall, within thirty (30) days from the 
date of receipt of such notice, make a claim against the Company. The creditors who do not receive 
the notice shall, within forty-five (45) days as from the date of the first announcement, make a claim 
against the Company. 

When creditors make such claims, they shall describe the relevant matters in respect of their claims 
and provide evidence thereof The liquidation committee shall register all of the creditors' claims. 

During the period of claims being made, the liquidation committee shall not pay off debts to the 
creditors. 

	

228. 	After the assets of the Company have been disposed of and the balance sheet and list of assets have 
been completed, the liquidation committee shall prepare a liquidation plan and submit the same for 
approval at the general meeting or to the People's court for confirmation. 

	

229. 	The Company's assets shall be distributed to pay in accordance with the following priorities: 

(1) liquidation expenses; 

(2) wages due to staff, labour insurance expenses and statutory compensation; 

(3) taxes due; 

(4) the Company's indebtedness; 

(5) to the shareholders in proportion to shares they hold. 

During the liquidation, the Company exists and shall not conduct any operation activity not relevant 
to liquidation. The assets of the Company shall not be distributed to the shareholders until they are 
applied to pay off in accordance with paragraphs (1) to (4). 

	

230. 	If the liquidation committee, after the disposal of the assets of the Company and preparation of the 
balance sheet and list of assets, discovers that the assets of the Company are insufficient to settle its 
debts, it shall forthwith make an application to the People's court for a declaration of 
insolvency.After the declaration of insolvency by the People's court, the liquidation committee shall 
hand over the liquidation matters to the People's court. 

	

231. 	After the liquidation has been completed, the liquidation committee shall prepare a liquidation report, 
and a receipt and disbursement statement and financial books covering the liquidation period and 
submit the same for approval at the general meeting or to the People's court for confirmation. 

Within thirty (30) days from the date when the general meeting or the People's court confirms the 
liquidation report, the liquidation committee shall lawfully apply to the company registration 
authority for cancellation of the Company's registration and shall also announce the termination of 
the Company. 
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23/. 	Members of a liquidation committee shall be devoted to their duties and perform liquidation duties 
according to law. Members of a liquidation committee shall not be permitted to use their power to 
accept bribes or other illicit gains and shall not be permitted to seize the company's property. 

Members of the liquidation committee shall bear liability to compensate for losses incurred during 
the liquidation of the company or to creditors as a result of deliberate acts or gross negligence. 

	

233. 	If the Company is declared bankrupt in law, the liquidation shall be implemented in accordance with 
the laws relevant to bankruptcy of enterprises. 

Chapter 11 Amendment to Articles of Association 

	

234. 	If any of the following circumstances occurs, these Articles of Association shall be amended: 

(1) The Company Law or relevant laws and administrative regulations are amended and the 
provisions of these Article of Association are in contradiction with such the amended laws 
and regulations; 

(2) the Company's situation changes and is inconsistent with what has been formulated by these 
	• 

Articles of Association; or 

(3) the general meeting approves such amendments to these Articles of Association. 

	

235. 	Amendments to these Articles of Association approved by resolutions passed at a general meeting 
shall be submitted for the approval of the original competent authorities. If so required. If the 
amendments involve the registered items of the Company, the Company shall apply for registration 
of the changes according to law. 

	

236. 	The board of directors shall amend these Articles or Association in accordance with the resolution 
passed at a general meeting and the opinion of relevant competent authorities upon examination and 
approval. 

	

237. 	Any amendment to these Articles of Association that constitutes information to be disclosed in 
accordance with relevant laws and regulations shall be disclosed accordingly. 

Chapter 12 Supplementary Provisions 

	

238. 	Definitions 

(1) -Controlling Shareholder" means any shareholder holding fifty (50%) or more of the total 
share capital of the Company or any shareholder holding less than fifty (50%) of the total 
share capital but having voting rights sufficient to impose material effect on resolutions of 
the general meeting. 

(2) -Actual Controller" means any person who is not a shareholder of the Company, but is able 
to control the activities of the Company by way of investment, agreement or other 

arrangements. 

(3) "Connected Relationship" means the relationship between the controlling shareholder, the 
actual controller, any director, supervisor, or senior management of the Company and any 
enterprise the aforementioned person directly or indirectly controls, as well as other 
relationships which may cause the transfer of interests of the Company. However, mere 
common state control to a connected relationship among state-controlled enterprises is not 
sufficient to form a connected relationship. 
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239. The board of directors may formulate detailed rules of these Articles of Association in accordance 
with these Articles of Association. These detailed rules shall not be contradictory to the requirement 
of these Articles of Association. 

240. These Articles of Association are written in Chinese. Whenever differences in meaning arises 
between different language versions of these Articles of Association, the Chinese version which is 
most recently approved and registered at the Administration for Industry and Commerce, shall 
prevail. 

241. Any description of a unit or amount using the propositions "no less than", "within" or "no more 
than" shall include the unit/amount itself; any description of a unit or amount with the prepositions 
"less than", "beyond" shall not include the unit/amount itself. 

241. 	The board of directors of the Company shall be responsible for the interpretation of these Articles of 
Association. 

243. 	The appendices of these Articles of Association shall include the procedural rules of the general 
meeting, the procedural rules of meetings of the board of directors and the procedural rules of 
meetings of the board of supervisors of the Company. 

Shanghai Electric Power Company Limited 

29 June 2016 
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